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STATE OF FLORIDA 
FLORIDA ELECTIONS COMMISSION 

In Re:   Rob Robinson 
/ 

Case No.:  FEC 19-519 

TO:  Fred Reilly, Esquire 
Reilly International Law Firm, P.A. 
Post Office Box 2039 
Haines City, FL 33845 

Jennifer S. Blohm, Esquire 
Meyer, Brooks, Blohm & Hearn, P.A. 
131 North Gadsden Street 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 

NOTICE OF HEARING (OTHER MOTIONS: REVIEW PETITION FOR ATTORNEY'S FEES AND COSTS) 

A hearing will be held in this case before the Florida Elections Commission on, December 1, 2020 at 8:30 AM, or as soon 
thereafter as the parties can be heard, at the following location: Senate Office Building, 404 South Monroe Street, Room 110-
S, Tallahassee, Florida 32399.  Due to heightened security access requirements, please bring only essential items into the building 
and plan to arrive early to allow for delays coming through security. 

Failure to appear in accordance with this notice will constitute a waiver of your right to participate in the hearing. 
Continuances will be granted only upon a showing of good cause.   

This hearing will be conducted pursuant to Section 106.25, Florida Statutes, which governs your participation as follows: 

If you are the Respondent, you may attend the hearing, and you or your attorney will have 5 minutes to present your 
case to the Commission.  However, some cases (including those in which consent orders or recommendations for no probable 
cause are being considered) may be decided by an en masse vote and, unless you request to be heard or the Commission requests 
that your case be considered separately on the day of the hearing, your case will not be individually heard. 

If you are the Complainant, you may attend the hearing, but you will not be permitted to address the Commission.  In 
addition, some cases (including those in which consent orders or recommendations for no probable cause are being considered) 
may be decided by an en masse vote and, unless the Respondent requests to be heard or the Commission requests that the case be 
considered separately on the day of the hearing, the case will not be individually heard. 

If you are an Appellant, and you have requested a hearing, you may attend the hearing, and you or your attorney will 
have 5 minutes to present your case to the Commission. 

Please be advised that both confidential and public cases are scheduled to be heard by the Florida Elections Commission 
on this date.  As an Appellant, Respondent or Complainant in one case, you will not be permitted to attend the hearings on other 
confidential cases.   

The Commission will electronically record the meeting.  Although the Commission’s recording is considered the official 
record of the hearing, the Respondent may provide, at his own expense, a certified court reporter to also record the hearing. 

If you require an accommodation due to a disability, contact Donna Ann Malphurs at (850) 922-4539 or by mail at 107 
West Gaines Street, The Collins Building, Suite 224, Tallahassee, Florida 32399, at least 5 days before the hearing. 

See further instructions on the reverse side.  

Tim Vaccaro 
Executive Director 
Florida Elections Commission 
November 9, 2019 
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  Please refer to the information below for further instructions related to your particular hearing: 
 
This Motion or Petition for Attorney’s Fees will be conducted pursuant to Section 106.265(6), 
Florida Statutes, and Chapter 28 and Commission Rule 2B-1.0045, Florida Administrative Code. The 
Commission will determine whether the petition contains sufficient facts to support a claim for costs 
and attorney’s fees and, if so, the Commission will order a hearing involving disputed issues of material 
fact (formal hearing) before the Commission, a Commissioner or Commissioners designated by the 
Commission, or the Division of Administrative Hearings. 

 
If the Commission determines that there are not sufficient facts to support a claim, the motion or petition 
will be denied or dismissed. 

 



0 STATE OF FLORIDA 
FLORIDA ELECTIONS COMMISSION 

In Re: Rob Robinson Case No.: FEC 19-519 ___________________ _,/ 

TO: Fred Reilly, Esquire 
Reilly International Law Firm, P.A. 
Post Office Box 203~ 
Haines City, FL 33845 

Jennifer S. Blohm, Esquire 
Meyer, Brooks, Blohm and Heam, P.A. 
131 North Gadsden Street 

Tallahassee, FL 32301 

NOTICE OF CANCELLATION OF HEARING 
(OTHER MOTIONS: REVIEW PETITION FOR ATTORNEY'S FEES AND COSTS) 

You are hereby notified that the previously scheduled hearing for March 24-25, 2020 is cancelled. It is anticipated 
that your case will be heard at the next regularly scheduled meeting, which is currently set for May 2020. A Notice of Hearing 
will be mailed approximately 14 days prior to the hearing date indicating the exact date, time, and location. 

NOH 
FEC# 19-519 

'Tim <Vaccaro 
Executive Director 
Florida Elections Commission 
March 12, 2020 



0 STATE OF FLORIDA 
FLORIDA ELECTIONS COMMISSION 

In Re: Rob Robinson 

--------------------·' 
TO: Fred Reilly, Esquire 

Reilly International Law Firm, P.A. 
Post Office Box 2039 

Haines City, FL 33845 

Case No.: FEC 19-519 

Jennifer S. Blohm, Esquire 
Meyer, Brooks, Blohm and Heam, P.A. 

131 North Gadsden Street 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 

NOTICE OF HEARING (OTHER MOTIONS: REVIEW PETITION FOR ATTORNEY'S FEES AND COSTS) 

A hearing will be held in this case before the Florida Elections Commission on, March 24, 2020 at 1:00 p.m., or as soon 
thereafter as the parties can be heard, at the following location: House Office Building, 404 South Monroe Street, Room 28,­
H, Tallahassee, Florida 32399. Due to heightened security access requirements. please bring only essential items into the 
building and plan to arrive early to allow for delays coming through security. 

Failure to appear in accordance with this notice will constitute a waiver of your right to participate in the hearing. 
Continuances will be granted only upon a showing of good cause. 

This hearing will be conducted pursuant to Section 106.25, Florida Statutes, which governs your participation as follows: 

Please be advised that both confidential and public cases are scheduled to be heard by the Florida Elections Commission 
on this date. As an Appellant, Respondent or Complainant in one case, you will not be permitted to attend the hearings on other 
confidential cases. 

The Commission will electronically record the meeting. Although the Commission's recording is considered the official 
· record of the hearing, the Respondent may provide, at his own expense, a certified court reporter to also record the hearing. 

If you require an accommodation due to a disability, contact Donna Ann Malphurs at (850) 922-4539 or by mail at 107 
West Gaines Street, The Collins Building, Suite 224, Tallahassee, Florida 32399, at least 5 days before the hearing. 

NOH 
FEC # 19-519 

'lim 'Vaccaro 
Executive Director 
Florida Elections Commission 
March 9, 2019 
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Responses to Amended Motions for Attorney's FeesJennifer S. Blohm to: 
'fec@myfloridalegal.com' 03/09/2020 11 :07 AM 

Page 1 of 1 

Cc: "donna.malphurs@myfloridalegal.com", "Timothy.Vaccaro@myfloridalegal.com", 
. "fredreilly@attomey-solicitor.com" · 

From: "Jennifer S. Blohm" <JBlohm@meyerbrookslaw.com> 
To: "'fec@myfloridalegal.com"' <fec@myfloridalegal.com> 
Cc: "donna.malphurs@myfloridalegal.com" <donna.malphurs@myfloridalegal.com>, 
"Timothy.Vaccaro@myfloridalegal.com" <Timothy. Vaccaro@myfloridalegal.com>, 
"fredreilly@attorney-solicitor.com" <fredreilly@attorney-solicitor.com> 

3 Attachments 

~ 
Response to Amended Motion for Attorney's Fees-FEC 19-514.pdf 

~ 
Response to Amended Motion for Attorney's Fees-FEC 19-515 and 19-518.pdf 

[LI 
l1iJ 

Response to Amended Motion for Attorney's Fees- FEC 19-516 and 19-519.pdf 

Donna, 

I have attached Mr. Lepley's and Ms. Bradley's responses to the amended motions for attorney's fees. Please do 
not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 
Jennifer 

Jennifer S. Blohm 
Meyer, Brooks, Blohm and Hearn, P.A. 
131 North Gadsden Street (32301) 
Post Office Box 1547 (32302) 
Tallahassee, Florida 
www.meyerbrookslaw.com 
(850) 878-5212 
(850) 656-6750 (Facsimile) 

Confidential Note: 
The information contained in this transmission is legally privileged and confidential, intended only for the use of 
the individual or entity named above. If ttte reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby 
notified that any dissemination, distribution or copy of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you received this 
communication in error, please notify us immediately by calling us at (888) 848-5212 and then deleting the 
message. Thank you. · 

file:///C:/Users/MalphursD/ AppData/Local/Temp/notes5D3EFE/~web9415.htm 3/9/2020 



Donna Malphurs 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Donna, 

O · () 

Jennifer S. Blohm <JBlohm@meyerbrookslaw.com> 
Monday, March 9, 2020 11 :06 AM 
Florida Elections Commission 
Donna Malphurs; Timothy Vaccaro; fredreilly@attorney-solicitor.com 

. Responses to Amended Motions for Attorney's Fees 
Response to Amended Motion for Attorney's Fees-FEC 19-514.pdf; Response to 
Amended Motion for Attorney's Fees-FEC 19-515 and 19-518.pdf; Response to 
Amended Motion for Attorney's Fees- FEC 19-516 and 19~519.pdf 

I have attached Mr. Lepley's and Ms. Bradley's responses to the amended motions for attorney's fees. Please do not 
hesitate to contact me if you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 
Jennifer 

Jennifer S. Blohm 
Meyer, Brooks, Blohm and Hearn, P.A. 
131 North Gadsden Street (32301) 
Post Office Box 1547 (32302) 
Tallahassee, Florida 
www.meyerbrookslaw.com 
(850) 878-5212 
(850) 656-6750 (Facsimile) 

Confidential Note: 
The information contained in this transmission is legally privileged and confidential, intended only for the use of the 
individual or entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that 
any dissemination, distribution or copy of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you received this communication in 
error, please notify us immediately by calling us at (888) 848-5212 and then deleting the message. Thank you. 

1 



0 C) 
MEYER, BROOKS, BLOHM AND HEARN, P.A. 

RONALD G. MEYER 

THOMAS W. BROOKS, RETIRED 

JENNIFER S. BLOHM 
LYNN C. HEARN 
ADAMW. WOOD 

ALEX VILLALOBOS 

OF COUNSEL 

ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

131 NORTH GADSDEN STREET 
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32301 

www.meyerbrookslaw.com 
850/878-5212 

March 9, 2020 

VIA E-MAIL - fec@myfloridalegal.com 

Chair and Members 
Florida Elections Commission 
107 West Gaines Street 
Collins Building, Suite 224 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1050 

MAILINO ADDRESS: 

POST OFFJCll Box 1547 
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32302 

FAX: 850/656-6750 
EMAIL: jblohm@meyerbrookslaw.com 

LYNNT. THOMAS, FRP 
PARALEGAL 

Re: Complainant's Response to Respondent's Amended Motion for Attorney's Fees­
FEC 19-516 and FEC 19-519: Respondent Rob Robinson 

Dear Commissioners: 

This firm represents the Complainant, Darlene Bradley, in the above-referenced matter. 
On September 9, 2019, Ms. Bradley submitted a complaint against the Respondent, Rob 
Robinson, who was a candidate for Davenport Mayor. Ms. Bradley also was a candidate for 
Davenport Mayor. On October 8, 2019, the complaint was dismissed as legally insufficient. The 
Respondent filed a motion for attorney's fees on December 1, 2019.1 Ms. Bradley filed a 
response to the motion on February 28, 2020. The Respondent then filed an amended motion for 
attorney's fees on March 4, 2020. 

Ms. Bradley relies on her initial response to the Respondent's motion and files this 
supplemental response simply to address the Respondent's attempts in the amended motion to fix 
the insufficiencies in that motion. Respondent's second attempt also fails to state a legally 
sufficient motion for fees and therefore, should be dismissed pursuant to Rule 2B-1.0045, Florida 
Administrative Code. 

1 Ms. Bradley is not sure why there are two FEC case numbers (FEC 19-516 and FEC 19-519) for this complaint. 
She only filed one complaint against the Respondent Robinson. She believes that the FEC decided a statement in 
the complaint was a request to expedite and that the FEC gave the complaint a new case number when it expedited 
the complaint. Ms. Bradley was not aware of this until she received an additional dismissal under the new case 
number on October 29, 2019. 
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Florida Elections Commission 
March 9, 2020 
Page Two 

0 

The motion for fees was filed pursuant to section 106.265( 6), Florida Statutes, which 
authorizes an award of fees if the respondent can prove that the complaint was filed ''with 
knowledge that the complaint contains one or more false allegations or with reckless disregard 
for whether the complaint contains false allegations of fact material to a violation of this 
chapter or chapter 104." (emphasis added). Rule 2B-l.0045, Florida Administrative Code, 
governs the award of attorneyts fees. The rule requires the petition for attorney's fees to "state 
with particularity the facts and. grounds that prove entitlement to costs and attorney's fees." At a 
hearing, the Florida Elections Commission shall detennine the sufficiency of the petition and if 
the Commission finds the petition insufficient, it will dismiss the petition. 

The Respondent tries to assign malicious intent by Ms. Bradley because she asked for 
hefty fines and removal from office if the Respondent violated the Election Code and filed her 
complaint close to when Respondent was sworn in as President of the Ri~ge League of Cities. 
Neither of these allegations rises to the level of particularity needed for a sufficient motion for 
attorney's fees. Had the Respondent been found to have violated the Election Code, he would 
have been subject to penalties. Ms. Bradley stating those in her complaint is not malicious intent 
and to find that it was would subject almost every complainant to an attorney's fees award. 
Additionally, Ms. Bradley did not publicize her complaint or otherwise interfere in Respondent's 
assumption to the presidency of the Ridge League of Cities. Respondent has not alleged any 
particular facts in the original motion or the amended motion that Ms. Bradley attempted to 
injure his reputation by the filing of the complaint. 

The Respondent attempts to fix his original motion by now adding a conclusory 
statement that Ms. Bradley's factual statements in Counts 4 and 6 were false, but 'in reality, the 
Respondent's claims remain that Ms. Bradley misinterpreted section 106.08(5), Florida Statutes 
and section 106.15, Florida Statutes. Respondent is not truly alleging that her factual statements 
are false, but that she misinterpreted the law. Ms. Bradley in the complaint stated that the 
Respondent had received several contributions from a developer and his companies that all 
shared the same address and felt that this violated the prohibition against giving in the name of 
another. She also stated that the Respondent held TV interviews about his campaign in a 
government building which she believed violated section 106.15. The factual statements in these 
allegations are not false and the Respondent does not argue that they are. Instead, in his motion 
for fees, the Respondent argues that he is entitled to fees because she misinterpreted the law and 
did not allege legally sufficient violations of the law. Therefore, the Respondent's claims in the 
motion for attorney's fees are legally insufficient since they fail to allege that Ms. Bradley's 
factual statements were false. See Hadeed v. State, 208 So. 3d 782 (Fla. 1st DCA 
2016)(affirming the Commission on Ethics' denial of fees because the complaint did not contain 
false allegations of fact material to a violation of the Code). 

A grant of attorney's fees is reserved for those cases where the complainant provides 



( ) 

Florida Elections Commission 
March 9, 2020 
Page Two 

() 

false factual allegations that are _material to a violation of Chapter 104 or Chapter 106. See 
Yates; Hadeed. It is not for cases such as this one where the complainant submits truthful factual 
allegations, but misinterprets the law. Such a holding would chill speech and preclude lay 

. citizens from utilizing the complaint process. Accordingly, Ms. Bradley respectfully requests 
that the FEC dismiss the motion for attorney's fees filed against her by the Respondent. 

. Sinc;,rely y::, . S, L 
ennifer S. Blohm 

cc: Mr. Tim Vaccaro, Executive Director (via email) 
Ms. Donna Malphurs, Agency Clerk ( via email) 
Mr. Fred Reilly, Esquire (via email) 



Donna Malphurs 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

() 0 

Fred Reilly <fredreilly@attorney-solicitor.com> 
Wednesday, March 4, 2020 10:51 PM 
Donna Malphurs; jblohm@meyerbrookslaw.com 
FEC Cases 19-514, 19-515, 19-516, 19-518 and 19-519 
Lynch AmendedMotionlepley03042020.pdf; Robinson AmendedMotionLepley 19 515 
03042020.pdf; Robinson AmendedMotionBradley 19 516 03042020.pdf; Robinson 
AmendedMotionlepley 19 518 03042020.pdf; Robinson AmendedMotionBradley 19 
519 03042020.pdf 

Re: FEC Cases 19-514, 19-515, 19-516, 19-518 and 19-519 

Hi Donna, 

Attached to this email please find the Amended Motion for Attorney's Fees in relation to FEC Cases 19-514, 
19-515, 19-516, 19-518 and 19-519. 

I respectfully request that these Amended Motions be included in the Agenda packet for the next Commission 
meeting. 

Please contact me if you have any questions. Thanks. 

Very truly yours, 

Fred Reilly* 
Reilly International Law Firm, P. A .. 
P. 0 . Box 2039 
Haines City, FL 33845 USA 
Tel .. (310) 927-3954 

Fax. (863) 439-5077 
Skype: fred.reilly 
Email : fredreilly@attorney-solicitor.com 
Website: www.attorney-solicitor.com 

*Licensed to practice In California, Florida and as an English Solicitor. Admitted to practice before the United 
' , 

States Supreme Court and the United States Court of International Trade. Awarded Masters degree (LL.M. in 
International Business Law) from The London School of Economics and Political Science. · 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: This transmission contains legal advice that is privileged, confidential and exempt from 
disclosure under applicable law. If you are not the intended re~ipient, you are hereby notified that any 

disclosure, photocopying or distribution of the contents is unauthorized and prohibited. If you have received 
this in error, please notify the sender Immediately and destroy all copies. 
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FLORIDA ELECTIONS COMMISSION 

COMPLAINANT: DARLENE BRADLEY 

RESPONDENT: H.B. "ROB" ROBINSON 

CASE NO. FEC 19-519 

AMENDED MOTION FOR ATTORNEY'S FEES 

COMES NOW, the Respondent, H. B. "ROB" ROBINSON, by and through his 

undersigned attorney, files this Amended Motion for Attorney's Fees pursuant to Section 

106.265(6), Florida Statutes, against the Complainant, Darlene Bradley, and states as follows: 

Preliminary Matters 

A. The Complainant, Darlene Bradley shall be referred to as "Bradley" in this Response. 

B. The Respondent, H. B. "Rob" Robinson shall be referred to as "Robinson" in this 

Response. 

C. The Florida Elections Commission Complaint No. 19-519 filed by Bradley against 

Robinson (dated September 9, 2019) shall be referred to as the "Complaint" in this Response. 

D. Robinson filed a Response to the Complaint on September 29, 2019. 

E. The Florida Elections Commission determined that (all counts in) Complaint No. 19-

519 were "Legally Insufficient" and the case has been closed. 

Robinson AmendedMotionBradley 19 519 03042020 



() () 

Legal Basis for Amended Motion 

The Respondent, H. B. "Rob" Robinson, respectfully requests a finding against Darlene 

Bradley pursuant to Section 106.265 ( 6), Florida Statutes, and that Darlene, B_radley shall be 

liable for costs and reasonable attorney's fees incurred in the defense of the person complained 

against, and states as follows: 

A. Section 106.265 (6), Florida Statutes, states as follows: 

In any case in which the commission determines that a person has filed a 
complaint against another person with a malicious intent to injure the reputation 
of the person complained against by filing the complaint with knowledge that the 
complaint contains one or more false allegations or with reckless disregard for 
whether the complaint contains false allegations of fact material to a violation of 
this chapter or chapter 104, the complainant shall be liable for costs and 
reasonable attorney's fees incurred in the defense of the person complained 
against, including the costs and reasonable attorney's fees incurred in proving 
entitlement to and the amount of costs and fees. If the complainant fails to pay 
such costs and fees voluntarily within 30 days following such finding by the 
commission, the commission shall forward such information to the Department of 
Legal Affairs, which shall bring a civil action in a court of competent jurisdiction 
to recover the amount of such costs and fees awarded by the commission. 

B. The Respondent's Amended Motion provides a legally sufficient basis under Section 

106.265(6), Florida Statutes, and Rule 2B-1.0045, F.A.C. The elements required (by Brown v. 

State, 969 So. 2d 553,560 (Fla. 151 DCA 2007)) to prove an entitlement to attorney's fees are: 

()) The complaint was made with a malicious intent to injure the official's 

reputation: 

(2) the person filing the complaint knew that the statements made about the 

official were false or made the statements about the official with reckless 

disregard for the truth; and 

(3) the statements were material. 

2 
Robinson AmendedMotionBraclley 19 519 03042020 



Factual Basis for Amended Motion 

C. Malicious Intent to Injure the Official's Reputation. 

In the Complainant's Response to Respondent's Motion for Attorney's Fees, 

Complainant's counsel states: 

" ... there was no malicious intent on Ms. Bradley's part. Ms. Bradley did not publicize 

the filing of the complaint, but kept it confidential. She has not spoken publicly about the 

complaint and has not tried to use it for any type of political advantage. She brought the 

complaint in good faith based on inaccuracies and violations she felt existed in the Respondent's 

campaign advertising and campaign practices." 

Bradley's Complaint was filed on or about September 9, 2019. The City of Davenport's 

municipal election was held on April 2, 2019. The Complaint was obviously not used by Bradley 

for an advantage in the April 2, 2019 municipal election, but the timing of the Complaint is 

crucial to determining whether there was a malicious intent to injure Robinson's reputation. 

In the Complaint, Bradley asserted that Robinson violated provisions of Chapter 104 and 

I 06, Bradley expressly referred to third degree felony penalties that would result in a person 

being "disqualified to hold office," and Bradley specifically stated: "Florida Statutes penalize 

these violations with hefty fines and removal from office." Coincidentally, Robinson was sworn 

in as President of the Ridge League of Cities in early September 2019 and Robinson would be 

obligated to relinquish this position if he was subsequently disqualified to hold office. 

Bradley's stated desire for "hefty fines and removal from office" is clear evidence of 

Bradley's malicious. intent to injure the reputation of Robinson. 

3 
Robinson AmendedMotionBradley 19 519 03042020 
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D. Statements were false or made with reckless disregard for the truth. 

The Complaint filed by Bradley was clearly intended to injure the reputation of 

Robinson. Bradley's Complaint included the following statements: 

i. Count 3(i) of the Complaint - Allegation that Robinson violated Section 104.271 by 

stating that "Darlene Bradley charged with 2 felonies and a misdemeanor." Bradley was in fact 

charged with two (2) felonies and a misdemeanor. Therefore, Robinson's statement was factually 

accurate. The allegation by Bradley that Robinson's factually accurate statement violated Section 

104.271 is false or made with reckless disregard for whether the Complaint contains false 

allegations of fact material to a violation of chapter 104. 

ii. Count 4 of the Complaint - Allegation that Robinson violated Section 106.08 (5). 

Bradley alleged that Robinson violated Section 106.08(5): 

"Rennie Heath (Developer) gave $5,000 in campaign donations to Rob Robinson as 
reported in his campaign financial report M2 for period 3/2 - 3/15/19. Attachment K. Mr. 
Robinson listed 5 different entities for Mr. Rennie Heath with the same address listing 
$1,000 contribution for each entity, exceeding the amount allowed in a municipal 
election." 

This allegation by Bradley is false or made with reckless disregard for whether the Complaint 

contains false allegations of fact material to a violation of chapter 106 because a corporation or 

limited liability company constitutes a "person" (as defined by Section 106.011 (14), Florida 

Statutes), 

iii. Count 6 of the Complaint - Allegation that Robinson violated Section 106.15, Florida 

Statutes, by "Campaigning in government facilities." 

Section 106.15( 4) prohibits solicitation of or accepting any political contribution in a 

government building. Subsection (4) states: 

4 
Robinson AmendedMotionBradley 19 519 03042020 
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No person shall make and no person shall solicit or knowingly accept any 
political contribution in a building owned by a governmental entity. For purposes 
of this subsection, "accept" means to receive a contribution by personal hand 
delivery from a contributor or the contributor's agent. This subsection shall not 
apply when a government-owned building or any portion thereof is rented for the 
specific purpose of holding a campaign fund raiser. 

Bradley's alleged that Robinson was "campaigning in government facilities" in violation 

of Section 106. I 5 when he "commandeered the Davenport Commission Chambers during normal 

business hours to conduct two (2) tv interviews to promote his campaign, "integrity"." Bradley's 

allegation is false or made with reckless disregard for whether the Complaint contains false 

allegations of fact material to a violation of chapter 106 because Robinson conducting tv 

interviews in a government facility is clearly not a violation of Section 106.15( 4). 

E. Statements were material. 

Bradley's statements in the Complaint that Robinson violated Sections 104.271, 

I 06.08(5), and I 06.15( 4) were false or made with reckless disregard for the .truth and are 

material to the issues raised by the Complaint. 

Conclusion 

Robinson retained legal counsel to defend his sterling reputation in the community 

against the allegations of Bradley's Complaint. Section 106.265( 6) expressly authorizes a claim 

for attorney's fees and costs in any case in which the commission determines that a person has 

filed a complaint against another person with knowledge that the complaint contains one or 

more false allegations or with reckless disregard for whether the complaint contains false 

allegations of fact material to a violation of chapter l 06 or chapter 104. This Amended Motion 

presents a prima facie basis for such relief based on Section 106.265(6). 

5 
Robinson AmendedMotionBradley 19 519 03042020 
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WHEREFORE, H.B. "Rob" Robinson respectfully requests that the Commission make 

a finding against Darlene Bradley pursuant to ~ection 106.265(6), Florida Statutes, and that 

Darlene Bradley shall be liable for costs and reasonable attorney's fees incurred in the defense of 

Robinson. 

Respectfully submitted this 4th day of March, 2020. 

Fred Reilly 
Fred Reilly, Esquire 
Florida Bar No. 607800 
Reilly International Law Firm, P.A. 
P. 0. Box 2039 
Haines City, FL 33845 USA 
Tel. (310) 927-3954 
Email: fredreilly@attorney-solicitor.com 
Attorney for H. B. "Rob" Robinson 

CERTIFICATION 

· I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of this Amended Motion for Attorney's Fees 

was sent to the Florida Elections Commission via email (fec@myfloridalegal.com) and Jennifer 

Blohm, Esquire via email (jblohm@meyerbrooks.com) this 4th day of March, 2019. 

Fred Reilly 
Fred Reilly, Esquire 

6 
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Donna Malphurs · 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

0 

Donna Malphurs 
Monday, March 2, 2020 1:11 PM 
Fred Reilly 

0 

Subject: RE: FEC 19-514; 19-515; 19-516; 19'-518 and 19-519 

Please submit your responses no later than Wednesday. Thanks. 

Thanks, 

Cl)on,n.a, 

From: Fred Reilly <fredreilly@attorney-solicitor.com> 
Sent: Sunday, March 1, 2020 4:41 PM 
To: Donna Malphurs <Donna.Malphurs@myfloridalegal.com> 
Cc: Linda Robinson <myhcwcd@gmail.com>; rconstruction16@aol.com 
Subject: Fw: FEC 19-514; 19-515; 19-516; 19-518 and 19-519 

RE: FEC 19-514; 19:515; 19-516; 19-518 and 19-519 

Hi Donna, 

Since these documents were provided to me after 5:00 P.M. on Friday, February 28, 2020, am I able to provide 
Amen'ded Petitions for Attorney's Fees on Monday, March 2, 2020 which would be included in the Agenda 
package for the Committ.ee members? Please let me know. Thanks. 

Very truly yours, 

Fred Reilly* 
Reilly International Law Firm, P.A .. 

P. 0 . Box 2039 
Haines City, FL 33845 USA 
Tel. (310) 927-3954 
Fax. (863) 439-5077 

Skype:' fred .reilly 
Email : fredreilly@attorney-solicitor.com 

Website: www.attorney-solicitor.com 

*Licensed to practice in California, Florida and as an English Solicitor. Admitted to practice before the United 
States Supreme Court and the United States Court of International Trade. Awarded Masters degree (LL.M. in 

International Business Law) from The London School of Economics and Political Science. 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: This transmission contains legal advice that Is privileged, confidential and exempt from 

disclosure under applicable law. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any 
disclosure, photocopying or distribution of the contents is unauthorized and prohibited. If you have received 
this in error, please notify the sender immediately and destroy all copies. 
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From: Donna Malphurs <Donna.Malphurs@myfloridalegal.com> 
Sent: Friday, February 28, 2020 5:46 PM 
To: Fred Reilly <fredreilly@attorney-sollcltor.com> 
Subject: FEC 19-514; 19-515; 19-516; 19-518 and 19-519 

Dear Mr. Reilly, 

The Florida Elections Commission received responses from attorney Jennifer S. Blohm to your petitions for fees and 
costs in the above noted cases. Attached is a copy of her responses for your review. A copy was also mailed to you 
today. 

If you have any questions, please let me know. 

Sincerely, 

q)OMWI,~~ 
Agency Clerk/Public Information Officer 
Florida Elections Commission . 

Main. line: 850-922-4~39 
Direct Dial: 850-404-5609 

2 



() 0 
·Florida Elections Commission 

February 28, 2020 

Fred Reilly 

107 West Gaines Street, Suite 224 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1050 
Telephone: (850) 922-4539 · Facsimile: (850) 921-0783 

FEC@myfloridalegat.com · www.fec.state.fl.us 

Reilly International Law Firm, P.A. 
Post Office Box 2039 
Haines City, FL 33845 

RE: Case No.: FEC 19-519; Respondent: Rob Robinson 

Dear Mr. Reilly : 

The Florida Elections Commission received a notice of appearance from Jennifer S. Blohm and 
her response to your Petition for Attorney's Fees and ·Costs in this case. A copy of Ms. Blohm's 
notice and response is enclosed for your review. 

If you have any questions, please contact the Florida Elections Commission at 
fec@myfloridalegal.com. 

Sincerely, 

&~~~ 
Agency Clerk 

/dam 
Enclosure: Notice of Appearance and Response to Petition for Fees 
cc: Jennifer S. Blohm, Attorney for Complainant (w/out encl.) 

L to C w Pet for Fees 



~ tJER, BROOKS, BLOHM AND H1()N, P~A. 

RONAl,D G. MEYER 
THOMAS W . BROOKS, RETIRED 

JENNIFER S. 8LOJIM 

LYNN C. HEARN 

ADAM w. Wooo 

ALIJX VILLALOBOS 

OF COUNSEi. 

ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

131 NORTH GADSDEN STREET 
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32301 

www.meyerbrookslaw.com 
850/878-5212 

February 28, 2020 · 

VIA HAND DELIVERY AND E-MAIL - fec@myfloridale2al.com 

Chair and Members 
Florida Elections Commission 
107 West Gaines Street 
Collins Building, Suite 224 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1050 

M AILING ADDRESS: 

POSTOFFICE80X 1547 
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32302 

FAX: 850/656-6750 
EMAIL: jblohm@meye1brookslaw.com 

LYNNT. TuOMAS, FRP 
PARALEGAL 

Re: Complainant's Response to Respondent's Motion for Attorney's Fees - FEC 19-
516 and FEC 19:..519: Respondent Rob Robinson 

Dear Commissioners: 

This finn represents the Complainant, Darlene Bradley, in the above-referenced matter. 
On September 9, 2019, Ms. Bradley submitted a complaint against the Respondent, Rob 
Robinson, who was a candidate for Davenport Mayor. Ms. Bradley also was a candidate for a 
Davenport Mayor. On October 8, 2019, the complaint was dismissed as legally insufficient. The 
Respondent filed a motion for attorney's fees on December 1, 2019.1 

The niotion for fees was filed pursuant to section 106.265( 6), Florida Statutes, which 
authorizes an award of fees if the respondent can prove that the complaint was filed "with 
knowledge that the complaint contains one or more false allegations or with reckless disregard 
for whether the complaint contains false allegations of fact material to a violation of this 
chapter or chapter 104." (emphasis added). Rule 2B-l.0045, Florida Administrative· Code, 
governs the award of attorney's fees. The rule requires the petition for attorney's fees to "state 
with particularity the facts and grounds that prove entitlement to costs and attorney's fees." At a 
hearing, the Florida Elections Commission shall determine the sufficiency of the petition and if 
the Commission finds the petition insufficient, it will dismiss the petition. 

1 Ms. Bradley is not sure why there are two FEC case numbers (FEC 19-516 and FEC 19-519) for this complaint. 
She only filed one complaint against the Respondent Robinson. She believes that the FEC decided a statement in 
the complaint was a request to expedite and that the FEC gave the complaint a new case number when it expedited 
the complaint. Ms. Bradley was not aware of this until she received an additional dismissal under the new case 
number on October 29, 2019. 
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The Respondent's motion does not provide a legally sufficient basis under rule 2B­
l.0045 or section 106.265(6). Because the attorney's fee provision under the Code of Ethics is 
nearly identical to section 106.265(6), cases interpreting the ethics provision are used in 
interpreting section 106.265(6). See Yates v. Shure, FEC 16-362, DOAH 17-1593F, PO 17-
358W (FEC Dec. 15, 2017). In Brown v. State, 969 So. 2d 553, 560 (Fla. 1st DCA 2007), the 
court set forth the elements required to prove an entitlement to attorney's fees: "(1) the 
complaint was made with a malicious intent to injure· the official's reputation; (2) the person 
filing the complaint knew that the statements made about the official were false or made the 
statements about the official with reckless disregard for the truth; and (3) the statements were 
material." The Respondent has not met any of these elements. Other than a conclusory 
statement that Ms. Bradley made the complaint with malicious intent to injure Respondent's 
reputation, he does not state with particularity the facts and grounds supporting the conclusion. 
This is because there was no malicious intent on Ms. Bradley's part. Ms. Bradley did not 
publicize the filing of the complaint, but kept it confidential. She has not publicly spoken about 
the complaint or tried to use it for any type of political advantage. She brought the complaint in 
good faith based on inaccuracies and violations she felt existed in the Respondent's campaign 
advertising and campaign practices. 

Davenport is a small city where everyone knows each other. Ms. Bradley and the 
Respondent have known each other for years. Because of this familiarity, the Respondent's 
statement in advertising that Ms. Bradley was charged with two felonies and a misdemeanor 
struck her as a clear attempt to falsely misrepresent her record to the voters. It is for this reason 
that she alleged in her complaint that the Respondent's statement was false and a violation of 
section 104.271, Florida Statutes. Ms. Bradley knew that the Respondent was well aware that 
although she was charged with two felonies and a misdemeanor, those charges were dropped and 
she paid a $250 fine for using a handicap placard. To state in advertising only that she was 
charged and not also state that the charges were dropped was a false statement to Ms. Bradley. It 
was especially hard to take since Respondent was aware that Ms. Bradley had been car jacked 
which led to her fear of parking far away from a building at night and her use of the handicap 
placard. While a half-truth may be insufficient to establish a violation of section 104.271, Ms. 
Bradley who is not an attorney should not be forced to pay attorney's fees for legitimately 
believing that the failure to tell the whole truth is a malicious and false statement against an 
opponent. 

The Respondent's remaining bases for attorney fees are that Ms. Bradley misinterpreted 
section 106.08(5), Florida Statutes and section 106.15, Florida Statutes. Respondent is not 
alleging that her factual statements are false, but that she misinterpreted the law. Ms. Bradley in 
the complaint stated that the Respondent had received several contributions from a developer and 
his companies that all shared the same address and felt that this violated the prohibition against 
giving in the name of another. She also stated that the Respondent held TV interviews about his 
campaign in a govermnent building which she believed violated section 106.15. The factual 
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statements in these allegations are not false and the Respondent does not argue that they are. 
Instead, in his motion for fees, the Re·spondent argues that he is entitled to fees because she 
misinterpreted the law and did not allege legally sufficient violations of the law. Therefore, the 
Respondent's claims in the motion for attorney's fees are legally insufficient since they fail to 
allege that Ms. Bradley's factual statements were false. See Hadeed v. State, 208 So. 3d 782 
(Fla. 181 DCA 2016)(affirming the Commission on Ethics' denial of fees because the complaint 
did not contain false allegations of fact material to a violation of the Code). 

Ms. Bradley is not a lawyer and although she has run for office, she is not an expert in 
election law. She did not file the complaint lo obtain an advantage over the Respondent or to 
publicize the complaint and injure the Respondent's reputation. She filed it because she was 
concerned about what she saw as wrongful campaign practices and which she believed were 
violative of the Election Code. She believed that the complaint process specifically existed for 
this purpose. ' 

A grant of attomey' s fees js reserved for those cases where the complainant provides 
false factual allegations that are material to a violation of Chapter 104 or Chapter 106. See 
Yates; Hadeed. It is not for cases such as this one where the complainant submits truthful factual 
allegations, but misinterprets the law. Such a holding would chill speech and preclude lay 
citizens from utilizing the complaint process. Accordingly, Ms. Bradley respectfully requests 
that the FEC dismiss the motion for attorney's fees filed against her by the Respondent. 

cc: Mr. Tim Vaccaro, Executive Director (via email) 
Ms. Donna Malphurs, Agency Clerk (via email) 



Donna Malphurs 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
Attachments; 

Jennifer S. Blohm <JBlohm@meyerbrookslaw.com> 
Friday, February 28, 2020 3:00 PM 
· Florida Elections Commission 
Timothy Vaccaro; Donna Malphurs 
Response to Motion for Attorney's Fees in Case Numbers FEC 19-516/FEC 19-519 
Response to Motion for Attorney's Fees- FEC 19-516 and 19-519.pdf 

Dear Mr. Vaccaro and Ms. Malphurs, 

I have attached the complainant's, Darlene Bradley's, response to the Respondent's Motion for Attorney's Fees. The 
motion is scheduled for the March 24-25 meeting of the Commission. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have 
any questions. Thank you. 

Sincerely, 
Jennifer 

Jennifer S. Blohm 
Meyer, Brooks, Blohm and Hearn,- P.A. 
131 North Gadsden Street (32301) 
Post Office Box 1547 (32302) 
Tallahassee, Florida 
www.meyerbrookslaw.com 
(850) 878-5212 
(850) 656-6750 (Facsimile) 

Confidential Note: 
The information contained in this transmission is legally privileged and confidential, intended only for the use of the 
individual or entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that 
any dissemination, distribution or copy of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you received this communication in 
error, please notify us immediately by calling us at (888) 848-5212 and th_en deleting the message. Thank you. 

1 
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MAILING ADDRESS: 
POST O FFIC!l .BOX 1547 

TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32302 

FAX: 850/656-6750 
b'MAIL: jblohm@meyerhrookslaw.com 

L YNN T.1)JOMAS, FRI' 
PARALEGAL 

l{c ( omplainunt) Response to Respondent's Motion for Attorney's Fees - FEC 19-
5.1 ( i and Fl~C I 9-5 19; Respondent Rob Robinsoq 

I k ar Cnn 1111 iss1oncrs: 

This linn represent:-,; the Complainant, Darlene Bradley, in the above-referenced matter. 
un Septcrnbt::r 9, 20 19, Ms. Bradley submitted a complaint· against the Respondent, Rob 
l{nhins1111, who Wi1:-l a candidate for Davenport Mayor. Ms. Bradley also was a candidate for a 
I >ave11porl Ma.ynr. On Oclober 8, 2019, tl1e complaint was dismissed as legally insufficient. The 
l{cspo11dl:111 likd il nio tion for attorney's fees on December 1, 2019.1 

T he 111otion for Ices was file<l pursuant to section 106.265(6), Florida Statutes, which 
a11fllor i1.cs m1 award of fee.s if the respondent can prove that the complaint was filed "with 
know ledge that the complaint contains one or more fa lse allegations or. with reckless disregard 
for w l1dlter Ih0 complai nt contains false allegations of' fact materiru, to a violation of this 
d 1apll:r or cllilpter 104." (cn1phas is added). Rule 2B-l.0045, Florida Administrative Code, 
governs fhc ,1wanl of attorney's foes. The rnle requires the petition for attorney's fees to "state 
wi1h part icularity the foets and grounds that p_rove entitlement to costs and attorney's foes.'' At a 
lt,·:inng, the Florida lilcctions Cornrnission shall determine the sufficiency of the petition and if 
tltc- ( '0111111ission finds 1he petition insufficient, it will dismiss the petition. 

1 Ms. lhmfky i~ uut sure why 11tere 11rc 1wo FEC ,;ase m1rnbers (FEC 19·5 16 1111d FBC 19-519) for this complaint. 
Sh,, unly l'itd u11e <;i,rnpluint against the Respondent Robinson. She believes tbal 1he FEC decided a statement in 
tlw ,:nmpla11,1 w«.s a 1<>q11e:~t lo expedi1c ;utd that the fEC guve the complaint a new case number when it expedited 
iii,· n ,mphu 111. Ms. Bnidfey was 1101 aware of lhis un1il she received an additional dismissal under the new case 
1u1111h,:1 1111 Uciohn ·2•.>. .>.o 19 
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Tlte Respondent's motion does not provide a legally sufficient basis under rule 2B-
_UO-I 'i -or Sl:c1io11 I 06.265( 6). lfocause the attorney's foe provision under the Code of Ethics is 

lll'ilrl y idenlil:al tu section l 06.265( 6), cases interpreting the ethics provision are used in 
1111e1p1t:1i11g st:.l'lion 106.26.'i(<i). See Yates v. Shure, FEC 16-362, DOAH 17-l593F, PO 17-
l'iHW (l•B' l>ec. I\ 2017). 111 Hrown v. State, 969 So. 2d 553, 560 (Fla. !tit DCA 2007), the 
rnurt sel forth the elements r1;:quircd to prove an entitlement to attorney's foes: "(l) the 
n>mplai11t was 111a(le with a malicious intent to injure the official's reputation; (2) the person 
ltli11g th<: complaint knew that the statements made about the official were false or made the 
.•:takments about the official with reckless disregard for the truth; and (3) the statements were 
matcnal." The Respondent has not met any of these elements. Other than a conclusory 
statement that Ms. Bradley made the complaint with malicious intent to injure Respondent's 
n.:p11ta1io11, he does not state with particularity the facts and grounds supporting the conclusion. 
This is because tlwre was no malicious intent on Ms. Bradley's part. Ms. Bradley did not 
puhlici:t.e the filing of the complaint, but kept it confidential. She has not publicly spoken about 
the l·omplaint or tried to use it fix any type of political advantage, She brought the complaint in 
goud ti1itl1 based on inaccuracies and violations she felt existed in the Respondent's campaign 
advntislllg aud campaign practices. 

l)avc11port is a small city where everyone knows each other. Ms. Bradley and the 
l<t.:spo11dcnt have known each other for years. Because of this familiarity, the Respondent's 
~;talcmcnl m advL:rtising that Ms. Bradley was charged with two felonies and a misdemeanor 
stn1ck lll~r as a elem attempt to falsely misrepresent her record to the voters. It is for this reason 
llw1 she alleged in her complaint that the Respondent's statement was false and a violation of 
sL,d ton I 04.::>7 I, FIDrida Statutes. Ms. Bradley knew that the Respondent was well aware that 
although she was charged with two felonies and a misdemeanor, those charges were dropped and 
she paid c1 $~':-iO line for using a handicap placard. To state in advertising only that she was 
charged all(! nol also state that the charges were·dropped was a false statement to Ms. Bradley. It 
was especially hard lo take since Respondent was aware that Ms. Bradley had been car jacked 
which led lo het k:a1 of parking for away from a bnilding at night and her use of the handicap 
placard. While a hatl~truth may be insufficient to establish a violation of section 104.271, Ms. 
ll1 c1dln· who is not an attorney should not be forced to pay attorney's foes for legitimately 
hd1n111g tlrnt lite failure to tell the whole truth is a malicious and false statement against an 
"Pl )UIH'Jil. 

1'11c l~espumlenl's remuining bases for attorney fees are that Ms. Bradley misinterpreted 
'iVL:ti011 10(>.0H('.i), Florida Statutes and section 106.15, Florida Statutes. Respondent is not 
alleging that her litctual statements are false, but that she misinterpreted the law. Ms. Bradley in 
lite wlllplaint stated that· the Respondent had received several contributions from a developer and 
111s cu111panies that all shared the same address and felt that this violated the prohibition against 
gi vi11g i11 the name of another. She also stated that the Respondent held TV interviews about his 
1·a111paig11 in a government building which she believed violated section 106.15. The factual 
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staternt:ols in 11,csc alkgalions are not false and the Respondent does not argue that they are. 
Instead, in !tis 11H1tion for foes, the Respondent argnes that he is entitled to foes because sl1e 
1111si1111.:rprdcd the law and did .not allege kgally sufficient violations of the law. Therefore,.the 
h'.espo 11de11l ' s dai111s in lhe motion for attorney's fees are legally insufficient since they fa il to 
allege 1ha1. Ms. Brndky's factual statements were false. See rladeed v. Srate, 208 So. 3d 782 
(Fl a. 1s1 l)CA 1016)(alllrming the Commission on Ethics' denial of fees because the complaint 
did 1101 contai n false allegations of fact matei-ial to a violation of the Code). 

Ms. Bradley is nol c1 lawyer and although she has run lt)r office, she,.is not an expert in 
ekdion lm.v. She did not file the complaint to obtain an advantage over the Respondent or to 
pulll ici,.e the L'omplaint and injure the Respondent's reputation. She filed it because she was 
,.:011ccr11e d ahoul what she Sll\1/ us wrongful campaign practices and which she believed were 
violative of' the Elcl:lio11 Code. She believed that the complaint process specifically existed for 
I liis pu rposG. 

/\ grant (>I auorney's foes is reserved for those cases where the complainant provides 
1·alse li1c1ual allegat ious that are material to a violation of Ch apter I 04 or Chapter I 06. See 
r, ,r,,s: I lttdt!ed. II is nol for l :aSt.)8 such as this one where the complainant submits truthful factual 
;dkga lions, but misinterprets the law. Such a holding would chill speech and preclude la.y 
( :i l11.cn15 fro111 utilizing lhc l.'.omplainl process. Accordingly, Ms. Bradley respectfully requests 
Ilia! th1: H ;( · disrniss Ille motion for attorney's fees tiled against her by the Respondent. 

t:c: Mr. Tim Val;caro, Exeu1tivc Director (via email) 
M:,. Donm1 Malphurs, Agency Clerk (via email) 
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Florida Elections Commission 

December 3, 2019 

107 West Gaines Street, Suite 224 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1050 
Telephone: (850) 922-4539 · Facsimile; (850) 921-0783 

FEC@myfloridaJegal.com · www.fec,state,fl.us 

CERTIFIED MAIL # 92148969009997901631253558 

Darlene Bradley 
PO Box 2791 
Davenport, FL 33836 

RE: Case No.: FEC 19-519; Respondent: Rob Robinson 

Dear Ms. Bradley: 

The Florida Elections Commission received a Petition for Attorney's Fees and Costs in this case. 
Pursuant to Rule 2B-1.0045, Florida Administrative Code, a copy· of the Petition is enclosed for 
your review. 

At its next regularly scheduled meeting, currently set for March 24-25, 2020, in Tallahassee, 
Florida, the Commission will review the Petition and determine' whether it states·"a prima facie 
case for costs and attorney's fees." A notice of hearing will be provided at the appropriate time. 

If you have any questions concerning the Petition, please contact the Florida Elections 
Commission at fec@myfloridalegal.com. 

Sincerely, 

&~ ~ ~ 
Agency Clerk 

/dam 
Enclosure: Petition for Attorney's Fees and Costs 
cc: Fred Reilly, Attorney for Respondent · 

L to C w Pet for Fees 
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, '••- Bradley v. Robinson (FEC No. 19-519) - Motion for Attorney's FeesFred Reilly to: Florida 
(\' ''~. ) Elections Commission 12/01/2019 08:53 PM 

, From: "Fred Reilly" <fredreilly@attorney-solicitor.com> 
:~ To: "Florida Elections Commission" <fec@myfloridalegal.com> 

History:This message has been replied to. 
1 Attachment 

RobinsonMotionBradley 19 519 12012019.docx 

Re: Bradley v. Robinson (FEC No. 19-519) - Motion for Attorney's Fees 

ATTN: Donna Malphurs 

Hi Donna, 

Attached please find the Motion for Attorney's Fees in regards to the above-captioned case. 

Please contact me if you have any questions. Thanks. 

Very truly yours, 

Fred Reilly* 
Reilly International Law Firm, P.A .. 
P. 0. Box 2039 
Haines City, FL 33845 USA 
Tel. (310) 927-3954 
Fax. (863) 439-5077 
Skype: fred.reilly 
Email: fredreilly@attorney-solicitor.com 
Website: www.attorney-solicitor.com 

*Licensed to practice in California, Florida and as an English Solicitor. Admitted to practice before the 
United States Supreme Court and the United States Court of International Trade. Awarded 
Masters degree (LL.M. in International Business Law) from The London School of Economics and 
Political Science. 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: This transmission contains legal advice that is privileged, confidential and 
exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby 
notified that any disclosure, photocopying or distribution of the contents is unauthorized and 
prohibited. If you have received this in error, please notify the sender immediately and destroy all 
copies. 

file:// IC :/U sers/MalphursD/ AppData/Local/Temp/notes5D3EFE/~web3 778 .htm 12/2/2019 
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FLORIDA ELECTIONS COMMISSION 

COMPLAINANT: DARLENE BRADLEY 

RESPONDENT: H.B. "ROB" ROBINSON 

CASE NO. FEC 19-519 

MOTION FOR ATTORNEY'S FEES 

COMES NOW, the Respondent, H. B. "ROB" ROBINSON, by and through his 

undersigned attorney, files this Motion for Attorney's Fees pursuant to Section 106.265(6), 

Florida Statutes, against the Complainant, Darlene Bradley, and states as follows: 

Preliminary Matters 

A. The Complainant, Darlene Bradley shall be referred to as "Bradley" in this Response. 

B. The Respondent, H.B. "Rob" Robinson shall be referred to as "Robinson" in this 

Response. 

C. The Florida Elections Commission Complaint No. 19-519 filed by Bradley against 

Robinson (dated September 9, 2019) shall be referred to as the "Complaint" in this Response. 

D. Robinson filed a Response to the Complaint on September 29, 2019. 

E. The Florida Elections Commission determined that (all counts in) Complaint No. 19-

519 were "Legally Insufficient" and the case has been closed. 

1 
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Basis for Motion 

The Respondent, H. B. "Rob" Robinson, respectfully requests a finding against Darlene 

Bradley pursuant to Section 106.265 (6), Florida Statutes, and that Darlene Bradley shall be 

liable for costs and reasonable attorney's fees incurred in the defense of the person complained 

against, and states as follows: 

A. Section 106.265 (6), Florida Statutes, states as follows: 

In any case in which the commission determines that a person has filed a 
complaint against another person with a malicious intent to injure the reputation 
of the person complained against by filing the complaint with knowledge that the 
complaint contains one or more false allegations or with reckless disregard for 
whether the complaint contains false allegations of fact material to a violation of 
this chapter or chapter 104, the complainant shall be liable for costs and 
reasonable attorney's fees incurred in the defense of the person complained 
against, including the costs and reasonable attorney's fees incurred in proving 
entitlement to and the amount of costs and fees. If the complainant fails to pay 
such costs and fees voluntarily within 30 days following such finding by the 
commission, the commission shall forward such information to the Department of 
Legal Affairs, which shall bring a civil action in a court of competent jurisdiction 
to recover the amount of such costs and fees awarded by the commission. 

B. Robinson respectfully requests that the Commission make a finding that: 

i. Bradley filed the Complaint against Robinson with a malicious intent to injure 

Robinson's reputation by filing the Complaint with knowledge that the Complaint contains one 

or more false allegations or with reckless disregard for whether the Complaint contains false 

allegations of fact material to a violation of this chapter or chapter 104, and 

ii. Bradley shall be liable for costs and reasonable attorney's fees incurred in the defense 

of the person complained against, including the costs and reasonable attorney's fees incurred in 

proving entitlement to and the amount of costs and fees. 

2 
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C. The Complaint filed by Bradley was clearly intended to injure the reputation of 

Robinson. Bradley's Complaint included the following statements: 

i. Count 3(i) of the Complaint - Allegation that Robinson violated Section 104.271 by 

stating that "Darlene Bradley charged with 2 felonies and a misdemeanor." Since there is 

unequivocal evidence that Bradley was in fact charged with two (2) felonies and a misdemeanor, 

this allegation by Bradley is false or made with reckless disregard for whether the Complaint 

contains false allegations of fact material to a violation of chapter 104. 

ii. Count 4 of the Complaint - Allegation that Robinson violated Section 106.08 (5). 

Since there is unequivocal evidence that (i) Robinson fully complied with Section 106.08 (5), 

and (ii) the plain words of Bradley's allegation fundamentally disregard the fact that a 

corporation or limited liability company constitutes a "person" (as defined by Section 106.011 

(14), Florida Statutes), this allegation by Bradley is false or made with reckless disregard for 

whether the Complaint contains false allegations of fact material to a violation of chapter 106. 

iii. Count 6 of the Complaint- Allegation that Robinson violated Section 106.15. Since 

there is unequivocal evidence that (i) Robinson fully complied with Section 106.15, and (ii) the 

plain words of Bradley's allegation flagrantly misinterpret Section 106.15, Florida Statutes, this 

allegation by Bradley is false or made with reckless disregard for whether the Complaint 

contains false allegations of fact material to a violation of chapter 106. 

iv. "Mr. Robinson will stand for re-election at the beginning of 2020. The election is held 

the first Tuesday in April 2020. Resolution of this affidavit of complaint is urgent and crucial so 

that the citizens are not forced into either a special election of the commission appointing their 

own mayor." 

3 
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WHEREFORE, H.B. "Rob" Robinson respectfully requests that the Commission make 

a finding against Darlene Bradley pursuant to Section 106.265 ( 6), Florida Statutes, and that 

Darlene Bradley shall be liable for costs and reasonable attorney's fees incurred in the defense of 

Robinson. 

Respectfully submitted this 1st day of December, 2019. 

Fred Reilly 
Fred Reilly, Esquire 
Florida Bar No. 607800 
Reilly International Law Firm, P.A. 
P. 0. Box 2039 
Haines City, FL 33845 USA 
Tel. (310) 927-3954 
Email: fredreilly@attorney-solicitor.com 
Attorney for H.B. "Rob" Robinson 

CERTIFICATION 

I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of this Motion for Attorney's Fees was sent 

to the Florida Elections Commission via email (fec@myfloridalegal.com) this 1st day of 

December, 2019. 

Fred Reilly 
Fred Reilly, Esquire 
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Florida Elections Commission 

107 West Gaines Street, Suite 224 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1050 
Telephone: (850) 922-4539 · Facsimile: (850) 921-0783 

FEC@myflorjdaleK3Lcom · www.fec.state.tl.us 

November 26, 2019 

Fred Reilly 
Reilly International Law Finn, P.A. 
PO Box 2039 
Haines City, FL 33845 

RE: Case No.: 19-519; Respondent: Rob Robinson 

Dear Mr. Reilly: 

On October 29, 2019, the Florida Elections Commission notified Darlene Bradley that the 
complaint she filed on September 12, 2019 was legally insufficient. Since the Commission did not 
receive any additional information that corrected the stated grounds of legal insufficiency, this 
case is now closed. 

' ' 

In your email dated September 30, 2019, you requested an award of attorney's fees and costs 
pursuant to Rule 2B-l .0045, Florida Administrative Code. However, in order to claim costs and 
attorney's fees, under this rule, you are required to file your petition for attorney's fees and costs 
with the Commission Clerk no later than 30 days following disposition of the complaint Please 
feel free to file your petition by the close of business on December 26, 2019. 

If you have any questions, please contact us at fec@myfloridalegal.com or at the number listed 
~~ ' 

Sincerely, 

1)(UU14 r1~ ~ 
Donna Ann Malphurs 

DM/med 
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1;·1orida Elections Coinmissio11. 

October 29, 2019 

Darlene Bradley 

107 West Gaines Street, Suite 224 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1050 
Telephone: (850) 922-4539 · Facsimile: (850) 921-0783 

.FiiC@rnylhnidfil.e.ga!&fUIL · .Y!!.W!N..ki;.stalliJl,ys 

P.O. Box 2791 
Davenport, FL 33836 

RE: Case No.: FEC 19-519; Respondent: Rob Robinson 

Dear Ms. Bradley: 

The Florida .Elections Commission has received your complaint alleging violation of Florida's 
election laws. 

Complainant alleged that Respondent committed multiple violations of Chapters 104 and 106, 
F.S., as set forth below. 

Complainant alleged that Respondent's wife/campaign treasurer removed some of her campaign 
literature from the door jamb of an elector and characterized this as voter suppression/intimidation 
in violation of Section 104.0615, F.S. She provided an email from the City Clerk aHegedly 
confirming that this happened. However, the email merely states that Ms. Robinson told the Clerk 
she read the literature but placed it back where it had been. Regardless, this allegation is directed 
against Respondent's wife, not Respondent. Despite that she was Respondent's treasurer, this 
action appears to have been alJegedly committed on Ms. Robinson's own volition and without 
alleged instruction from Respondent. 

Complainant alleged that Respondent violated Section 106.08(5)(a), F.S., which prohibits making 
a contribution through or in the name of another. She pointed to five contributions listed on 
Respondent's 2019 M2 report, each for $1,000. Each contribution was reported as having been 
received from a different corporate entity. Complainant aHeged that all $5,000 was really 
contributed by Rennie Heath, a developer. Complainant further alleged that this exceeded 
contribution limits. 

In response to the complaint, Respondent pointed out that each of the five entities was a distinct 
"person" within the meaning of the Election Code's definition of that word. Therefore, the five 
contributions represented five contributions from separate, distinct "persons." 

Rennie Heath is the CEO of Heath Construction and Management, LLC, which is one of the 
corporations that contributed to Respondent. He also reportedly is in charge of land development 
for Cassidy Homes, a local holding company also known as the Cassidy Organization, Inc. 
Principal persons of that organization include Steven L. Cassidy and Albert B. Cassidy, who are 



Darlene Bradley 
October 29, 2019. 
Page 2 
FEC 19-519 

both directors of one of the other corporations that contributed to Respondent - Cassidy Holdings 
Group, Inc. Albert Cassidy is a director of two of the other corporations - CAS Holdings, LLC 
and Lakeville Partners, LLC. The principal and mailing addresses of four of the corporations ( all 
of them except Heath Construction and Management, LLC) are identical. 

Although these corporate entities appear to be operationally and/or organizationally related, each 
corporation is a separate "person" within the meaning of the Election Code, so each was entitled 
to contribute up to $1,000 to Respondent's campaign. No evidence was provided to suggest that 
Mr. Heath was behind all five contributions. No evidence was provided to suggest that the funds 
coming from any one of the specific entities derived from Mr. Heath's personal funds, rather than 
its own corporate holdings, such that Respondent accepted a contribution made in the name of 
another. Section 106.25(2), F.S., provides that sworn complaints must be based upon personal 
information or information other than hearsay. 

Complainant alleged that Respondent failed to "disclose" or "abstain" from votes on developer 
projects after receiving $5,400 in donations from developers, in violation of Sections 104.071 and 
112.3143, F.S. In response to the complaint, Respondent noted that the referenced statute, Section 
104.071, F.S., relates to remuneration by a candidate for services or support. Respondent stated 
that he did affirmatively disclose his campaign contributions, including the ones referenced by 
Complainant, on the 2019 M2 report. Subsequent to this disclosure, he performed his "affirmative 
duty as an elected official to vote on all matters before the City Commission," including the matters 
cited by Complainant. Respondent stated he did not abstain from those votes, because there was 
no special private gain or loss, which would be the basis for disqualification. Respondent stated 
that Complainant has not provided clear and convincing evidence establishing probable cause of 
an illegal quid pro quo with real estate developers. 

Upon review of this matter, the law at issue is not one related to elections. Section l 12.3143(3)(a), 
F.S., sets forth prohibitions on municipal officers from voting on matters that might inure them 
with a special gain. Alleged violations of Chapter 112, F.S., fall within the jurisdiction of the 
Florida Commission on Ethics. The Florida Elections Commission lacks jurisdiction to investigate 
such matters. 

Complainant alleged Respondent "commandeered the Davenport Commission Chambers" during 
business hours to conduct two interviews for television to promote his campaign. Complainant 
provided a link to a news article with associated news video in which a local reporter interviewed 
Respondent and Complainant's husband, John Lepley. The portion of the interview with 
Respondent took place in what appears to be the City Commission meeting area. 

Section 106.15(4), F.S., prohibits a person from soliciting or accepting contributions in a 
government-owned building, which is not what was alleged. Conducting a television interview in 
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a government-owned building is not prohibited by any subsection of Section 106.15, F.S. 
Furthermore, Respondent did not specifically request that contributions be made to his campaign 
during the interview. 

Complainant alleged that Respondent failed to include disclaimers on two mailers and failed to 
report expenditures associated with them. Respondent stated they were anonymous 
communications and denied that he paid for, authorized, approved, or had any connection to the 
literature. The first mailer appears to be an electioneering communication. Though it speaks 
favorably about the current administration and invites the reader to ask questions concerning the 
City to the Mayor (Respondent), the City Commission, or the City Manager, it does not have any 
content that would attribute it to Respondent. 

The second mailer (front/back, English/Spanish) again supports the "incumbents" and asks the 
reader to "vote more progress less embarrassment," but it does not name a specific candidate nor 
contain content that would attribute it to Respondent. Complainant has failed to provide personal 
information or information other than hearsay attributing the mailers to Respondent. 

Finally, Complainant alleged that Respondent failed to report expenditures associated with a joint 
political advertisement. In response to the complaint, Respondent noted that his 2019 M3 report 
disclosed two expenditures to Staples on March 16, 2019 and March 23, 2019, for the cost of 
paper, ink, and envelopes. The total expenditures reported were $402.11. While the expenditures 
do not specifically state that they were related to the cost of that mailer, they do state that they 
were for the cost of items needed for printing and distributing such a mailer. Respondent also 
attached an invoice for these items noting that Respondent was supposed to pay at least $359.33 
for his share. The invoice included the cost of paper, envelopes, and ink. 

For these reasons, I find the complaint to be Legally Insufficient. 

If you have additional information to correct the stated ground(s) of insufficiency, please submit 
it within 14 days of the date of this letter. If no additional information is received correcting the 
stated grounds of insufficiency, this case will be closed. Enclosed is the form for submitting 
additional information. Should you submit an additional statement containing facts, your statement 
must contain your notarized signature. Any additional facts submitted to the Commission must be 
based on either personal information or information other than hearsay. 
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If you have any questions concerning the complaint, please contact us at f~myfloridalegal.com. 

Sincerely, // CZu7~~-
Tim Vaccaro 
Executive Director 

TV/med 

Enclosure: Additional Complaint Information Form 2 
cc: Fred Reilly, Attorney for Respondent w/out Enclosure 



FLORIDA ELECTIONS COMMISSION 
107 West Gaines Street, Suite 224, 

Tallahassee, FL 32399-1050 

ADDITIONAL COMPLAINT INFORMATION 

Case Number: FEC 19-519 

Pursuant to Rule 2B-1.0025, Florida Administrative Code, if you have additional information to correct 

the ground(s) of legal insufficiency stated in the attached letter, please explain in a concise narrative statement. 

Attach the statement and any relevant documentation to this form: 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF _________ _ 

I swear or affirm that the information in the attached statement is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

Original Signature of Person Bringing Complaint 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this ____ day of ____________ , 20 __ 

Signature of Officer Authorized to Administer 

Oaths or Notary Public 

(Print, Type, or Stamp Commissioned 

Notary Public) 

Name 

Personally Known'---__ Or Produced Identification. __ _ 

Type of Identification Produced __________ _ 

of 

Any person who /lies a complaint while knowing that the allegations are false or without merit commits a 

misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided In Sections 775!082 and 775.083, Florida Statutes. 

FEC Form 2 (5/17) 
Rules 2B-1.0025 & 2B-1.0.09, F.A.C. 
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FEC Complaint No. 19-519 (Darlene Bradley, Complainant and H. B. "Rob" Robinson, 
Respondent)Fred Reilly to: fec@myfloridalegal.com 09/30/2019 08:09 PM 
Cc: "Linda Robinson" 
From: "Fred Reilly" <fredreilly@attomey-solicitor.com> · 
To: "fec@myfloridalegal.com" <fec@myfloridalegal.com> 
Cc: "Linda Robinson" <lmrobinsonl 949@gmail.com> 

3 Attachments 

~ 
NoticeOfAppearanceFEC 19 519.pdf RobinsonResponseBradleyComplaint09292019 Signed.pdf 

~ 
RobinsonResponseExhibits ABC Bradley 09302019.pdf 

Re: FEC Complaint No. 19-519 (Darlene Bradley, Complainant and H. B. "Rob"· Robinson, Respondent) 

ATTN: Molly Donovan, Complaint Coordinator, Florida Elections Commission 

Hi Mrs. Donovan, 

Please be advised that I represent H.B. "Rob" Robinson in relation to FEC Complaint No. 19-519 filed 
by Darlene Bradley. 

I have attached the following documents in relation to FEC Complaint No. 19-519: 

A. Notice of Appearance. 

B. Response to FEC Complaint Flied By Darlene Bradley. 

C. Exhibits A, B and C to the Response. 

I respectfully request that you provide me with an email confirming receipt of this email. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. Thanks in advance. 

Very truly yours, 

Fred Reilly* 
Reilly International Law Firm, P.A .. 
P. o. Box 2039 
Haines City, FL 33845 USA 
Tel. (310) 927-3954 
Fax. (863) 439-5077 
Skype: fred.reilly 

. Email : fredreilly@attorney-solicitor.com 
Website: www.attorney-solicitor.com 

file:///C:/U sers/MalphursD/ AppData/Local/Temp/notes5D3EFE/~web7069 .htm 10/1/2019 
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*Licensed to practice in California, Florida and as an English Solicitor. Admitted to practice before the 
United States Supreme Court and the United States Court of International Trade. Awarded 
Masters degree (LL.M. in International Business Law) from The London School of Economics and 
Political Science. 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: This transmission contains legal advice that is privileged, confidential and 
exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby 
notified that any disclosure, photocopying or distribution of the contents is unauthorized and 
prohibited. If you have received this in error, please notify the sender immediately and destroy all 
copies. 

file:///C:/U sers/MalphursD/ AppData/Local/Temp/notes5D3EFE/~web7069 .htm 10/1/2019 



FLORIDA ELECTIONS COMMISSION 

COMPLAINANT: DARLENE BRADLEY 

RESPONDENT: H.B. "ROB" ROBINSON 

CASE NO. FEC 19-519 

________ / 
NOTICE OF APPEARANCE AND 

DESIGNATION OF EMAIL ADDRESS 

COMES NOW the undersigned law firm, Reilly International Law Firm, P.A., and files 
this Notice of Appearance on behalf of the Respondent, H.B. "ROB" ROBINSON, in the above­
styled cause as his attorney of record. 

Pursuant to Florida Rule of Judicial Administration 2.516(b )(1 ), the undersigned law firm 
hereby designates the following primary email address: 

Primary email: fredreilly@attorney-solicitor.com 

All papers and pleadings filed in this action should be served on the undersigned at the email 
address set forth above. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this 30th day of September, 2019, a true and correct copy 
of the foregoing was furnished to the Florida Elections Commission (fec@myfloridalegal.com). 

REILLY INTERNATIONAL LAW FIRM, P.A. 

s/ Fred Reilly 
Fred Reilly, Esquire 
Florida Bar No. 607800 
P. 0. Box 2039 
Haines City, FL 33845 USA 
Tel. (310) 927-3954 
Primary email: fredreilly@attorney-solicitor.com 

NoticeOfAppearanceFEC 19 519 



FLORIDA ELECTIONS COMMISSION 

COMPLAINANT: DARLENE BRADLEY 

RESPONDENT: H.B. "ROB" ROBINSON 

CASE NO. FEC 19-519 

RESPONSE TO FEC COMPLAINT FILED BY DARLENE BRADLEY 

COMES NOW, the Respondent, H.B. "Rob" Robinson, by and through his undersigned 

attorney, files this Response to the Florida Elections Commission Complaint by the 

Complainant, Darlene Bradley, and states as follows: 

Preliminary Matters 

A. The Complainant, Darlene Bradley shall be referred to as "Bradley" in this Response. 

B. The Respondent, H.B. "Rob" Robinson shall be referred to as "Robinson" in this 

Response. 

C. The Florida Elections Commission Complaint No. 19-5 t 9 filed by Bradley against 

Robinson (dated September 9, 2019) shall he referred to as the "Complaint" in this Response. 

D. The Complaint was served on Robinson by certified mail received on September 16, 

2019. 

Responses to Specific Allegations Set Forth in the Complaint 

1. ALLEGATION OF VOTER INTIMIDATION/SUPPRESSION VIOLATION. 

RobinsonResponseBradleyComplaint09292019 



Alleged Violation: Section 104.0615, Florida Statutes. 

Factual Allegation: 

Response: 

A. Robinson did not violate Section 104.0615 and Bradley's factual allegation does not 

establish probable cause for such violation. 

B. Section 104.0615 states three basis for voter intimidation or suppression. 

C. Bradley's allegation does not state any factual basis for a charge that Rob Robinson 

committed a violation of Section 104.0615. 

D. Bradley essentially alleges that Linda Robinson (the wife of Rob Robinson) violated 

Section 104.0615. 

E. Robinson is not vicariously liable for any actions of another individual. 

F. Bradley's allegation that Linda Robinson confirmed to the Davenport City Clerk that "she 

did do this in an email to Rachel Castillo" is inconsistent with the response email from Rachel 

Castillo to Bradley which stated: 

"In response to your email received today. Contact.was made to Linda Robinson. 
She advises that she read the brochure. She took pictures of it with her phone and 
did not keep it but put it back in the door jamb. She did info11n the Meyer's of 
what she had done. She extended an apology to you and John." 

G. Assuming for argument's sake that Bradley's alle_gation was against Linda Robinson, 

the allegation does not state any factual basis for a charge that Linda Robinson committed a 

violation of Section 104.0615. In addition, Linda Robinson has not been served with a FEC 

Complaint and she has the right to due process in respect to any proceeding involving potential 

criminal penalties. 

2 
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2. ALLEGATION OF FALSE OR MALICIOUS CHARGES AGAINST OPPOSING 
CANDIDATE VIOLATION. 

Alleged Violation: Section 104.271, Florida Statutes 

Factual Allegation:False or Malicious charges against, or false statements.about, opposing 

candidate: On 3/31/2019 Roh Robinson posted false and malicious comments about me-on his 

facebook; i.e. he said I will lie to get elected, I stole handicap placards, I sent viciousness emails 

about him and personal attacks against him. All of the statements are false and malicious. 

Attachment D Link: (link address)" 

Response: 

A. Robinson's statement about Bradley "stealing, altering a handicapped parking placard, 

and identity theft of a deceased woman" was factually accurate and thus did not constitute false 

or malicious charges in violation of Section 104.271, Florida Statutes. 

B. The Affidavit Continuation from the Polk County Sheriff's Office (Incident No. 

170050907) states in part, as follows: 

"The facts above support the probable cause belief that Mayor Teresa Bradley did 

knowingly utilize a handicapped placard within Polk County without 

authorization in violation of F.S.S. 324.0848. Mayor Teresa Bradley also 

knowingly used the personal information (Florida OLIO number) of Evelyn 

Klinger Letterman after her death in.violation of F.S.S. 817.568 (8)(A). Mayor 

Teresa Bradley also knowingly possessed an altered or counterfeit decal 

(validation sticker) in this state in violation of F.S.S. 320.26." 
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C. The violation of F.S.S. 324.0848 (7) (fraudulently obtains or unlawfully displays a 

disabled parking permit that belongs to another person while occupying a disabled parking 

space) is a second degree misdemeanor. 

D. The violation ofF.S.S. 817.568 (8)(a) (willfully and fraudulently uses, or possesses 

with intent to fraudulently use, personal identification information concerning a deceased 

individual) is a third degree felony. 

E. The violation ofF.S.S. 320.26 (counterfeiting license plates, validation stickers, 

mobile home stickers, cab cards, trip permits, or special temporary operational permits 

prohibited) is a third degree felony. 

F. In one of Robinson's Facebook messages cited by Bradley, Robinson stated: "While it 

should not come as a surprise to me, I am astonished and offended at the viciousness of their lies 

and personal attacks against me, Commissioner Bobby Lynch, and Commissioner Tom Fellows." 

• In the same Facebook message, Robinson stated: "Florida Statute 104.271 states, "A candidate 

may not, with actual malice, make any false statement about an opposing candidate." 

3. ALLEGATION OF FALSE OR MALICIOUS CHARGES AGAINST OPPOSING 
CANDIDATE VIOLATION. 

Alleged Violation: Section 104.271, Florida Statutes. 

Factual Allegation: "False or Malicious charges against, or false statements about, opposing 

candidate: Rob Robinson mailed a flyer "Legacy: Something that is a part of you that remains" 

to everyone in Davenport with the following false and malicious statements. Attachment E. 

A. "Darlene Bradley charged with 2 felonies and a misdemeanor." (Additional narrative 

omitted). 

4 
RobinsonResponseBradleyComplaint09292019 



B. "Darlene Bradley did not initiate the Foulih of July celebration." (Additional narrative 

omitted). 

C. "Darlene Bradley never brokered a deal with a primary developer." (Additional 

narrative omitted). 

D. "5,000 lien on our homes for sewer as the amount was never established." (Additional 

narrative omitted). 

Response: 

A. Alleged False or Malicious Charge: "Darlene Bradley charged with 2 felonies and a 

misdemeanor." (Additional narrative omitted). 

Response: 

i . Robinson's statement that Bradley had been "charged with 2 felonies and a 

misdemeanor" was factually_ accurate and thus did not constitute false or malicious.charges in 

violation of Section t 04.271, .Florida Statutes. 

ii. The Affidavit Continuation from the Polk County Sherifrs Office (Incident No. 

170050907) states in pat1, as follows: 

"The facts above support the probable cause belief that Mayor Teresa Bradley did 
knowingly utilize a handicapped placard within Polk County without 
authorization in violation ofF.S.S. 324.0848. Mayor Teresa Bradley also 
knowingly used the personal information (Florida DLID number) of Evelyn 
Klinger Letterman after her death in violation ofF.S.S. 817.568 (8)(A). Mayor 
Teresa Bradley also knowingly possessed an altered or counterfeit decal 
(validation sticker) in this state in violation ofF.S.S. 320.26." 
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iii. The violation ofF.S.S. 324.0848 (7) (fraudulently obtains or unlawfolly displays a 

disabled parking permit that belongs to another person while occupying a disabled parking 

space) is a second degree misdemeanor. 

iv. The violation ofF.S.S. 817.568 (8)(a) (willfully and fraudulently uses, or 

possesses with intent to fraudulently use, personal identification information concerning a 

deceased individual) is a third degree felony. 

v. The violation of F.S.S. 320.26 (counterfeiting license plates, validation stickers, 

mobile home stickers, cab cards, trip permits, or special temporary operational permits 

prohibited) is a third degree felony. 

B. "Darlene Bradley did not initiate the Fourth of July celebration." (Additional narrative 
omitted). 

Response: 

i. Robinson's statement that Bradley "did not initiate the Fourth of July celebration" was 

factually accurate and thus did not constitute false or malicious charges in violation of Section 

I 04.271, Florida Statutes. 

ii. The "question of whether the evidence supports a finding of actual malice is a question 

oflaw." Sharkey v. Florida Elections Commission, 90 So. 3d 937 (Fla. 2nd DCA 2012). 

iii. Bradley's allegation does not provide clear and convincing evidence that Robinson's 

statement violates the standard stated in Sharkey: 

The Supreme Court has explained that "reckless conduct is not measured by 
whether a reasonably prudent man would have published, or would have 
investigated before publishing." St. Amant v. Thompson, 390 U.S. 727, 731, 88 
S.Ct. 1323, 20 L.Ed.2d 262 (1968). Rather, "[t]here must be sufficient evidence to 
permit the conclusion that the defendant in fact ente11ained serious doubts as to 
the truth of his publication." Id. That said, a defendant would not be able to 
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"automatically insure a favorable verdict by testifying that he published with a 
belief that the statements were true." Id. at 732. Instead, the finder of fact should 
resolve the issue of whether the statements were made in good faith by evaluating 
the source of the allegations and the probability of their correctness. The court 
explained: 

Professions of good faith will be unlikely to prove persuasive, for example, where 
a story is fabricated by the defendant, is the product of his imagination, or is 
based wholly on an unverified anonymous telephone call. Nor will they be likely 
to prevail when the publisher's allegations are so inherently improbable that only 
a reckless man would have put them in circulation. Likewise, recklessness may be 
found where there are obvious reasons to doubt the veracity of the informant or 
the accuracy of his reports. 

Id. 

C. "Darlene Bradley never brokered a deal with a primary developer." (Additional 

nanative omitted). 

Response: 

i. Robinson's statement that Bradley "never brokered a deal with a primary developer'' 

was factually accurate and thus did not constitute false or malicious charges in violation of 

Section 104.271, Florida Statutes. 

ii. The "question of whether the evidence supports a finding of actual malice is a question 

oflaw." Sharkey v. Florida Elections Commission, 90 So. 3d 937 (Fla. 2nd DCA 2012). 

iii. Bradley's allegation does not provide clear and convincing evidence that Robinson's 

statement violates the standard stated in Sharkey: 

The Supreme Court has explained that "reckless conduct is not measured by 
whether a reasonably prudent man would have published, or would have 

investigated before publishing." St. Amant v. Thompson, 390 U.S. 727, 731, 88 
S.Ct. 1323, 20 L.Ed.2d 262 (1968). Rather, "[t]here must be sufficient evidence to 
permit the conclusion that the defendant in fact entertained serious doubts as to · 
thetruth of his publication." Id. That said, a defendant would not be able to 
"automatical1y insure a favorable verdict by testifying that he published with a 
belief that the statements were true." Id. at 732. Instead, the finder of fact should 

I 
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resolve the issue of whether the statements were made in good faith by evaluating 
the source of the allegations and the probability of their correctness. The court 
explained: 

Professions of good faith will be unlikely to prove persuasive, for example, where 
a story is fabricated by the defenda11t, is the product of his imagination, or is 
based wholly on an unverified anonymous telephone call. Nor will they be likely 
to prevail when the publisher's allegations are so inherently improbable that only 
a reckless man would have put them in circulation. Likewise, recklessness may be 
found where there are obvious reasons to doubt the veracity of the informant or 
the accuracy of his reports. 

Id. 

D. "5,000 lien on our homes for sewer as the amount was never established." (Additional 
narrative omitted). 

Response: 

i. Robinson's statement that "neither (Bradley or Lepley) stopped a $5,000 lien on our 

homes for sewer as the amount was never established" was factually accurate and thus did not 

constitute false or malicious charges in violation of Section 104.271, Florida Statutes. 

ii. The "question of whether the evidence suppo1is a finding of actual malice is a question 

oflaw." Sharkey v. Florida Elections Commission, 90 So. 3d 937 (Fla. 2nd DCA 2012). 

iii. Bradley's allegation does not provide clear and convincing evidence that Robinson's 

statement violates the standard stated in Sharkey: 

TI1e Supreme Court has explained that "reckless conduct is not measured by 
whether a reasonably prudent man would have published, or would have 
investigated before publishing." St. Amant v. Thompson, 390 U.S. 727, 731, 88 
S.Ct. 1323, 20 L.Ed.2d 262 (I 968). Rather, "[t]here must be sufficient evidence to 
permit the conclusion that the defendant in fact entertained serious doubts as to 
the truth of his publication." Id. That said, a defendant would not be able to 
"automatically insure a favorable verdict by testifying that he published with a 
belief that the statements were true." Id. at 732. Instead, the finder of fact should 
resolve the issue of whether the statements were made in good faith by evaluating 
the source of the allegations and the probability of their correctness. The court 
explained: 

8 
RobinsonResponseBradleyComplaint09292019 



Cl 

Professions of good faith will be unlikely to prove persuasive, for example, where 
a story is fabricated by the defendant, is the product of his imagination, or is 
based wholly on an unverified anonymous telephone call. Nor will they be likely 
to prevail when the ·publisher's allegations are so inherently improbable that only 
a reckless man would have put them in circulation. Likewise, recklessness may be 
found where there are obvious reasons to doubt the veracity of the informant or 
the accuracy of his reports. 

Id. 

4. ALLEGATION OF CAMPAIGN DONATION VIOLATION. 

Alleged Violation: Section 106.08 (5), Florida Statutes. 

Factual Allegation: 

In the FEC Complaint, Bradley alleged: 

"Rennie Heath (Developer) gave $5,000 in campaign donations to Rob Robinson as 
reported in his campaign financial report M2 for period 3/2 - 3/15/19 Attachment K. Mr. 
Robinson listed 5 different entities for Mr. Rennie Heath with the same address listing 
$1,000 contribution for each entity, exceeding the amount allowing in a municipal 
election." 

Response 

I}.- Robinson did not violate Section 106.08 (5) and Bradley's factual allegation does not 

establish probable cause for such violation. 

B. Section 106.08 (5)(a) states: "A person may not make any contribution through or in 

the name of another, directly or indirectly, in any election." 

C. Section 106.011. Florida Statutes, states, in pati, as follows: 

(14) "Person" means an individual or a corporation, association, firm, 
partnership, joint venture, joint stock company, club, organization, estate, trust, 

business trust, syndicate, or other combination ofindividuals having collective 
capacity. The term includes a political party, affiliated party committee, or 
political committee. 

D. Each of the following five (5) entities made a contribution of $1,000.00 to Robinson's 

campaign and such contributions were duly reported in Robinson's campaign reports: 
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1. Cassidy Holdings Group 

2. Winter Haven Management Services LLC 

3. Lakeville Partners LLC 

4. Heath Construction & Management LLC 

5. CAS Holdings LLC 

Each of the entities constitute a separate and distinct "person" as defined by Section 106.011 

(14), Florida Statutes. 

5. ALLEGATION OF VOTING CONFLICTS VIOLATION. 

Alleged Violation: Section l 04.071 and 112.3143, Florida Statutes. 

Factual Allegation: "FS 104.071 and FS 112.3143 Voting Conflicts Violation-Mr. Robinson 

did not disclose nor abstain from voting in favor of Mr. Heath's and Mr. McKnight's projects 

after receiving $5,400 in campaign donations from these developers. (Minutes of his voting 

records attached.)" (List of Attachments, Dates and Ordinances omitted). 

Response: 

A. Robinson did not violate either Section 104.071 or Section 112.3143, and Bradley's 

factual allegation does not establish probable cause for such violation. 

B. Section 104.071, Florida Statutes addresses remuneration by a candidate for services 

or support. 

C. Contrary to Bradley's allegation. Robinson did affirmatively disclose his campaign 

contributions (including the campaign contributions from Cassidy Holdings Group, Winter 

Haven Management Services LLC, Lakeville Partners LLC, Heath Construction & Management 

LLC, CAS Holdings LLC in the duly filed Campaign Reports (attached hereto as Exhibit A) in 

compliance with Section 106.07( 4), Florida Statutes. 
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(; 

D. Subsequent to Robinson's disclosure of campaign contributions in compliance with 

Section 106.07(4), Robinson performed his affirmative duty as an elected official to vote on all 

matters before the City Commission including those annexation, zoning and land development 

matters cited by Bradley. Robinson did not abstain from such votes because there was no special 

private gain or loss which would be the basis for his disqualification. See George v. City of 

Cocoa, Fla., 78 F. 3d 494 (1 t th Cir., 1996) at p. 496: 

Florida law imposes on elected officials an affirmative duty to vote on all matters 
before them; abstaining from a vote is prohibited unless "there is, or appears to 
be, a possible conflict of interest under§ 112.311, § 112.313, or§ 112.3143." Fla. 
Stat. Ann.§ 286.012 (West 1995). Section 286.012 speaks only of when a public 
official may abstain from voting; it does not describe the circumstances under 
which a public official must abstain from voting. The statutory provision dealing 
with mandatory abstention from city council voting is Fla. Stat. Ann. § 
112.3143(3)(a) (West 1995); it provides that "[n]o county, municipal, or other 
local public officer shall vote in his official capacity upon any measure which 
would inure to his special private gain or loss .... " Under§ l 12.3143(3)(a), the 
identification of a "special private gain or loss" to the city council member as a 
result of his or her vote is a necessary condition for disqualification. 

E. Bradley's base allegation is that Robinson engaged in an illegal quid pro quo with real 

estate developers, but Bradley has not provided any clear and convincing evidence which 

establishes probable cause for such a violation. 

6. ALLEGATION OF CAMPAIGNING IN GOVERNMENT FACILITIES VIOLATION. 

Alleged Violation: Section 106.15, Florida Statutes. 

Factual Allegation: "Rob Robinson commandeered the Davenport Commission Chambers 

during normal business hours to conduct two (2) tv interviews to promote his campaign, 

"integrity." Every candidate's packet included a memo from the Polk County Board of County 

Commissioners prohibiting campaigning in government facilities. Link for Bay News 9 

interview on 3/8/2019: (Link)." 
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Response 

A. Robinson did not violate Section 106.15 and Bradley's factual allegation does not 

establish probable cause for such violation. 

B. Section 106.15, states, in part, as follows: 

( 4) No person shall make and no person shall solicit or knowingly accept any 
political contribution in a building owned by a governmental entity. For purposes 
of this subsection, "accept" means to receive a contribution by personal hand 
delivery from a contributor or the contributor's agent. This subsection shall not 
apply when a government-owned building or any portion thereof is rented for the 
specific purpose of holding a campaign fund raiser. 

C. Robinson conducting "two (2) tv interviews" in a municipal building is clearly not a 

violation of Section 106.15. 

7. ALLEGATION OF CAMPAIGN FINANCE REPORTING VIOLATION. 

Alleged Violation: Section 106.143, Florida Statutes. 

Factual Allegation: "Literature does not reference "paid for by" statement nor are these 

expenses listed in his campaign finance reports. Mr. Robinson failed to report the printing and 

postage expenses for two large post cards (6" xl 1 ") in his campaign finance reports as an in-kind 

contribution or as an expense for the following 2 post cards: 

i. "A Message to the Residents of Davenport" Attachment R 
ii. The Question is - are you going to be misled again Attachment S" 

Response 

A. Robinson did not violate Section 106.143 and Bradley's factual allegation does not 

establish probable cause for such violation. 

B. Section 106.143 sets forth standards for political adve11isements paid for by a 

candidate, political advertisements made as in-kind contributions, political advertisements by 

political parties or organizations. and prohibitions related to political advertisements. 
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C. The two items of campaign literature (Attachment Rand Attachment S of the 

Complaint) do not state any name (and specifically do not state that these items were sent by, 

paid for by, or authorized by Robinson) and therefore were anonymous communications (the 

"Anonymous Literature"). 

D. Robinson did not pay for, authorize, approve, or have any connection whatsoever to 

the Anonymous Literature. The individual(s) who prepare the Anonymous Literature may have 

violated Section 106.143, but Robinson has no culpability for the actions of such individual(s). 

8. ALLEGATION OF CAMPAIGN FINANCE REPORTING VIOLATION. 

Alleged Violation: Section 106, Florida Statutes. 

Factual Allegation: "FS 106 A photo posted on Rob Robinson's face book of Linda Robinson 

(Treasurer), Bob Lynch (Seat 3 Candidate), Denise Lynch (Treasurer) at Rob Robinson's house 

preparing a letter "Legacy: Something that is a part of you that remains"; which does state is paid 

for by both Rob Robinson and Bob Lynch; but is not refel'enced on his finance report as paying 

for 50% of these "shared" expenses for printing, envelopes and postage for this document. Photo 

of both ca!'flpaigns together preparing "The Legacy" mailings at Robinson's house - Attachment 

T." 

Response: 

A. Robinson did not violate Chapter 106 and Bradley's factual allegation does not 

establish probable cause for such vio]ation. 

B. The "standard of proof in a case seeking fines under chapter 106 is clear and 

convincing evidence." Diaz de la Portilla v. Florida Elections Commission. 857 So. 3d 913,917 

(Fla. 3rd DCA 2003). 
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(; 

C. "There is no vicarious liability under chapter 106." Diaz de la Portilla v. Florida 

Elections Commission, 857 So. 3d 913, 917 (Fla. 3rd DCA 2003). 

D. Contrary to Bradley's allegation, Robinson did affirmatively disclose his campaign 

expenditures (including the campaign expenditmes to Staples for the Robinson's fifty percent 

(50%) share of "The Legacy" printing, envelopes and postage expenses) in the duly filed 

Campaign Report dated March 29, 2019, in compliance with Section 106.07( 4), Florida Statutes. 

The Campaign Report dated March 29, 2019, and the corresponding Staples invoice are attached 

hereto as Exhibit B. 

WHEREFORE, H.B. "Rob" Robinson respectfully requests that the Commission make 

the determination that none of the eight (8) counts of the Complaint filed by Darlene Bradley are 

legally sufficient to establish probable cause and therefore this case should be closed. 

Robinson's Request that the Commission make 

A Finding Against Bradley pursuant to 

Section 106.265 (6), Florida Statutes 

The Respondent, H. B. "Rob" Robinson, respectfully requests that that the Commission 

make a finding against Darlene Bradley pm-suant to Section 106.265 (6), Florida Statutes, and 

that Darlene Bradley shall be liable for costs and reasonable attorney's fees incurred in the 

defense of the person complained against, and states as follows: 

A. Section 106.265 (6), Florida Statutes, states as follows: 

In any case in which the commission determines that a person has filed a 
complaint against another person with a malicious intent to injure the reputation 
of the person complained against by filing the complaint with knowledge that the 
complaint contains one or more false allegations or with reckless disregard for 
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whether the complaint contains false allegations of fact material to a violation of 
this chapter or chapter 104, the complainant shall be liable for costs and 
reasonable attorney's foes incurred in the defense of the person complained 
against, including the costs and reasonable attorney's fees incurred in proving 
entitlement to and the amount of costs and fees. If the complainant fails to pay 
such costs and fees voluntarily within 30 days following such finding by the 
commission, the commission shall forward such information to the Department of 
Legal Affairs, which shall bring a civil action in a court of competent jurisdiction 
to recover the amount of such costs and fees awarded by the commission. 

B. Robinson respectfully requests that the Commission make a finding that: 

i. Bradley filed the Complaint against Robinson with a malicious intent to injure 

Robinson's reputation by filing the Complaint with knowledge that the Complaint contains one 

or more false allegations or with reckless disregard for whether the Complaint contains false 

allegations of fact material to a violation of this chapter or chapter 104, and 

ii. Bradley shall be liable for costs and reasonable attorney's fees incurred in the defense 

of the person complained against, including the costs and reasonable attorney's fees incurred in 

proving entitlement to and the amount of costs and fees. 

C. The Complaint filed by Bradley was clearly intended to injure the reputation of 

Robinson. Bradley's Complaint included the following statements: 

i. Count 3(i) of the Complaint - Allegation that Robinson violated Section 104.271 by 

stating that "Darlene Bradley charged with 2 felonies and a misdemeanor." Since there is 

unequivocal evidence that Bradley was in fact charged with two (2) felonies and a misdemeanor, 

this allegation by Bradley is false or made with reckless disregard for whether the Complaint 

contains false allegations of fact material to a violation of chapter 104. 

ii. Count 4 of the Complaint - Allegation that Robinson violated Section 106.08 (5). 

Since there is unequivocal evidence that (i) Robinson fully complied with Section 106.08 (5), 
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and (ii) the plain words of Bradley's allegation fundamentally disregard the fact that a 

corporation or limited liability company constitutes a "person" (as defined by Section 106.011 

(14), Florida Statutes), this allegation by Bradley is false or made with reckless disregard for 

whether the Complaint contains false allegations of fact material to a violation of chapter l 06. 

iii. Count 6 of the Complaint - Allegation that Robinson violated Section 106.15. Since 

there is unequivocal evidence that (i) Robinson fully complied with Section 106.15, and (ii) the 

plain words of Bradley's allegation flagrantly misinterpret Section 106.15, Florida Statutes, this 

allegation by Bradley is false or made with reckless disregard for whether the Complaint 

contains false allegations of fact material to a violation of chapter 106. 

iv. "Mr. Robinson will stand for re-election at the beginning of 2020. The election is held 

the first Tuesday in April 2020. Resolution of this affidavit of complaint is urgent and cmcial so 

that the citizens are not forced into either a special election of the commission appointing their 
, 

own mayor." 

WHEREFORE, H.B. "Rob" Robinson respectfully requests that the Commission make 

a finding against Darlene Bradley pursuant to Section 106.265 ( 6), Florida Statutes, and that 

Darlene Bradley shall be liable for costs and reasonable attorney's fees incurred in the defense of 

Robinson. 

[Remainder of page intentionally blank] 
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Respectfully submitted this 30th day of September, 2019. 

Florida Bar No. 607800 
Reilly International Law Finn, P.A. 
P. 0. Box 2039 
Haines City, FL 33845 USA 
Tel. (310) 927-3954 
Email: fredreilly~ttomey-solicitor .com 
Attorney for H. B. "Rob" Robinson 

CERTIFICATION 

I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of this Response to FEC Complaint filed by 

Darlene Bradley was sent to the Florida Elections Commission via email 

(fec@myfloridalegal.com) this 30th day of September, 2019. 
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FLORIDA ELECTIONS COMMISSION 

COMPLAINANT: DARLENE BRADLEY 

RESPONDENT: H.B. "ROB" ROBINSON 

CASE NO. FEC 19-519 

EXHIBIT A 

SHERIFF'S OFFICE AFFIDAVIT CONTINUATION 
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FLORIDA ELECTIONS COMMISSION 

COMPLAINANT: DARLENE BRADLEY 

RESPONDENT: H.B. "ROB" ROBINSON 

CASE NO. FEC 19-519 

EXHIBITB 

CAMPAIGN REPORT SHOWING ENTITY CONTRIBUTIONS 



CAMPAIGN TREASURER'S REPORT SUMMARY 

(1 ) _J:l B. "ROB" ROBINSON 
Name 

OFFICE USE ONLY 

(2) 314 Cypress Street East (PO Box 1257 / zip 33836) 

Address (number and street) 

Davenport, FL 33837 
City, State, Zip Code 

D Check here if address has changed 

(4) Check appropriate box(es): 

(3) . ID Number: _M2_·····--- · ·- ···-··-- --- · 

IX} Candidate Office Sought: .J,;M..,a...,y,..o ... r~C._.,it~y..,.o .... f_._D...,a...,v ..... e..,n..,.p,...o,..rt_ · _____________ _ 
0 Political Committee {PC) 
0 Electioneering Communications Org. (ECO) 
0 Party Executive Committee (PTY) 
0 Independent.Expenditure (IEHalso covers an 
individual making electioneering communications) 

0 Check here if PC or ECO has disbanded 
0 Check here If PTY has disbanded 
D Check here If no other IE or EC reports will be flied 

(5) Report Identifiers 

Cover Period: From 03 / 02 / 2019 To · 03 / 15 / 2019 Report Type: 

1K) Original □ Amendment 0 Special Election Report 

(6) Contributions This Report 

Cash & Checks $ -- ' __5. ' ..15Q . .JlQ_ 

Loans $ • • -- -- ·-- ·- - -

Total Monetary $ _ ' ___ 5.. ' ..15.Q . _ill)_ 

In-Kind $ ' ' - ·- -- - -

(9) TOTAL Monetary Contributions i'o Date 

$ •-- J __ 8 I _QQQ_ • _QQ__ 

(7) Expenditures This Report 

Monetary 
Expenditures 

Transfers to 

$ 

Office Account $ __ , __ • _ _ o . _ _o.o_ 

Total Monetary $ _ _ , _ _ 2 , 490 . ~ 

(8) Other Distributions (Petty Cash Spent) 

$ -- I - J -32.. • ..J)L 

(10) TOTAL Monetary Expenditures To Date 

$ __ . _ 4_,. 084 _4§_ 

( 11) CertlfiGatlon 
It la a first degree mlsdomeanor for any peraon to falsify a publlc record (H. 839.13, F .S.) 

I certify that I have examined this report and it is true, correct, and complete: 

(Type name) Linda M Robinson (Type name) H B "'Rob'' Robinson 
n Individual (onlv for IE 00 Treasurer O Depu\y Treasurer Qg Candidate O Chairperson (only for PC and P1Y) 



CAMPAIGN TREASURER'S REPORT - ITEMIZED CONTRIBUTIONS 

(1) Name H.B. "ROB" ROBINSON (2) 1.0. Number -'M==2 ___ _ 

(3) Cover Period __ 03 I ~02_ / 2019 through . 03_ / _15 _ / 2019 (4) Page _1_ of ___ 1_ 

(5) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12) 
Date Full Name \ r-· 

(6} (Last, Suffi)(, First, Middle) 
Sequence Street Address & Contributor Contribution In-kind 
Number City, State, Zio Code Type Occuoation Type Description Amendment Amount 

03 I 02 I 19 Harriet Rewis Rust I Retired CHE $150.00 
1830 Pawnee Trail 

1 Lakeland, FL 33803 

03 I 04 / 19 Cassidy Holdings Group B Land CHE $1,000.00 
346 E. Central Avenue Develop-

2 Winter Haven, FL 33880 rnent 

03 I 04 / 19 Winter Haven Manage- B Land CHE $1,000.00 
ment Services LLC Develop-

3 346 E. Central Avenue ment 
Winter Haven, FL 33880 

r 03/ 
04 / 19 Lakeville Partners LLC B Land CHE $1,000.00 

346 E. Central Avenue Develop-
4 Winter Haven, FL 33880 ment 

03 / 04 / 19 Heath Construction & B Land CHE $1,000.00 
Management LLC Develop-

5 348 E. Central Avenue ment 
Winter Haven, FL 33880 

03 I 04 / 19 GAS Holdings LLC B Land CHE $1,000.00 
346 E. Central Avenue Develop-

6 Winter Haven, FL 33880 ment 

I I 

I 
nf'l-DE 13 tRav. 11/13} SEE REVERSE FOR INSTRUCTIONS AND CODE VALUES 



CAMPAIGN TREASURER'S REPORT - ITEMIZED EXPENDITURES 
(1) Name H.B. "ROB" ROBINSON (2) 1.0. Number-'Mur.u-2 ____ _ 

(3) Cover Period _Q3_/ _Q2__J 20.19. through .......D.3-.J _15 _ _1_,2.019 (4) Page_.....,_ __ of _ _._ __ _ 

(5) (7) (8) (9) {10) (11) 

Date Full Name Purpose 
(8) (Last, Suffix, First, Middle) (add office sought If 

Expenditure 
Sequence Street Address & contribution to a 

Number City, State, Zip Code candidate) Type Amcmdment Amount 

03 /06/ 19 Sign Depot 
1100 West Colonial Dr., Unit 1 

Vinyl Banner Sign CAN $92.00 

1 Orlando, FL 32804 

03 /06/ 19 Allegra Print and Imaging Copy and Mail CAN $2,322.38 
4498 S. Vineland Road Campaign Brochure 

2 Orlando, FL 32811 

03 /07 / 19 Staples Paper PCS $32.08 
3500 Posner Boulevard 

3 Davenport, FL 33837 

03/12 I 19 Bank of America VISA Campaign Buttons CAN $76.00 
PO Box 851001 Purchased from 

4 Dallas, TX 78285-1001 VictoryStore.com 

I I 

I I 

I I 

I I 
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FLORIDA ELECTIONS COMMISSION 

COMPLAINANT: DARLENE BRADLEY 

RESPONDENT: H.B. "ROB" ROBINSON 

CASE NO. . FEC 19-519 

EXIDBITC 

CAMPAIGN REPORT AND INVOICES 



Cl 

CAMPAIGN TREASURER'S REPORT SUMMARY 

<1> _H. B. "ROB" ROBINSON 
Name 

(2) 314 Cypress Street East (PO Box 1257 I zip 33836) 

Address (number and street) 
Davenport, FL.-:.~.9-'8-'3_7 _______ _ __ _ 
City. State . Zip Code 

D Check here if address has changed 

(4) Check appropriate box(es): 

(3) ID Number: _ _M3 -------··- --·-··· 

IZ) Candidate Office Sought: .May.nr., __ ... G...,it...,y....,a ..... f ..... Q...,a.,..,11. ... e .... n,..p ..... ocuct.__ _____________ _ 
0 Political Committee (PC) 
0 Electioneering Communications Org. (ECO) 
0 Party Executive Committee (PTY) 
0 Independent Expenditure (IE) (also covers an 
Individual making electioneering communications) 

0 Check here If PC or ECO has disbanded 
0 Check here If PTY has disbanded 
0 Check here if no other IE or EC reports wlll be filed 

(5) Report Identifiers 

CoverPeriod: From 03 / 16 / 2019 To 03 / 28 /2019 Report Type: 

1K) Original D Amendment 0 Special Election Report 

(6) Contributions This Report 

Cash & Checks $ I _ I 50. '_QQ_ --
Loans $ . ' -·- ·--- -- --

Total Monetary $ . . ~ _QQ_ -- - -

ln~Kind $ I _ _ 1 ' 000 _QQ_ - -

(9) TOTAL Monetary Contributions To Date · 

$ ___ ,__a_, 050 ._QQ_ 

(7) Expenditures This Report 

Monetary 
Expenditures $ ' _ 1, 281 ·__g§_ - -
Transfers to 
Office Account $ _._._o ·_QQ_ 

Total Monetary $ _I - , _1 ,-2.SJ.' _&_ 

(8) Other Distributions 

$ - - ' - - ' _ __Q_ . _QQ_ 

(10) TOTAL Monetary Expenditures To Date 

$ -- , __5_' _.3.6.6,_ . ...iliL 

( 11 ) Certification 
It Is a firs t degree misdemeanor for any person to falsify a public record (ss. 839.13, F.S.) 

I certify that I have examined this report and it is true. correct, and complete: 

(Type name) Linda M Robinson (Type name) H B "Roh" Robinson 
D Individual (only for IE IX! Treasurer . D Deputy Treasurer 
or etecllon9-erlng comm.) 

(l!I ~nelielate O Chairperson (only ror PC and PTY) 

/1 



CAMPAIGN TREASURER'S REPORT - ITEMIZED CONTRIBUTIONS 

(1) Name H. 8. "ROB" ROBINSON (2) 1.0. Number M3 ~~----

(3) Cover Period __QL I 16_ / 2019 through __fil_ / _2.8__ / ~ (4) Page ___ 1 _ of _1_ 

(5) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11} (12) 
Date Full Name 
(6) (Last, Suffix, First, Middle) 

Sequence Street Address & Contributor Contribution In-kind 

Number Citv. State Zio Code Typ_~-- Occupation Type Descrtption Amendm1mt Amount 

03 I 16 / 19 Ed and Nancy Mccue I Retired CHK $50.00 
1301 E. Hillsboro Blvd. Law Enforc ement 

1 Apartment 302 
Deerfield Bch, FL 33441 

03 / 18 I 19 John Webb I Realtor; INK Electronic $500.00 
L 242 McLean Point Commercial Advertisement 

Winter Haven, FL 33884 Business 3/18/19 through 
Owner 4/01/19 

03 I 18 / 19 Kathy Webb I Business INK Electronic $500.00 
3 -----···- 242 McLean Point Consultant Advertisement 

Winter Haven, FL 33884• 3/18/19 througl~ 
4/01/19 

i 

I I 

I I 

I I 

I I 

DS-DE 13 (Rev. 11/13) SEE REVERSE FOR INSTRUCTIONS AND CODE VALUES 



CJ 

CAMPAIGN TREASURER1S REPORT - ITEMIZED EXPENDITURES 
(1) Name H, B, "ROB11 ROBINSON (2) 1.0. Number .... Ml)Ul.l..3 ____ _ 

(3) Cover Period _Q3_j_j_6__/.2Q.19. through _..Q3_/_28_J.20.19.. (4) Page _ _.__ __ of_~--

(5) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) 

Date Full Name Purpose 

(6) (Last, Suffix, First, Middle) (add office sought if 
Expenditure 

Sequence Street Address & contribution to a 

Number City, State, Zip Code candidate) Type Amendment Amount 

03 /15 /19 Staples Purchase Paper CAN $42.78 
1 3500 Posner Blvd. 

Davenport, FL 33837 

03/21 /19 Supervisor of Elections Winter Haven Mail Labels CAN $40.20 
2 70 Florida Citrus Blvd. Voter List 

Winter Haven, Florida 33880 

03 f23 /19 Staples Paper CAN $359.33 
3 3500 Posner Blvd. Toner Cartridges 

Davenport, FL 33837 Envelopes 

n.':\ J.,i:,. I 10 Postmaster Postage CAN $759.00 
4 1 South Boulevard East 

Davenport, FL 33837 

()~ /25 /10 Postmaster Postage CAN $74.25 
5 1 South Boulevard East 

Davenport, FL33837 

o3hs /19 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. Checks CAN $6.00 
6 305 Davenport Boulevard 

Davenport, FL 33837 

I I 

I I 
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STAPLES - 3/23/19 
Purchase Paper, Envelopes and Printer Toner 

Robinson and Lynch shared the expense. 

',,~.P,iii,C~: , { 
. ' ·:_. .. ; 

. ~.~ .-· • . . ' 
' , . . . :; .} ~.- .. . ·· .. : , ., . ' .;, .. ;_ . . ' . . 

HP 410A (C/M/Y - 3 PK) ($328.99 - 6.74 coupon) 

HP 410 Black ($156.99 - 3.22 coupon) 
3 bo,ces envelopes ($36.99 • O. 76 coupon) 
3 bo><es envelopes ($22.19 - 0.46 coupon) 
Printer Paper (One Box containing 10 reams@ $36.99 - 0,76 coupon) 
(used 6 reams) 

Sub-Total 
Sales Tax 

TOTAL 

ROBINSON to pay ............. $359.33 

LYNCH to pay .................... $359.32 

·. , :~~;u~t;ltlti 
322.25 161.14 
153.77 76.88 
108.69 54.34 
65.19 32.59 

21.74 10.87 

671.64 
47.01 

718.65 

335.82 

23.SO 
359.32 



Date Produced: 09/23/2019 

Florida Elections Commission: 

The following is the delivery information for Certified Mail™/RRE item number 9214 8969 0099 9790 
1629 8761 65. Our records indicate that this item was delivered on 09/16/2019 at 11 :11 a.m. in 
DAVENPORT, FL 33837. The scanned image of the recipient information is provided below. 

Signature of Recipient : 

Address of Recipient : IF'" c::::> IE'ia c::::> ><: ... ~ !5 71"" 

Thank you for selecting the Postal Service for your mailing needs. If you require additional assistance, 
please contact your local post office or Postal Service representative. 

Sincerely, 
United States Postal Service 

The customer reference number shown below is not validated or endorsed by the United States Postal 
Service. It is solely for customer use. 

Customer Reference Number: 19-515 19-516 19-51819-519 1 



Fl 
(] El t· C. ( -) . or1ua ec ions omm1ss1on 

107 West Gaines Street, Suite 224 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1050 
Telephone: (850) 922-4539 · Facsimile: (850) 921-0783 

FEC@myfloridaJegalcom · www.fec.state.fl.us 

September 13, 2019 

CERTIFIED MAIL 9214 8969 009997901629 876165 

Bob Robinson 
P.O. Box 1257 
Davenport, FL 33836 

RE: Case No.: FEC 19-519; Respondent: Rob Robinson 

Dear Mr. Robinson: 

On September 12, 2019, the Florida Elections Commission received the enclosed complaint 
alleging violation of Florida's election laws involving, Section 104.271(2), Florida Statutes. A 
copy of the complaint in FEC 19-516 is being mailed to your attention. 

Upon review of the complaint, it has been determined that the complaint includes allegations 
pertaining to additional sections oflaw. Pursuant to Rule 2B-1 .0041, Florida Administrative Code, 
the complaint has been separated into two complaints, the original complaint contains allegations 
made under Section 104.271(2), Florida Statutes (FEC 19-516), and the second (FEC 19-519) 
contains all other allegations made by the complaint. 

Section 106.25(2), Florida Statutes, states: 

The respondent shall have 14 days after receipt of the complaint to file an initial response, and the 
executive director may not determine the legal sufficiency of the complaint during that time period. 

If you choose to file a response to complaint (FEC 19-519), please send it to my attention at the 
address listed above. To ensure that we receive your response in a timely manner, you may also 
respond via e-mail to my attention at fec@myfloridalegal.com . . You will be notified by letter 
whether the complaint is determined to be legally sufficient. 

Please note that all documents related to this matter will be mailed to the above address 
unless you notify us of a new address. 

Pursuant to section 106.25, Florida Statutes, complaints, Commission investigations, investigative 
reports, and other documents relating to an alleged violation of Chapters 104 or 106, Florida 
Statutes, are confidential until the Commission finds probable cause or no probable cause. The 
confidentiality provision does not apply to the person filing the complaint. As the Respondent, 
you may waive confidentiality in writing. 



Rob Robinson 
September 13, 2019 
Page2 
FEC 19-519 

The confidentiality provision does not preclude you from seeking legal counsel. However, should 
you retain counsel, your attorney must file a notice of appearance with the Commission before any 
member of the Commission staff can discuss this case with him or her. 

For additional information, please refer to the "Frequently Asked Questions" section of the 
Commission's website. 

Sincerely, 

~z,~ 
Molly Donovan 
Complaint Coordinator 

Enclosure: Complaint w/attachments 
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FLORIDA ELECTIONS COMMISSION 
107 West Gaines Street, Suite 224, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1050 

COMPLAINT 

The Commlsston's records and proceedings In a case are confidential unttl the Commission rules on 
probable cause. A copy of the complaint will be provided to the person against whom It Is brought. 

1. PERSON BRINGING COMPLAINT: 

Name: ~\.-\-v, ,e Tht&..Q, l.p'j 
Address: p. O • l>o2t ~-,q l 

Cltv:t>~ port County: '?6\l,(._ State: 

2. PERSON AGAINST WHOM COMPLAINT JS BROUGHT: 

Work Phone:(_) ___ _ 

Home Phone: ('/07) l,l?-(i,/bO 

fl- ZJp Code: -.aSf3<e 

If you Intend to name more than one Individual or entity, please flle multiple complaints. A person 
can be an lndlvldual, political committee, political party, electioneering communication 
organization, club, corporation, partnership, company, association, or other type of organization. 

Name of individual or entity: __ :P.,_....,<>_h __ :P.,__._...,c,_(o...._>n,....s.,.o_a __________ _ 

Address: P . o • ?,o)(. I g !5 7 
j 

Phone: (t/d 

City:)y,..\.u,tA,p6 .... t County: Y,::, 'k. State: a Zip Code: 32?3 (p 

If individual Is a candidate, list the office or position sought: L}1 O."f, or " ~UL pr/T 
Have you flied this complaint with the State Attorney's Office? (check one) D Yes ~ No 

Are you alleging a violation of Section 104.271(2), F.S.? (chec~ one) 1gJ Yes D No 

Are you alleging a violation of Section 104.2715, F.S.? (check one) 0 Yes IXJ No 

3. ALLEGED VIOlATION(S): 

Please attach a concise narrative stat~ment in which you list the provisions of the Florida Election 
Code that you believe the person named above may have violated. The Commission has Jurisdiction 
only to Investigate provisions of Chapter 104 and Chapter 106, Florida Statutes. Please include tbe 
following items as part of your attached statement: 

• The facts and actions that you believe support the violations you allege; 
• The names/telephone numbers of persons whom you believe may be witnesses to the facts; 
• A copy or picture of any political advertlsement(s) you mention in your statement; 
• A copy of each document you mention in your statement; · 
• An explanation of why you believe Information you reference from websites is relevant; and 
• Any other evidence supporting your allegatlons. 

SEE REVERSE SIDE OF DOCUMENT FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 

Any person who /If~ a complaint wh/le knowing that the allegations are false or without merit commits a 
misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as provided ;n Sections 775.082 and 775.083, Florida Statutes. 

FEC Form 1 (5/17) 
Rules 28-1.0025 & 28-1.009, F.A.C. 

Page 1 of 79 



FLORIDA ELECTIONS COMMISSION 
107 West Gaines Street, Suite 224, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1050 

4. QA!tli 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNlY OF .... 0'--r-"'--~-,.,1-Ze'-------
I swear or affirm that the above Information Is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

Sworn to and subscribed before me this 9.,,._ day of 

- ~- _ ___,_ ____ _,.2od_ 

(p&a~~ 
Signature of Officer Authorized to Administer Oaths or Notary Public a JULIAANN BROWN 

;tt, ,. NOWl1 PUIUC 8TAT11 OF fUlRllo\ 
~ ,...., M'l'COMMISSIONtG<3183294 
"Tlto,N' E)(JIIRli'.8: OV08l2022 

(Print, Type, or Stamp Commissioned Name of Notary Public) 

Personally Known ?( Or Produced Identification _ _ _ 

Type of Identification Produced _ ________ _ 

S. IMPROPERLY COMPLETED COMPLAINT FORMS MAY BE RETURNED: 

• You MUST submit this completed complaint form In order to file a complaint. 
. ' 

• You MUST complete ALL FOUR of the above sections of this form. DO NOT leave any blanks. 

• You MUST submit the ORIGINAL complaint form. Copied/faxed/emailed forms are returned. 

• Each complaint can only be flied against ONE PERSON or ENTITY. If you wish to file against 
multiple parties, you MUST submit a complaint form for each party you wish to file against. 

• DO NOT submit multiple complaint forms with one set of attachments applylng to multiple 
complaints. You MUST attach copies of attachments to each complaint to whlch they apply. 

• MAKE SURE the alleged violation(s) of Chapters 104 or 106 occurred within the last 2 years. 

• MAKE SURE your complaint is sworn and there Is no defect to the notarization In Section 4. 

FEC Form 1 (S/17) 
Rules 2B-1.0025 & 28-1.009, F.A.C. 

Page 2 of79 



Complainant: 

Respondent: 

() 

FEC Complaint Attachments 

Darlene Bradley, Candidate for Mayor of Davenport 
P.O. Box 2791, Davenport, FL 33836 (407) 617-6100 

City of Davenport Election (3/1 - 4/2/2019) 

Rob Robinson, Candidate for Davenport Mayor 
P. 0. Box 1257, Davenport, FL 33836 (863} 421-2250 

The following is a list of Florida Statues 104 and 106 violations by Rob Robinson, Candidate for 
Mayor of Davenport: 

FS 104.0615 Voter Intimidation or suppression prohibited 

1. FS 104.0615 Voter Intimidation or suppression prohibited: On 1/26/2019, I placed my 
campaign literature in the door jamb pf Paul & Mary Meyer's home at 108 E. Palmetto Street, 
Davenport. I then went back to my truck (which displayed my campaign magnets on the truck) to 
update my walk list, when Rob Robinson's wife and Campaign Treasurer, Linda Robinson, drove 
around my truck, parked in the Meyer's driveway, and walked up to their door and took my 
campaign literature out of their door jamb and went back to her car. I witnessed Linda doing this 
and I approached her and asked her did she just take my literature out of their door, she replied 
"Yes, because they don't need my literature, they only vote for Rob". I contacted Rachel 
Castillo, Davenport City Clerk to advise her of this and Linda Robinson confirmed she did do this 
in an email to Rachel Castillo (863-419-3300). "ttachmentd is an email from Linda Robinson 
to the City Clerk, Rachel Castillo admitting she did this. 

2. FS 104.271 False or Malicious charges against, or false statements about, opposing 
candidate: On 3/31/2019 Rob Robinson posted false and malicious comments about me on 
his facebook; i.e. he said I will lie to get elected, I stole handicap placards, I sent viciousness 
emails about him and personal attacks against him. All of statements are false and malicious. 
(~ttachment Q) 

Link: www.facebook.com/HB-Rob-Robinson-Davenport-Mayor-1051414444933457 

3. FS 104.271 False or Malicious charges against, or false statements about, opposing 
candidate: Rob Robinson malled a flyer "Legacy: Something that Is a part of you that 
remains" to everyone in Davenport with the following false and malicious statements. 
(Attachment El) 

i. "Darlene Bradley charged with 2 felonies and a misdemeanor''. Due to the SA 
understanding that my previous ca~acklng and kidnapping left multiple perpetrators on the 
loose [Case 48-2012-CF-016645-O] that terrorized me from leaving city hall meetings after 

Page 3 of79 
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Complainant: Bradley Respondent: Robinson 

dark, these charges were dropped the very next day; finalized on December 15, 2017 with 
adjudication withheld. I paid the $250 Handicap parking violation. Yet, 16 months after this 
incident, Mr. Robinson alleges these charges are convictions, fully well knowing better. 
Our City Charter does not allow a "felon" to run for office; which is what Mr. Robinson has 
portrayed me as in his campaign literature, face book posts and campaign flyers, letters, 
and postcards, which is false, intentional and malicious. !Attachment B is the final 
judgment confirming It was an "unlawful use of handicap placard" with adjudication 
withheld. The fine was the listed $250 Handicap parking violation. 

ii. "Darlene Bradley did not Initiate the Fourth of July celebration." As Mayor, I 
volunteered to assist the Davenport Constitution Committee, Bob Avery, Chairman for 
Davenport Concerned Citizens (DCC) and John Lepley (DCC) to initiate, create, obtain 
sponsors/guest speakers/readers, and coordinate the first ever Fourth of July celebration 
in Davenport in 2015 with the reading of the Constitution and Declaration of 
Independence. This can be verified with Bob Avery, 307 E. Maple Street, Davenport, FL 
(863) 852-7545. !Attachment G! is the flyer, agenda, photos and expenses prepared by 
me. I continued to get sponsors, speakers, readers for 2016, 2017, and 2018 events. 
The City of Davenport had the first ever July 4th celebration in 2017 with live 
entertainment and fireworks. 

iii. "Darlene Bradley never brokered a deal with a primary developer" On 6-3-17, I met 
with Rennie Heath (Developer), City Manager, Kelly Callihan, John Lepley and former 
Florida Senator JD Alexander. At this meeting, Mr. Heath offered a commitment to give 
the City of Davenport a donation of $1,000 for every house he sells in Davenport for the 
proposed Community Center. !Attachment H is a copy of the signed commitment from 
Mr. Heath and IA.ttachment I are City Commission minutes dated 2/5/18 where Mr. Heath 
announced to keep his promise to me to donate $1,000/home that he sells for our 
community center. Rob Robinson was also. present at this commission meeting; yet he 
denies my involvement in his campaign literature. 

iv. "5,000 lien on our homes for sewer as the amount was never established" 
Commission Meeting Minutes dated 7/30/2012 where city attorney Kirk Warren confirms a 
lien would be placed on each home/property for the cost of the sewer. City of Davenport 
letter dated · 10/29/2007 confirming the amount citizens to pay for sewer hookup will be 
$5,000: $3,500 for Impact fees and $1,500 for assistance for septic tank. The 
commission minutes on 10/29/2007 confirms Mr. Robinson's discussed a lien on citizen's 
home/property for a sewer. Both statements are listed on !Attachment J. 

Page 215 
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Complainant: Bradley Respondent: Robinson 

4. FS 106.08(5) Contributions, limitations on. (5) (a) A person may not make any contribution 
through or in the name of another, directly or indirectly, in any election. Rennie Heath 
(Developer) gave $5,000 in campaign donations to Rob Robinson as reported in his campaign 
financial report M2 for period 3/2 - 3/15/19 (~ttachment I<!). Mr. Robinson listed 5 different 
entities for Mr. Rennie Heath with the same address listing $1,000 contribution for each entity, 

. exceeding the amount allowed in a municipality election. 

5. FS 104.071 and FS 112.3143 Voting Conflicts Violation - Mr. Robinson did not disclose nor 
abstain from voting in favor of Mr. Heath's and Mr. McKnight's projects after receiving $5,400 in 
campaign donations from these developers. (Minutes of his voting records attached.) 

Attachment Date 

L 314119 Ordinance 876 Annexation for Astoria Properties 
L 3/4/19 Ordinance 878 Rezonina Astoria Properties 
L 314119 Ordinance 883 Rezonina Rezone Southern Crossinas 
M 3118119 Public Hearing for Plat aooroval Southern Crossinas SID 

N 4/1/19 Ordinance 885 Final Plat aooroval for Citrus Pointe SID 

0 4/15/19 Ordinance 885 2nd reading Final Plat for Citrus Pointe S/D 
0 4115/19 Ordinance 884 Final Plat for Highland Cove SID 
p 5/6/19 Ordinance 884 2nd reading Final Plat Highland Cove SID 

Q 5/20/19 Ordinance 889 Amend boundaries Highland Meadows II 
Q 5/20/19 Ordinance 890 PUD for Hiahland Cove S/D 

6. FS 106.15 Campaigning in government facilities: Rob Robinson commandeered the 
Davenport Commission Chambers during normal business hours to conduct two (2) tv interviews 
to promote his campaign, "integrity". Every candidate's packet included a memo from the Polk 
County Board of County Commissioners prohibiting campaigning in government facilities. Link 
for Bay News 9 interview on 3/8/2019: 
https://www.baynews9.com/fl/tampa/news/2019/03/08lformer-davenport-mayor-who-illegally­
used-handicap-tag-to-run-again# 

7. FS 106.143 - Literature does not reference 11paid for by" statement nor are these 
expenses listed in his campaign finance reports. Mr. Robinson failed to report the printing 
and postage expenses for two large post cards (6" x11 ") in his campaign finance reports as an in­
kind contribution or as an expense for the following 2 post cards: 

i. 11A Me$sage to the Residents of Davenport" 
ii. The Question Is - are you going to be misled again? 

Page 5 of79 
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Complalnant: Bradley · Respondent: Robinson 

8. FS 106 A photo posted on Rob Robinson's face book of Linda Robinson (Treasurer), Bob Lynch 
(Seat 3 Candidate), Denise Lynch (Treasurer) at Rob Robinson's house preparing a letter 
"Legacy: Something that is a part of you that remains"; which does state is paid for by both 
Rob Robinson and Bob Lynch; but !!...02! referenced on his finance report as paying for 50% of 
these "shared" expenses for printing, envelopes and postage for this document. Photo of botH 
bampaigns together preparing "The Legacy'' mailings at Robinson's house - Attachment T J 

Mr. Robinson has over 53 years municipal government experience, a former police chief, interim city 
manager, commissioner for many years and serves on the Ridge League of Cities board. He is fully 
aware of the violations he committed willfully, intentionally and with malice. His campaign flyer is 
!Attachment UJ 

I believe his false, vicious statements and personal attacks sent via emails, flyers, post cards, letters, 
tv interviews, personal visits to citizens, and facebook posts altered the outcome of the Mayor's 
election In his favor. He willfully and intentionally violated FS 104 and 106. 

(3) Any person who violates any provis;on of th;s section ;s guilty of a felony of the th;rd 
degree, punishable as provided ins. US,082 ors. US,0831 and from and after conviction shall be 
disQualffted to hold office. 

My campaign flyer outlines my promises made and kept as mayor from 2013 - 2017 and my 
accomplishments in 4 years. My campaign flyer is !Attachment~-

My campaign flyer also Informed citizens of Ordinance 881 which became Amendment 1 on the 
ballot. If passed, Amendment 1 would remove the Mayor's seat, create a 5th commission seat, and 
the commissioners would appoint a Mayor amongst themselves instead of allowing the people of 
Davenport to elect their mayor. 

A copy of Amendment 1 as It appeared on the ballot is !Attachment S. I included a copy of 
Amendment 1 ballot language with my campaign flyer. 

I did not send out letters, postcards or post any comments on social network about my opposing 
candidate. I did send out an email Inviting the public to attend a town hall meet and greet the 
candidates; which Rob Robinson did not attend. 

Mr. Robinson will stand for re-election at the beginning of 2020. The election Is held the first 
Tuesday in April 2020. Resolution of this affidavit of complaint Is urgent and crucial so that the 
citizens are not forced into either a special election or the commission appointing their own mayor. 
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Complainant: Bradley Respondent: Robinson 

(--.iFlorida Statutes penalize these violations with hefty fines and removal from office. The election rules 
and penalties were provided to every candidate. Every candidate must acknowledge, sign and return 
Fori:n DS-DE 84 (05/11) as confirmation he/~he read Chapter 1 Oij and return the form to the city clerk 

I \ 
I 

The Florida Election Commission was formed to guard against these malicious and willful attacks on 
candidates, especially those that know better. I ask for your swift action on this complaint. 

Thank you, 

Darlene Bradley 

Page 515 

Page 7 of 79 



() 

FEC Complaints: FS 104 & 106 

Submitted 9/10/2019 

Complainant: Darlene Bradley, 
Candidate for Davenport Mayor 

April 2, 2019 * Davenport Election 

Respondent: Rob Robinson, 
Candidate for Davenport Mayor 

[Type here] 
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Community Involvement 
Mayor 

City of Davenport 

Host/Organizer Davenport 
2nd Saturday Cruise-In 

2008 Davenport Chamber 
Presidents Award Honoree 

Host/Organizer 2008/9 Davenport 
WinterFest a Christmas Parade 

Polk Leadership Institute 
Valedictorian 

RCHS Sigma Honorary Member 

Mayor Darlene - Promises kept: 
As I promised you in 2013, I do not take a 
salary as Mayor. 

I was able to persuade Duke Energy to 
replace the street lights from 100 to 250 
watts at all intersections in Davenport .... [af no 
cost ] I persuaded them to add street lights on 
CR547 too. You asked me - it's done 

I contacted Polk County Sheriff's office & 
saved us $80,000 a year with free jail workers. 
Free is much better don't you think? 

I instiMed a new city tradition for July 4th ·with 
the reading of the Constitution and 
Declaration of Independence. What did you 
think of the new fireworks we did for you this 
year - sponsors paid for it all. 

I requested FOOT to add a left tum signal on 
the street light at Bay Street & 17-92 & they 
did ... Then I asked for a fix for the 17-92 & 
South St Interchange - wow are they great or . 
what? [at no cost to you.] 

Adair Park - redone with Lowes Heroes 
Lewis Mathews completely redone with 
partnership with Haines City. Jamestown 
Park - refurbished with new bathrooms. 

All our side~ks are fixed to top-notch shape. 

Saved us $38 million on our new Sewer Plant 
that was paid for by developer impact fees. 

Our new Event/Community Center is in 
progress - with a special agreement I made 
with a very special developer that covers $4 
million of the cost. It will have a gym, exercise 
area, convention center, entertainment center 
& even a crafting area. The best in NE Polk! 
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Proudly, I want you to know that it 
has been an honor to represent you, 
my neighbors & the citizens of 
Davenport as your Mayor for the last 
few years. I would like the privilege 
to serve another term & ask for your 
vote on April 2nd. I want to thank 
you for taking a chance on me. 

I ran for Mayor in 2013 without any 
political experience - after our last 
mayor told you to your face - that he 
didnt care what the citizens wanted. 
You deserved someone that had 
your best interests at heart. I had 
the passion and ambition to work. 
hard to make our city better. With 
leadership, hard work, research & 
creating partnerships, we were able 
to accomplish a lot in the last few . 
years. I want you to be proud to 
call Davenport your home! I think 
our transformation is something you 
may just want to brag about - & 
wete just getting started. 

I kept my promise when elected to 
be accessible, to listen, and 
represent you. I established a 
"Chat with the Mayor" monthly 
event by meeting with citizens on 
the 4th Saturday of every month at 
the gazebo on Bay Street and 
created a "Mayor's Comer" 
newsletter on the cityi» website to 
keep you abreast of ongoing and 
completed· projects. 

Most importantly, when I was first 
elected I made it a priority to change 
the commission forum to allow 
citizens to speak on any item not on 
the agenda before the meeting 
starts and again on any agenda 
item. It was a tremendous fight, but 
it is now your right. It is YOUR city 
- Your voice needs to be heard. 

On the next page is a recap of 
promises I made to you & other 
projects, initiatives and accomp­
lishments Ive done on your behalf 
over these last few years. Youll find 
I am "hands on" &. a "get 'er done" 
kind of Mayor. 

You see, it's my city too! 

Every year I ·proucily tell you In my 
state of the City address, which 
lists of projects, achievements & our 
goals we accomplished or have on 
tap for the future. 

So I think from this list of promises 
kept, you can see n,e been working 
very hard for you & I try to be as 
respansive to you as I can -
considering I work 12 hour days in 
Winter Park. So if you need to get In 
touch with me - you can always 
email me at davenportmavor@gmall.com 
& I will answer you as soon as I can. 

I need your help & strength to 
continue the transformation of our 
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city back into first class shape and 
Into the 21st century. We are 
starting to look pretty good. Much, 
much more though needs to be 
done. Are you ready? 

What do you say? Lets keep going. 
Together we can make Davenport 
great. 

Lets work together to insure the 
Davenport of tomorrow is the same 
wholesome, friendly town as is the 
Davenport we love today. 

Every month, our visitors tell us how 
much they enjoy our events -because 
we are such a warm and friendly 
place with that sense of hometown 
Ive mentioned before. 

We are like a diamond in the rough 
that just needs a little polishing. 

Let's sparkle together 

I am asking for 
your vote on _ 

April 2nd 

Thank you so much 
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KEEP YOUR RIGHT TO VOTE on APRii lRD 
CHARTER BALLOT QUESTION 

CITY OF DAVENPORT, FLORIDA 
REFERENDUM ELECTION 

ELECTION OF CITY MAYOR BY CITY COMMISSION FROM AMONG ITS MEMBERS 

7 .. , -- .:fhe-Gharter-of-the City-of-Davenport should be amended to reclasslfy and renumber the Mayor 
\,_ ) Seat as Commission Seat No. 5 and require the City Commission to elect the City's Mayor from 

·, among the members of the City Commission on an annual basis at the City Commissions first 
regular meeting In May, following the conclusion of the 2017-2020 term of the Mayor Seat. 

____ Yes (for adoption) 

___,_✓__ No (Against Adoption) 

----------
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\On.Mori,:J~ 20.l]_"at S_jM.i!iu(iii:liel t:astilfo <'lcastiUo@mydavenport.org> wrote: 
Darlene, 

lf~!fo·youremaif·receivedtoday. Gontactwas made"tO tifitta·Ro~inson. -She-acMsesthat ~fie , 
Qi!i1l.!~~~U!:~:li!!_e took pictures of it with her phone and did not keep it-but put it back· in the door --­
~mb.-S~e-~i~orm theMey~-s-~!~~-at_~~e-~~~~Fd~~e_: :~ ~ · · ---- --- ----------

~:Shiextended.an_ap,_olq8'i to y~u and John·. ----- - -- _., .. - -

CRai;liiP:castmo Young; City Cferlr- -, 
City of Davenport·-------- - --· -~ 
1 South Allapaha Avenue 
Davenport, FL 33837 
(863) 419-3300 ext 125 
(863) 419-3302- faJC 

Please visit us at www.mydavenport.org 

No trees were harmed in the sending of this message. However, a large number of 
electrons were inconvenienced. 

Oisclalmer: Under Florida law, e-mail and other personal information is public record and must be 
made available to the public and media upon request, unless otherwise exempt by the Public Records 
Law. If you do not want your e-mail released in response to a public-records request, do not send 
electronic mail to this entity. Instead, contact this office. by phone or in writing. 

From: D Bradley [mailto:davenportmayor@gmail.com1 
Sent: Saturday, January 26, 2019 9:11 PM 
To: Rachel castillo 
Subject: Campaign Theft Violation Complaint 

Rachel, 

C..nx:f!y_. t/~19, at approxlmately•·2:15 pm-: twasparl<ed directtyin•rronrofPaul CMacy..Meye?.°S 
~y_a.~,-t08_E~,ealmetto. -lhey~were.n.Qt.lJ..Q.~i..!C?J _slid_ o..ne~otmy flyers-inside.tneirJ{tiQ~ 
~b~!~ !it!~lng oub 

I have my campaign magnets dlsplayed on my truck; so It was obvious I was campaigning. 

I went back to my truck to update my walklng 11st on which homes had received a flyer when Linda 
Robinson drove very slowly around my truck then parked in Paul & Mary's driveway. 

Mrs. Robinson carefully looked around to see If anyone was looking while she went up to their 
door and took my campaign flyer out of the Meyers' door. 
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I got out of my truck and asked her "Do you want a flyer"? 

She said "No, she had one now". 

,t-as~~ .. ~so_i'tili ~ou ii.tsf fafce fneii: flyer?-0 
__ "\ 

"Stiiirepfie~ •. ':M.!il_lY...Q6es not need it,.she votes for Robbie". -
--------- - - -- ..... -- ------... - - J 

~'!_t~! ~yer and then wenf to ~:r ~~--~f:~ sh!l" made· a phone call:- ---:_ --- .. --- - ---~- - - ------ ---
Isn't removing campaign materials/signs a violation of elections tampering ethics raw? Not to 
mention •stealing" someone's mail? 

It would be unfortunate if incidents such as this were to continue during this election season, 
especially from the Robinson campaign and we look forward to your guidance and forthcoming 
resolution. 

In addition one of my campaign signs was removed from Mr. Leon Higdon's property, 102 E. 
Lemon Street since yesterday. Please advise if someone brought it to City Hall ... or possibly 
someone stole it. 

Should I forward this incident to Chief Holden? Should I call the police if I witness In the future? 

Thank you 

Darlene 
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I , HB Rob Robinson 
March 31 • 

() 

Below is a Re-Post of a Note that I placed on my "Mayor" Facebook page 
earlier today: 

A LETTER FROM YOUR MAYOR H. B. "ROB" ROBINSON (Please Share) 
Well, Folks, here it Isl With 2 days to election day, Bradley-Lepley have now 
sent, via email, the long awaited "re-cycled" personal attacks and lies that is 
Bradley-Lepley's trademark of previous campaigns against rival candidates. 
While it should not come as a surprise to me, I am astoni~hed and offended at 
the viciousness of their lies and personal attacks against me, Commissioner 
Bobby Lynch, and Commissioner Tom Fellows. 
It should not have caught me off guard. because it was not that long ago that 
John Lepley warned me that I could not win an election because I would not lie 
... that I was above lying. He also told me that he and his~Jlarlene.J 

cfil:_adley;would·win-be·caoslfthbyWoulCflie.Tfiey_ ftavfl,no mg~tdJorJhe.law.J 
Florida Statute 104.271 states, "A candidate may not, with actual malice, make 
any false statement about an opposing candidate." 
Please remember the past arrest records of Bradley-Lepley. Ex-mayor Bradley 
resigned in disgrace. She made Davenport the laughing stock of the Nation, 
[See: You Tube MDavenport Mayor Donkey of the Day" from New York]. She has 
no one to blame but herself that she Is no longer mayor! f!!!dJe)f ancrn:-er-:J 

~~nd-J~hn•!:f!~~e~~re-the·ones·who-comm~tte_d·!Jle·crl~lnal-a_cts-~f-s!ealin~, 
r-alterina a liandlcapped.patkina-nlacard. and ldentit'lttreftcWa deceased,----· 

\!@!i~lf~~~a~diC_!P~~-d parking placard~and·identity·tfietfi>f:a-aeceas·ed~ 

woman whose husband is a friend and neighbor. While serving as a 
commissioner, John Lepley was arrested for a road rage incident involving 
battery on a young man, He pied to a reduced charge and was ordered to 
community service. I don't see much trust in either of their actions. 
I ask you to compare their past history in office with those who they have 
maligned (Robinson, Lynch and Fellows) In their vicious email; and join me and 
your fellow citizens in sending Bradley~Lepley back behind their 11No Trespass" 
fence. 
Please do not allow any further lies end embarrassment to our City of 
Davenport. Vote to keep Mayor H. B. 11Rob" Robinson and Commissioner 
Bobby Lynch. 

Rob Robinson 
nauPnnnrt IAaunr 
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https://www,facebook.com/HB-Rob-Roblnson-Davenport-Mayor-1051414444933457/ 

Q9..st~.1.~2Q1fa_ -~ 

TUESDAY, APRIL 2, IS ELECTION DAY IN DAVENPORT (Please Share) 
Over the last several days, I, as well as Commissioner Bobby Lynch, have been the victims of the Bradley-Lepley 
rancid tongue. We are not alone In this. There are many of us who have seen and been victims of Bradley-Lepley's 
malicious comments. The extent to which they have taken their lies In this election ls appalling. 
Neighbors•· The choice Is yours to make. Mal<e It count for the good or Davenport: 

Mayoral candidate H.B. "Rob" Robinson - Am1y Honorable Discharge; North Miami Police Department; former Davenport 
Police Chief; Interim city manager for Davenport and Dundee:.Davenport City Commissioner - Vice Mayor- current 
Mayor. 

Mayoral candidate Darlene Bradley-Lepley- Ex-mayor who resigned In disgrace. She was arrested on 2 felony charges 
and 1 misdemeanor; plead "no contest'' to the misdemeanor. Her actions were not a mistake; she intentionally used the 
handJcap placard over and over again. Nor was lt Just a parking violation. Just Imagine if the parldng placard had belonged 
to your deceased wife, mother, or grandmother? The placard did, In fact, belong tQ the wife of one of your long-time 
Davenport neighbors. Each time the news media mentioned the ·dead woman's handicapped parking placard", your 
neighbor, George Lettennan, re-lived the day his wife died. 

Violations 
Use Possess Personal ID ofDeceased (FELONY) 
Counterfeit License Plates Validation Stickers, Etc. (FELONY) 
Unlawful Use Disabled Parking Permit (MISDEMEANOR) 

rost3/31/20J9~ : ] 

A LETTER FROM YOUR MAYOR H.B. "ROB" ROBINSON (Please Share) 
Well, Folks, here It isl With 2 days to election day, Bradley~Lepley have now sent. via emall, the long 
awaited "re-cycled" personal attacks and lies that is Bradley-Lepley's trademark of previous 
campaigns against rival candidates. While It should not come as a surprise to me, I am astonished 
and offended at the viciousness of their lies and personal attacks against me, Commissioner Bobby 
Lynch, and Commissioner Tom Fellows. 
It should not have caught me off guard, because It was not that long ago that John Lepley warned me that 
I could not win an election because I would not lie .•. that I was above lying. He also told me that he and 
his wife, Darlene Bradley, would win because they would lie. They have no regard for the law. Florida 
Statute 104.271 states, "A candidate may not, with actual mallce, make any false statement about an 
opposing candidate." 
Please remember the past arrest records of Bradley-Lepley. Ex-mayor Bradley was forced to resign in 
disgrace per a plea bargain to avoid trial and possibility of jaiJ time. She made Davenport the laughing 
stock of the Nation, [See: YouTube "Davenport Mayor Donkey of the Day" from New York]. She has no 
one to blame but herself that she is no longer mayor! Bradley and her husband John Lepley are the ones 
who committed the criminal acts of stealing. altering a handicapped parking placard, and Identity theft 
of a deceased woman whose husband Is a friend and neighbor. While serving as a commissioner, John 
Lepley was arrested for a road rage Incident involving battery on a young man. He pied to a reduced 
charge and was ordered to community service. I don't see much trust in either of their actions. 
I ask you to compare their past history in office with those who they have maligned (Robinson, Lynch 
and Feliows) In their vicious email; and Join me and your fellow citizens in sending Bradley-Lepley back 
behind their •No Trespass" fence. 
Please do not allow any further lies and embarrassment to our City of Davenport. Vote to keep Mayor H. 
B. "Rob" Robinson and Commissioner Bobby Lynch. 

Rob Robinson 
Davenport Mayor 
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ONLY 5 MORE DAYS 'TIL ELECTION DAY IN DAVENPORT 
Ex-mayor Bradley-Lepley and husband, John Lepley, are now criticizing the decision to close 
Suwannee Ave. The decision to close Suwannee was made so that the school board could expand 
and re-open the historical Davenport Elementary School campus. Much thought and debate were 
given to this issue by the City Commissioners. Initially, I was against closing Suwannee. However, I 
have come to the realization that with the many new families moving into Davenport it is imperative 
that this school is re-opened. Never having had children perhaps Bradley & Lepley cannot appreciate the 
need for, nor understand the value of, a neighborhood elementary school. 

Bradley & Lepley say that Suwannee Ave. should not be closed because it is the main thoroughfare 
through town. We all know that US Highway 17-92 is the primary north-south roadway. Suwannee is a 
cut-through road extending from US 17-92 to South Boulevard, and has become a convenient route for 
drivers passing through town. I travel Suwannee frequently and will have to change my travel route, too. 
As we all know, changes to traffic patterns are based on the needs of the community. 

\ t~~/27/20J!J 

ONLY 6 DAYS 'TIL ELECTION DAY IN DAVENPORT. 
The voters of Davenport certainly have heard different and conflicting stories this election cycle. The 
Bradley-Lepley team have done what they do best ... spread fear and confusion; and they have 
attempted to pilfer credit for the good work that the current City Commission has accomplished over 
the past year-and-three-months since Bradley was forced to resign from office. 
Bradley & Lepley maintain that I, as the mayor, am taking away a person's right to vote. This is one of 
Bradley's untruthful spins which shows her lack of knowledge. I have supported, and will always 
support, an elected mayor by the people's vote and will always support the people's right to choose. 
Bradley & Lepley maintain that I, as the mayor, do not allow people to speak at our City Commission 
meetings. Another untruthful spin which speaks to Bradley's lack of knowledge of the Florida Statutes. 
The Florida Statutes demand that the public has the right and must be afforded the opportunity to 
speak and be heard before their elected officials on any item or anything. I adhere to the Statutes. 
The need for strong leadership that can be trusted is essential as the City of Davenport moves forward. 
The definition of legacy is "something that is a part of us that remains•. It has always been my goal to 
leave a legacy of integrity and loyalty to community through my lifetime of service •.•. Army, law 
enforcement, a former Davenport police chief, interim city manager, city commissioner, vice mayor 
and now mayor. 
The legacy we leave is the quality of our lives ... The differences In candidates are clear. I appreciate 
your vote on April 2 to re-elect me as your mayor! 

\,Y-osf1/29W19...i J 

ALERT: As the Mayor of Davenport my emall address Is rroblnson@mydavenport.org. Feel free to 
email me with any questions or comments about the City of Davenport, or you may emall City Hall 
directly by contacting City Clerk Rachel Castillo Young at rcastillo@rnydavenport.org. Darlene Bradley 
Is distributing brochures that gives her emall address as davenportmayor@grnail.com. This Is NOT 
my email address nor the email address for Davenport City Hall. I am concerned about her doing this; 
she could possibly circumvent the day-to-day business of the City. 
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LEGACY: Something that is a part of you that remains (Webmeroondensed) 

You have certainly heard many different stories this election cycle, This election is your 
opportunity to send a strong message as we re-elect current Mayor Rob Robinson and 
Commissioner Bobby Lynch. John Lepley and ex-Mayor Teresa Darlene Bradley-Lepley are 
both members and/or founders of "Davenport Concerned Citizens.~ the group 'ffiaf liecl to ybu 
l1foutthe-s-ewer·syst:emiJr.2013·, both·are·candidates; bdtli liave c~ ~unds. She --
,was charged with two felonies and a misdemeanor; he with a relony misdemeaiiofoTassWir-°1 

L~a=oattery. \'IW,nnembers-oftliesame-househoia-onffie Commission = opporfiffiityto 
violiie theSimshine Law (the r~~~~on_of ~~~LCon~t~ their brochures, 

=neit:Jiefoftliem uiffiateatlie Fourth of J!!!f. celebration; neitha.brQk§'aj. aaea1 with7r-
~ developer; neithersave(ft'he city $38 mlllfonon a new sewer phmt; anaih-2-013J 

Qre}!her S!9.Q~-!_ $5,000 lien on ourhomes for S;;eras ilie amount was never esta5lishetl:-j 
- -

Mayor Robinson and Commissioner Lynch have nevertbeen arrested or charged 
with a crime. Here are a few of the things they HAVE done. 

Mayor HB "Rob" Robinson Commissioner Bobby Lynch 
••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••e•••••••••••••••• ■■ m ■■■■■,•••••••••••••••••••• 

Current Vice President Ridge League of Cities 

Championed the new fire station on West Side 

Pursued accreditation of Police Department 

.e<>otclinat~:roys:for-Tots. ,• 

Participates in Mayors/City Mgrs, Coalition 

(Negotiafe.with School Board for schools 

Oversight of second well plant 

Assisted in removal/replacement of city 
sidewalks 

~.A:pp:rovfil:ofhhipg·new·eit:y Manager- \ 

Approved renovations to City Hall 

Continual oversight of budget and millage 

~®iew1U;tti~~ist·wit1tgra:nf tor atywarer-Ii:JJ!!e. 

•••••••••••••••••••••••••■ m ■■■ •m•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••• 

The Bradley/Lepley camp thrive on spreadin.g fear, chaos and confusion. Don't let that 
happen. Need honest answers? Call the City Manager, City Clerk, or other Commission 
members. 

No individual can take credit for the accomplishments in our city. They are the result of the 
combined efforts of the entire Commission worldng with city staff. We have great projects 
ahead of us including a new community center. The need for strong leadership that can be 
trusted as we move forward is essential. 

The legacy we leave is the quality of our lives .... The differences in candidates is clear .... 

,YO'ffl T9 _ _filf-~tE~)ll"Y_OR_JJ_._B.~RO.)T~_J!_O!JINSON-AND_ __ 
n- ------ ---- -------------· -_____ -- ----------
. ,COMMISSIONER.BOBBY.LY.NCH._,. 

\_ Paid poliilciirallvcrtlsemmit"pald (ormi~b; lmRobR®inson~didate for l-1ayor -. 
-... --- - ·- And BobbyL;ynchCandidateforCityCo.rnmissi.onSeat.3 ----

\. -------- ---- ----- ------- - --------
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IN THE .CIRCUIT. COURT OP nm TENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 
IN AND FOR POLK COUNTY, FLORIDA 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

vs 
CASE#: S3-2017-CF-010703-A00O-XX 

AGENCY CASE#: PCSO 2017-0S0907 
. . DIVISION: FS 

TERESA DARLENE BRADLEY. 

T,9 THE CLERK OF l1IB ABOVE STYLED COURT: 

THE STA TB hereby announces a No Bill of the followµig charges: 

CRIMINAL USE OF PERSONAL IDENTIFICATION OF ADECEASED 
· PERSON. 

KNOWINGLY POSSESS ALTERED/COUNTERFEIT DECAL , 
(VALIDAflON STICKER). 

The State requests that the abov.e defendant be discharged from custody only on the 
charges appearing above. The defendant bas pled to Unlawful Use of Handioapped·Placard. 

cc: 

· DATED TIUS Decem~er 15, 2017. 

Jajl -TBRBSA DARLENE BRADLEY DOB: 
Warrants 
PTR 
PCSO 201_7-950907 

BY:=-t-=.=-:>J~=l!'::---r-­B. 

AS 
F 
P -tnt..H!WIU(t:JKA R SA 
B 

FILED POLK COUNTY CLERK OF COURT 12/19/2017 03:40 PM 
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Happ";] elrrl;f 4th 
~ ~ 
.~~~ 

Celebrate July 4th 2015 

Join us in the public reading of the 

Constitution of the United States 

Tow·n Gazebo 

Market Street, Davenport, FL 33837 

12 pm Noon 

Admission Free 

Bring a lawn chair, a flag and wear red-white-blue or your militQry 

uniform to show your pride in our Nation. 

lnvit~ your friends and neighbors and become part of this new Annual 

Tradition I 

All attendees will receive a personal copy of the Constitution of the 

. ~ ◄,United States. 
I 

\.. . 

Davenport Constitution Commrttee (863) 9S6-7141 
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Welcome 

National Anthem 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Prayer for our Country 
' . 

Declaration of Independence 

God Bless America 

The Constitution, Section 1 

The Con4ititution, Section 2 

The Constitution, Section 3 

The Constitution, Section 4 

The Constitution, Section 5 

The Constitution, Section 6 

The Constitution, Section 7 

The Constitution, Section 8 

The Constitution, Section 9 

The Constitution, Section 10 

() 

Mayor Darlene Bradley 

Aijtel Caffie 

Boy Scouts Troop 528 

Pastor Utterback 

Polk County Sheriff Grady Judd 

NiaAmaro 

Pete Rust 

Al Snipes 

Brynn Swnmerlin 

Deborah Adams 

Polk County Commissioner F.d Smith 

Delores Wllson 

C,ommissioner Crystal Williams 

RickAchuff 

Donna Fellows & Lisa Coffey 

Larry Sinibaldi, Shavonn Davis, 

Sara Marlo, & &ther Lubin 

A copy of The Constitution and an American Flag will be provided for all attendees . 

.,......., Appreciation of Support/Sponsors: Cicy of Davenport. Davenport Fire Department, Mayor Bradley, U Vice Mayor Bobby Lynch, BI}'DJl Summerlin, Ridge O>mmtmity High School, C,'remation Services of Mid Florida. 
George letterman and Boy Scout Troops 528. 

Spcda.l thanks to Bob AvCJY for his idea of the publlc reading ofour national documents. 
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July 4th, 2015 Celebration 

(~] In Kind Donations 

C) 

Brynn Summerlin donated sound system 
News Leader free advertising of event 
City of Davenport- bottle water, tents, tables, chairs 
Boy Scouts Troop 528 - presenting the colors 
Ridge Comm.unity High School - Sigma Students 
Congressman Alan Grayson - 50 Constitution booklets 
Fellows Trucking - 200 Flags 
City of Davenport Fire Dept. grilled hotdogs 

Monetary Donations 

Expenses 
200 Copies Constitution Booklets 
Staples Sign 
Dry Ice for popsicles 
Publix Ice Cream 
Stickers - I read The Constitution 
Banner 
Hotdogs, Buns, Napkins 
Cookies/Brownies for volunteers 
Mustard, Ketchup, Relish 
Decorations for gazebo & table cloths 
Fuel - 2 round trips to Lakeland for Dry Ice 
Fliers, handouts, toner 

Total 

Registrants (not all attendees registered) 
Davenport 117 
Haines City 16 
Lake Alfred 2 
Winter Haven 8 
Orlando 1 
Lakeland 1 
Clennont 6 
Altamonte Springs 1 

152 
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$690.00 

$214.00 
$ 18.18 
$ 69.25 
$ 47.50 
$ 34.98 
$ 15.00 
$121.45 
$ 81.88 
$ 10.00 
$ 25.00 
$ 30.00 
$ 40.00 

$707.24 
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Davenport's July 4 Celebration 
_.,--.,, Published: Saturday, July 11, 2015 at 12:01 a.m . 

.I ) ' 
"--. 

On July 4, the city of Davenport commemorated Independence Day with a public reading of the 
Declaration of Independence and the U.S. Constitution. 

Mayor Darlene Bradley did a fantastic job involving members from all across the community, including 
the Davenport Fire Department cooking hotdogs, the Boy Scouts Color Guard and some very 
talented local students who inspired us with their singing. 

Sheriff Grady Judd delivered the Declaration of Independence, and various public leaders and 
citizens read sections of the Constitution. 

Thank you, Mayor Bradley, and all who participated for the opportunity-to celebrate the real meaning 
of Independence Day. 

CHAD DAVIS 
Winter Haven 
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City of Davenport Commission Minutes of February 5, 2018 

APPROVAL OF ORDER OF BUSINESS 

Motton made by Commissioner Summerlin and seconded by Commissioner Fellows to 
approve the order of business. 

With no further discussion, Mayor HB Robinson called for the vote. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Darhlene Zeanwick of 4 West Lemon Street and also the Chair for the Recreation Advisory 
Committee, reported the resignation of Robert Avery. Mrs. Zeanwick requested the 
appointment of Pastor Jeremy Clark to be placed on the next Agenda so that the Committee 
would be complete in time for the March 14th Open Forum. 

/
Ref.lriie Heath. reminded ·the ·commi.s,sion -that-$everar·months ago he had' macle-aJ 
commitment to thei'r previous Mayor in-'trying to-be a good neighbor afici- a good: deV8:loperi 

\As a. resuff, the builder woul~ pay-an=additlolfa!::~1~000 P..!~L@~S!'i.Jts.:..a.~~!K!f!1Pr9vement7 
r-,fee. , • - __ _ _______ -·-· _________ -----~-- _J 
\ ____ - - _J·- -- ·- -- --- -

Jennifer Code-Salisbury with Central Florida Regional Planning Council (CFRPC) 
announced the next Community Workshop for February 27th 6:30 p.m. at the First Baptist 
Church. 

Wayne Benner of 312 E. Bay Street asked the possibility of a bus stop in town and getting 
natural gas on east side of town. 

The Mayor asked that the City Manager look into this. 

Brenda Dolan of 2289 Grantham Avenue and also representing the Davenport Historical 
Society asked for assistance in storing their items during the renovations. 

Discussion ensued with Commissioner Fellows voicing that he felt that the City should step 
up and help cover these costs and Commissioner Summerlin questioning the insurance 
coverage cost based on value and what value had they placed on the historical items. He 
also questioned if the unit would be big enough. Mrs. Dolan responded that the monthly 
insurance fee would be $166.58 and the unit size would be big enough. 

Commissioner Lynch agreed that they should step up and help the Davenport Historical 
Society. 

The City Manager advised that he would place this on the next agenda upon cor:ifirmation of 
costs. 

Commissioner Gonzales asked if they had taken into consideration a company for 
transporting the items. Mrs. Dolan responded that a family was donating the transportation 
of the items this week. 

3 
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City of Davenport Commission Minutes of Julv 30, 2012 

f- ~M~imron-recollectecfd~.ssion·_on:placing ·Hens-on:praperty an(! the)J~~l!_OCt~tve ctiaiQe .. Ltl.e1 

~ttorney advisecftnat he-clid recommend the abir!!Y to serve cflarge: (-

r.. Warren furth~ adg~ thatas.faU1sliens:the·c ·could· ut·a·lien·on{liehomeor-ro - -

CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

City of Dav~nport 
POST OFFICE BOX 125 

DAVENPORT, FLORIDA 33836 

January 31, 2008 

Amy E. Arrington, City Manager 
FROM: Raquel Castillo, City Clerf< 
SUBJ: Research of Minutes 

Tel: (863) 419-3300 
Fax: (863} 419-3302 

As instructed at the last meeting, I have researched the minutes relating to the WVVTP In relation to Council's concerns 
and Inquiries and found the following Information. 

There were several meetings where the sewer project was discussed, but these meetings in particular related to the 
hookup fees/costs. 

January 22. 2007 - Regular Meeting 

At this meeting the SCope of Seivices ror Phase Ill of the Wastewater Treatment Plant was presented to Council for 
approval. 

At the meeting Mr. Lepley v,Olced his concem that before the City paid anymore money that the issue of hookup costs 
should be resolved. Council's consensus was the need to approve the scope of services and talk about hookup fees at a 
later time. 

. ,r'Oclober 29.'2007:: W.@sJuiii -::-i 

.t: ... ., --- -- . ·-··-~ 
Robert mentioned the following In his presentation on the WWTP. 
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CAMPAIGN TREASURER'S REPORT-ITEMIZf:~=~.~~·:_ __ _______ _ 

- - ------- -- -- ·- - - - -
- . 

.. (1) Name HrB;-''ROB!BOBINSON (2) 1.0. Number ...!M=2=-· _ _ _ 

(3) cover Period ....QL I..L I 201fL through ~ / -1§_ I .2Q1ft (4) Page _j_ of _j_ 

(6) (7) 
n..tA FuRNama 
(6) (Laat, Suffbc, Flnlt, Middle) 

Sequence Slrlet Addreea & 
Nrnnbar Cllv. Sta14L Zlo l'.nda 

03 J n, / 19 Harriet Rewis Rust 
1830 Pawnee Trall 

1 Lakeland, FL 33803 

03 / 04 / 19 tiatd[ft_i>~I! 
6 E. Cen I· venue-

2 Winter·Haven, FL-33880 

03 I 04 / 19 Winter-HavflfMan~ 
Ment,Servlceiru:c~ ... 

3 -345 c.Centrat~~e ~ 'Winter Haven, Ft:. 3 seo 

M / 04 / 19 Ldcevllle Partners LLC 

4 
~e.-.centrat·Avenue-i 

erl'lave"n-;-Fl:'33880 

03 I 04 / 19 Heath Construction & 
Management LLC 

5 , -34EtE::-C~1nit·Aver1ue 
-~et. ~~'len •. F.L 33880 

n~ I nA I 19 CAS Holdings LLC 
3:46·.E:-Centrat·Avenue. 

6 Wlntet-Haven,-FL33880 

I I 

DB•DE 13 (Rev. 11113) 

(8) 

Contributor 
Time - .. on 

I Retired 

• e -1.:ancr__: 
. \ Develolf• 
- ' J!!~ru._: 

B .::tend-·_, 
,Develop:-..,. 
tment--

B :rana- :.:: ... 
!Oevelo~-.: 
·ment-'.""' 

B a!a;s-;!., 
LOev.e.lop-,~ 
niene:_.• 

-eS Land - . 
;Oevelo~. · 
·rnent -

(9) (10) 

Contribution In-kind 
r- Deecrlnlfon 

CHE 

CHE 

CHE 

CHE 

CHE 

CHE 

(11) (12) 

Amendnenl Amount 

$150.00 

[stooo:oo 

,.-...--._ 
, . "'-~000.00 · : 

-~- .. _____ 
$-f.ffiio.oo · .,: 

l!!~000.00; 

s1..ooo.oo..: .... .,. 

81!& ReYERII! FOR INSTRUCTIONS AND CODE VALUl:S 
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CAMPAIGN TREASURER'S REPORT-ITEMIZED CONTRIBUTIONS 

(1) Name H. B. "ROB" ROBINSON (2) LD. Number __ M_1 ___ _ 

(3) Cover Period .J)2_ I _Q,L I 2.Q1a 1hrough ___Jla._ / _Qi_ / .2Qffl (4) Page ~ of _2_ 

(6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) (12) 
Dale FtlllName 
(6) (Leal, Suffix, First, Middle) 

Sequence Snat Addreaa & Contributor Conlribulfon IMdftd 
flllmber C!tv. stata. 71n Code TVDe 0 

.. 1vlm - ... Aallnclmenl AIIINlftt 

021 04 119 Geo~Letterman I Retln3d CHE $600.00 
312 reas St Eest 

1 Davenport, FL 33837 

M / nR '1Q ~rtenMci<rilglit' r·r-; Cllnls CHE ~oo-, 
-69 B~re Roacf ), ,,, • .J .. lndust,y ---• •"- w 

2 :J)atnes Ctty;F.L~ --··-· 

02 / 08 I 19 , ·1:1o,1~ru1t Pmducta•·. c~~ Citrus CHE c~-r ,PO; ·· · oa "i · Industry 
3 ~F.L-~ __ 

02, 12 119 Howard and Faflma GIU ' CHE $100.00 
POBox784 

4 Davenport, Fl 33845 

021 14 I 19 Abelardo Gonzalas I CHE $60.00 
8 Cypress Street East 

5 Davenport, F\. 33837 

MI 14 /UI Unda Robinson I CHE $100.00 

6 

M / 16 f1Q Deborah Bunesa I Reliled CHE $160.00 

7 
118 EaatrJa_Stleet 
Davenport, 338S7 

DS-01! 13 (Rev.11113) SU Rl!VERSI! fOR INSTRUCTIONS AND CODE VALUES 
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City of Davenport Commission Minutes of March 4, 2019 

The Mayor opened and closed the Public Hearing with no public comment. 

There being no discussion, the Mayor called for the vote. Motion carried unanimously. 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. P-UBLIC HEARING· -ANo··sECOND" READING-oF-oROINANCE .... Ne:-876-REGARDI~ 
\iatONTA"RY" ANNEXAT,I0~: C:>F- A-·PARCEt-OP LAND. ·(OWNER:. ASTORIA:.? 
•P.ROPERT:IES;-LLC':i:.GENERAL:LOC-ATION: NC:>RT.H.OF- NORTH BOULEVARlifE;-EAST 
OF·l:JS:~17/92)' . - ~ ---
\._._.-. __. 

At this time the Attorney was instructed to read Ordinance No. 876 by title . 

. City Planner Raymond Perez explained that this was second reading of the Ordinance. Raymond 
noted that the metes and bound legal description was included in the Ordinance. 

The Mayor opened and closed the Public Hearing with no public comment. 

.,Motion ·oy:c·ominissklner~Lyh9h•end .sec;onqed~ li.Y,CQrn'!llssloner Kneeld·to-approve Qr.dinan§) 
C~~- ~8?_~ ~~~"~:_~~dr~adih~J~].Q!!.9~_c:ar~eq .l,!,n~Qill!~~~~~~~ .?iscu:~i~~~:~~ .... 

- ........ - - ... ♦---

2. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING OF 10RDIN~NCEN0-:0'7TTO~PROVl:~J 
SMALL SCALE LAND USE PLAN MAP AMENDMENT (LUPA) FROM POL:lrCOtJNTY 
RESIDENTIAL MEDIUM EXTRA (RMX) TO RESIDENTIAL MEDIUM (RM). (OWNER: 
ASTORIA PRO"PE'RTIE'S;'CCC-;;:GENERAL LOCATION: NORTH OF NORTH BOULEVARD 
E, EAST OF us· ·r11s2r- ____, 

At this time the Attorney was instructed to read Ordinance No. 877 by title. 

City Planner Raymond Perez explained that this was second reading of the Ordinance and there 
were no changes since first reading. 

The Mayor opened and closed the Public Hearing with no public comment. 

Motion,.by_~.Q.e,:May_pr Summerlin and secondeif6y connniS'slonefFellowsto_appr.oY.;.Ordin~-nceJ \..-- ---~ -.. ~ .. - ..a-------·--
1~0~7!:on:i!:3•::::end·an~~l~~~lld~~~~-~t~~n_·:a.~~a~n:1~!.Y~~~JS~~!!~ 

3. ~PUBLlc·HeAR1NG AN·o-s1:c0Nl'.f RE1'DING'"OF""ORDINANge NO. 878 TC;JREZO~E A 
'pARCEL OF LAND FROM MUL Tl•FAMlt;Y;,.:HMF--3)-AND·POl:.K COUNTY RESIDENTIAi!. 
MEDIUM-0(RMXl. 1-0- PLANNED UNIT" DEVELOPMENT- -(PUO}~·(OWNER: -ASTORIA :J 
P,ROPERTIES .. LL:.C· -GENERAL (O.CATION:-NO~TH OF NORTH BOlJE:EVARD''Ef EAST..; 
O·F·-us 111e2 · • ·· - • - · -~·•··-- ·- -~ _ _,_ ......___ , - ··- - .... - ...... ~-P-· .,...,..--- ·- _...., 
\...--~ 

~~i~~-t~e-Attprn~Y.·Was:lnstructed to r;,i:~.t?:r'.~i_n~i;i"~~.1;_-~?a_ ~K,!!!1!:J 
City Planner Raymond Perez explained that this was second reading of the Ordinance and no 
changes have been made since first reading. Raymond further detailed that the total acreage of 
this PUD consisted of 70.80 acres. 

The Mayor opened and closed the Public Hearing with no public comment. 
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City of Davenport Commission Minutes of March 4, 2019 

Motior.,J,y·<?..9rn!_niss1oaet..t:WP.b:i;Jn"d-seco~e"d"bY·~!ce=Mayot§.~~~ei'li~-t~:f al?e~ve Ofainiinc~] 
•'N.o.,._8.7-8 .. on.,ts _secon1t·readlng:-Motlon·camed·unanlmously With no a,scu~~ 

'°~~ecUng ~l~quesiiorf\odeve~p~r-Re~l~ H~h~C~•Mayor Summerlin questioned when were 
'-tliey looking-at ann~.!Dg·the·ad_J~cent unincorporated piece to the east of this property?c:Mr--:-fiel!th--. 
(][tbe:..:cassidy-Group.,M.6~E.-Centi'al:"~veniJe-;JWinter Haven answered that their goal was to --J 

annex this plus another parcel to the north but could not pinpoint a timeframe. 

4. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE 882 TO REZONE A 
PARCEL OF LAND FROM RESIDENTIAL ESTATE 1 (RE-1} TO RESIDENTIAL ESTATE 2 
(RE-2). (OWNER: MARK F. BANJAK - GENERAL LOCATION: 327 NORTH BOULEVARD 
WEST) 

At this time the Attorney was Instructed to read Ordinance 882 by title. 

City Planner Raymond Perez explained that this ordinance was also being presented for second 
reading and rezoned the parcel from RE-1 to RE-2. 

The Mayor opened and closed the Public Hearing with no public comment. 

Motion by Commissioner Fellows and seconded by Commissioner Kneeld to approve Ordinance 
No. 882 on its second reading. Motion carried unanlmously with no discussion. 

5. ,fiUBLIC-HEARll\l'<C"AND-sECOND "RcADINtr.O~ANCE 883 TO· REZONE-TWO 
.PARCE(S-Orl.'ANO·FOR"SOOTRERN..cROSSINGS-SUBDIV.ISION FROM RESIDENTIAL! 
. 1r,R.:1.) TO PlANNEO-UNIT o"EVECOPMENT-{PUDJ. [OWNER:-HGL.L-Y-HILl:71iOIT.:1 

~PRODUCTS CO~lNC:/CIRCQS l~NJNC ........ GENERAI, ·ufC",6TlQN:-SQU:tl:l~BOULEVN3D1 

,VVESTJ: --;= 
At this time the Attorney was instructed to read Ordinance No. 883 by title. 

City Planner Raymond Perez explained that this was second reading of the ordinance and there 
were no changes since its first reading. 

The Mayor opened and closed the Public Hearing with no public comment. 
____ ......... ____________ - -------- ~.,..--c,----,---,..,_.__...,.~-----

\.Matlon.b~.Q!,ri..'!1iSSloner Lyn·ch t!'IJ.Q.§§~onaed .~Y.;S::ommissioner Kneel~Jg~ro.ve Ordinance, 
{~. B83 on its second reading. Motion carrie~ ~~mously ~h n~ d~~us~Lon. } 

NEW BUSINESS 

2. REQUEST TO APPRQVE THE SELECTION OF TH§ TOP FIVE CONSULTANTS FROM 
THE REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS FOR CONTINUING ENGINEERING SERVICES 
f18/19-02 ADVERTISED ON JANUARY 4, 2019 

Utlllties Director Mike Stripling explained that Staff ha·d gone out for proposals. Said proposals 
had been reviewed by selected staff and the top five firms were being presented for approval. 

The Mayor opened and closed the Public Hearing with no public comment. 
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City of Davenport Commission Minutes of March 18, 2019 

He also felt that the primary problem with the appointed Mayor was that it would be 
substantially more difficult to get him or her out because the voters would have to wait till off 
cycles. Mr. Zaharee also questioned If there was a term limit for the Mayor. 

The City Commission responded that the Mayor was a Commissioner and was up for election 
every three years. Commissioner Kneeld further added that the appointed Mayor would be 
accountable annually because they would be appoint by the Commission annually. 

In answer to Mr. Zaharee's question, Commissioner Kneeld provided that he had initially 
suggested the ordinance to the City Commission. 

,Mr.:Zaharee furtherveiced·thatt~ey all cared about the city and he respected this. He wasn't 
n judging·any-metives-b.ut'h""Effelnnat they should have publicized this a little longer than the 2 

~/~_;onths. . -~{)_ 

?J!~Jln ofasing, he questioned Commissioner Lyne~ If h«:_!:~~ vat~. fo!the Or.~in~_nce, t9 .W..hi~◄h r1\' 
~ '\i-~::~h~~s~:~ that he h~d not. ( ,1,~·:.~.rs~~:t~ll:~. -~.-:;.:· _ r" ..... --~ 

There being no one else the Mayor closed the Public Hearing. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

At this time the Mayor opened and closed the Public Hearing with no public input. 

Motion by Vice-Mayor Summerlin and seconded by Commissioner Lynch to approve the 
Consent Agenda which included the Minutes of the March 4, 2019 Regular Meeting. Motion 
carried unanimously with.no discussion. 

OLD BUSINESS .. None 

NEW BUSINESS 

1.~UBtlC' HEARING )~ND-RE®EST FOR~APREtlMINAR'fl PLAf'~APPROVAL"FOR1 

(
flSOUTHERN CROSSINGS ~UBDIVISiON" - GENERAL .. LOCATION: SOtJ.TH=:OF) 
SOUTH BOULEVARD. (PROPERTY OWNER: HOLLY HILL FRUIT PRODUCT CO. IN~ 
& CIRCUS INN INC:1--~------===---------

- _ ...... ··--·-=--

City Planner Raymond Perez announced that this was a request for a preliminary plat for 
Southern Crossing. The property consisted of a 93 lot single family subdivision, located in 
the PUD zoning district. Raymond further explained that the Planning Commission had 
recommended approval earlier in the evening. 

At this time the Mayor opened and closed the Public Hearing with no public input. 

Motion by Commissioner Fellows and se~nded by Commissioner Kneeld to approve the 
preliminary plat for Southern Crossings; · 
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City of Davenport Commission Minutes of March 18, 2019 

Brief discussion ensued with the Vice-Mayor reiterating his comments from the Planning 
Commission regarding a second entrance. 

There being no other discussion, the Mayor called for the vote-.:..Motian carries unaniJ:n9u~yl.., 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 

The City Manager thanked the Staff members that had attended the Relay for Life event 
Friday on behalf of the City. 

He also announced that the City had received a check for $322,000 for the School Board's 
portion for the sewer line project. 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT- Nothing to report 

CITY CLERK REPORT - Nothing to report 

CITY COMMISSION COMMENTS 

The Vice.Mayor announced that he was unable to attend the Relay for Life event, however 
he had attended an event in Tenoroc with Sheriff Grady Judd and had the privilege of working 
with about 20 cadets from the Summerlin Academy in Bartow. He had been so impressed by · 
them that he just had to share with them. 

Commissioner Kneeld also thanked all the staff that had worked on the Relay for Life event. 

Mayor Robinson expressed that he also had attended and had given the opening address at 
the event. Mayor Robinson added that next year he would like to see Davenport have their 
own tent at the event. 

There being no further business, a motion to adjourn was made by Commissioner Lynch and 
seconded by Commissioner Kneeld. 

Meeting adjourned at 7:25 p.m. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Minutes are true and correct. 

Raquel Castillo, City Clerk 
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Marissa Barmby with the Central Florida Regional Planning Council announced that his 
was first reading of the Ordinance adopting the Land Development Regulations which 
also included zoning map changes related to combining zoning districts and rezoning the 
Impacted properties. 

The Mayor opened and closed the Public Hearing with no public Input. 

Motion by Commlssioner Lynch and seconded by Commissioner Fellows to approve 
Ordinance No. 87 4 on Its first reading. Motion carried unanimously with no discussion. 

,,.. • ,. f."'"'"\ 

30UB£=1e-HEARING AND-f.lRST.READING-Ofc:QRDINA"R~8.85-AeBRQUIN@ 
\ A--FINAL PLAT FOR ."CITRUS- POIN'.fE .. SUBDJVIS,ION" ~ GENERAL LOCATION:"; 

(-"Q§Ast OF-Aou ... v_ .HILL- ROAD.SOUTfC-OF· :NQRl'H-B0l:JbEVARD-WES-T-r 
jJP-kOP,5,~Tv-oWNER: ARR EAST,-C~C) 

At this time the Attorney was instructed to read Ordinance No. 885 by title. 

City Plann~r
1 
R!!Y-mond Perez announced that this was a request to approve a final plat 

(.f.of.:Cltr.us. - O nte-subdivision,,_gaymor:ia.fur.tfier.tioJe:d·t1ratthis-was·a-1·0QJot:su6aivisloh . .::::-J 

The Mayor opened and closed the Public Hearing with no public Input 

Motion by Commissioner Fellows and SefQ.Dded-by-Gemmissioner_.l~:oeeld !)~pprove 
c:0rdi!)§jncaNo.Jl85..as..teai[--NJot1nn carded.unanill'lO.usty_with.r:io.dlscussion--' 

4. REQUEST TO APPROVE RESOLUTION 408-19 APPROVING AN APPLICATION 
WITH THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION STATE 
REVOLVING FUND FOR PHASE ONE WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITIES 
LOAN NUMBER WW 53071 

At this time the Attorney was instructed to read Resolution No. 408-19 by title. 

Utilities Director Mike Stripling explained that this was the loan application for the phase 
one upgrades for the wastewater treatment plant with a principal forgiveness of $504,200. 

Mike noted a change to the application In Section Ill, which should reflect revenue pledges 
from both water and wastewater revenues. 

The Mayor opened and closed the Public Hearing with no public input. 

Motion by Commissioner Fellows and seconded by both Commissioners Lynch and 
Kneeld to approve Resolutfon No. 408-19. 

Discussion ensued with the Vice-Mayor questioning the content of the project. Mike 
responded that it consisted of the gravity system to the school, headworks at the WWTP 

Page 12 

Page 48of79 



() n 

Page 49of 79 



City of Davenport Commission Minutes of Aprll 15, 2019 

There being no further discussion, Commissioner Kneeld amended the motion on the table 
to approve the LDR's but with the change back to 1,500 sf as they were read on April 1s1• The 
second was provided by Commissioner Lynch and carried unanlmously. 

As a point of order, the Mayor called for the vote on the original motion. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

~ G 
. . T 

C OLLY HI . :J'.v,.(PROP.ERTY.. 
OWNER: HHR-EAST;-l;L~~ · = ;:::, 

At this time the Attorney was instructed to read Ordinance 885 by title. 

City Planner Raymond Perez explained that this was second reading of the Final Plat for 
Citrus Pointe and there had been no changes since first reading. 

The Public Hearing was opened and closed with no public input. 

Motl!ln by Commissioner FeJlow.s_ar.id-secon.Qfil! by Vlce_:Mayo~ ~mmerlln to approve 
Ordinance 885 as read. ~n carrle.d..uoaolmaus~~s.fil.O.D. 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. - C1HEA~N-· 1'01wa·oF5eRDJNAN · -.. • IN~-A:/ 
PLAT FOR "lil E SUBDIV.ISION" -G :·EAS:t 

At this time the Attorney was Instructed to read Ordinance 884 by title. 

City Planner Raymond Perez advised that this was approval for the final plat for Highland 
Cove subdivision and recommended for approval by the Planning Commission earlier in the 
evening. He further provided that' Staff recommended approval with the change of the 
minimum living square footage from 1,300 to 1,500. 

The Mayor opened the Public Hearing. 

Douglas Stamm of 692 Cantabria Drive - Dell Web Community accepted and provided that 
his home bordered on this subdivision and questioned if the builder was going to do anything 
to replace the tress that were removed In the right-of-way and asked why had the city 
approved the removal of the trees. 

Raymond provided that he would be glad to meet with Mr. Stamm and the engineer on this 
project, however this project had met all the requirements of the LDR's. 
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1'Renriie-l,eatt'fivitlf"rfeafnConstr.uctiori&-l'v'lanageme.,nt ti:¢. -an~.f~pr~e~!~~~~O(A.:Rookst. 
!:_~ a~k!d;,fo~ ~l~rillc~tf.?~J~o!TI ,~aymo~~ !~t- he·~a~-recom.mendi~ .=_a,eJ?rovalmtfil~-~fia.!] 
Jc)t vv,th tfie _cliange ·f~o~ 1,'30~ sr~·,so~~!:_ "Raym.~d re~ponaea-tfiat-he. ~as an~ ~ 

r-eason-forthIs-wa·s-b-ecauslflif ttre CommIssIon's aecIsIon to l<eep tlie'R3 mmImum hvmg 
area of 1,500 sf. 

There being no one else, the Mayor closed the Public Hearing. 

Motion by Vice-Mayor Summerlin and seconded by Commissioner Lynch to approve the final 
plat for Highland Cove subdivision. 

Discussion ensued with the Commission questioning if the right-of-way was a road right-of­
way or a utilities right-of-way and had it been closed. Raymond responded that it was a road 
right-of-way and it had been closed. 

Brief discussion ensued on the ownership of the abutting property of the right-of-way and 
Raymond was asked to look into this. 

~~~s-~µ!Jtie.Mayor_calle.oifuZi~ff~<'.1~~.;!~~?~ ~-~.!~~dJl~~!G 
2. REQUEST TO APPROVE THE FY 19/20 STATE HIGHWAY LIGHTING MAINTENANCE 

AND COMPENSATION AGREEMENT FROM THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION (FOOD 

The City Manager explained that this was an annual agreement with a slight increase of $152 
from last year. 

At this time the Mayor opened and closed the Public Hearing with no public input. 

Motion by Commissioner Kneeld and seconded by Vice~Mayor Summerlin to approve the 
19/20 State Highway Lighting Agreement with Florida Department of Transportation. Motion 
carried unanimously with no discussion. 

3. APPROVE AN AGREEMENT WITH THE POLK COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR FOR THE 
UNIFORM COLLECTION OF A NON-AD-VALOREM ASSESSMENT FOR 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 

The Public Hearing was opened and closed with no public input. 

Utilities Director Mike Stripling explained that this agreement would establish the terms and 
conditions in which the Tax Collector would collect and enforce the collection of this 
assessment. This would be assessed on an annual basis on the tax bill. 

Motion by Commissioner Fellows and seconded by Commissioner Lynch to approve the 
Agreement with the Polk County Tax Collector for the collectlon of a non-ad-valorem 
assessment for stormwater management. Motion carried unanimously with no discussion. 
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CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion by Commissioner Fellows and seconded by ViceMMayor Summerlin to approve t!ie 
Consent Agenda which consisted of the Minutes of the April 15, 2019 Planning Commission 
and the April 15, 2019 Regular Meeting. Motion carried unanimously with no discussion. 

At this time the Mayor .opened and closed the Public Hearing with no public input. 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE 879 TO APPROVE A 
LAND USE PLAN AMENDMENT (LUPA) OF lWO SEPARATE SUBDIVISIONS FROM 
RESIDENTIAL SUBURBAN EXTRA (RSX} TO RESIDENTIAL LOW (RL). (OWNERS: 
MYSTERIOUS PINK APARTMENTS, LLC AND NVR INC. - GENERAL LOCATION: 
MYSTERY HOUSE ROAD, WEST OF PINK APARTMENT ROAD) 

At this time the Attorney was instructed to read Ordinance ·No. 879 by title. 

City Planner Raymond Perez provided that this was the LUPA of 19.26 acre parcels along 
Mystery House Road (Pleasant Hill Estates) and staff recommended approval. 

The Mayor opened and closed the Public Hearing with no public Input. 

Motion by Commissioner Fellows and seconded by Commissioner Lynch to approve 
Ordinance No. 879 as read. Motion carried unanimously with no discussion. 

2. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE 880 FOR THE 
REZONING OF 1WO SEPARATE SUBDIVISIONS FROM RESIDENTIAL SUBURBAN 
EXTRA (RSX) TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT PUD. {OWNERS: MYSTERIOUS 
PINK APARTMENTS, LLC AND NVR INC. - GENERAL LOCATION: MYSTERY HOUSE 
ROAD, WEST OF PINK APARTMENT ROAD) 

At this time the Attorney was instructed to read Ordinance No. 880 by title. 

Raymond explained that this was for the rezoning of the same parcel. 

The Mayor opened and closed the Public Hearing with no public Input. 

Motion by Commissioner Kneeld and seconded by Commissioner Fellows to approve 
Ordinance No. 880 as read. Motion , carried unanimously with Commissioner Kneeld 
questioning lf there were any changes since the last hearing to which Raymond responded 
that nothing had changed. 

3. POBLI E ING AND .SEC ND READING OF QRDINANC.E. NO, 884 APPRCVING7 
~-t;INAL PLAT FOR. ·''HIGHLAND CO.VE~S.UBDIVISTON...-::c;·eN5RA[ "LO-C-AtlON?-°' 

(EASt °;E-#,Ol;L '(,. H_IL_~ BOAD, "NO.RTH OF -NQR;JTH BQULEVAR0r-(PRQPER:rv 
OWNER':""i lf."0.0KS, Llfe)- . _ ___ ,.. __ """'--,.. .. · .. 
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., At this time the Attorney was instructed to read Ordinance No. 884 by title. 

Raymond provided that this was for the final plat of the Highland Cove subdivision. The R-3 
zoning in this subdivision required a minimum living area of 1,500 sq.ft Raymond advised 
that there had been no changes since the last hearing and recommended approval. 

The Mayor opened the Public Hearing. 

Bill Blake of 580 Cantabria Drive accepted and questioned why the trees had been removed 
and what the Intention was to restore the property. Mr. Blake further added that the trees had 
provided a nice barrier to all the abutting residences. 

Raymond responded that the Developer had complied with all the Land Development 
Regulation requirements. The engineer was present In the audience to provide any further 
comments or information on this. 

Rodney Gadd with GADD & ·Associates located at 1925 US 98 South, Lakeland added that 
the 30' was a public right-of-way and half was In the County end the other half was in the City. 
It was their intention to have this right-of-way vacated. The right-of-way in general didn't by 
default leave a vegetative buffer between two developments. They were seeking the 
subdivision of land for the Improvements and If any trees were taken down outside of anything 
that wasn't allowed would be a Code Enforcement issue. They could definitely attempt to get 
the contractor to make It right however anything that was removed would have been approved 
by Staff. 

Commissioner ·Kneeld noted that they had discussed this in length at their last meeting but 
looking at the map, the County ROW was closed and given to Del Webb and the other was 
closed for this new development so both properties were abutting directly up against each 
other. · 

Vice-Mayor Summerlin questioned when they had abandoned their portion. Commissioner 
Kneeld responded that It had been done when they had approved this development. Mr. 
Gadd interjected and added that whet they were approving tonight would abandon the east 
portion abutting the property however the remaining portion that went out to Forest Lake Drive 
would not be and would be used for utilities and a partial roadWay. 

Mr. Blake took the floor again and corrected the record by pol ntlng out that the strip of land 
was not owned by anybody. His position would be that they not approve the plat until this 
Issue was resolved. He believed that It was important not to vacate public land without the 
right conditions set on it and the conditions should be that the developer and landowners 
agree on a replacement of the trees _or some barrier to replace what was taken down. 

There being no other public Input, the Mayor closed the Public Hearing and entertained a 
motion. 
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Cliiiotion-::~eommissioner-Kr:ieeld-anct seconded-by-commissioner ~ellQ.~..Q ~pprqye 
~fui!Jf~ _N_o. -~~~~ppfuving the~fi~~I_EI~~~:. t-!i~hland"Gove.-~~oh.... ,. . !:-:._...::J 
The Mayor questioned Raymond if the city had met all the rules and regulations and laws of 
the State, the County and the City. Raymond responded that it had and the City had complied 
with the City's Land Development Regulations. 

,, 
Vice-Mayor Summerlin further voiced his concerns with the abandonment of the right-of-way. 
The City Manager explained that the portion that would be abandoned ran into the Marbella 
Subdivision and this was where the right-of •Way stopped and didn't go any further. In answer 
to the Vice-Mayor's next question, he answered that there would not be any need for the City 
to use this piece of property since everything was already developed in the area. 

He understood Mr. Blake's concern with the buffer but if the city didn't own the piece of 
property it wasn't up to the City to say whether or not the trees could be removed or replaced. 
This would be between the County and the cfeveloper. He wanted to go on record by stating 
that any utility right-of .way that they now had they had to maintain becaw~e they may need it 
in the future; and if there was a possibility that they may need it, he didn't want to give it away. 

Commissioner Kneeld added that this was an excellent point and this is was something to 
take into consideration going forward and hoped that staff would point it out to them. 

The City Manager asked Mr. Gadd if he could talk to the developer to see if they could replace 
some of the trees or place some kind of buffer. Mr. Gadd responded that he couldn't speak 
for the developer but he would ask. 

Commissioner Lynch further noted that he had questioned ownership of the property and 
wanted to be absolutely sure. Mr. Gadd shared that a title search had been done and 
reviewed by all parties. 

Commissioner Fellows felt that they need to extend the good neighbor policy. 

Before voting, Vice-Mayor Summerlin pointed out that no trees would be placed in utility 
easements anyways. 

-....---,---~:---::--~---:---:-:~---··- ------~---------
\_Tfier=-~~g no further discussi~~~~l-~r called for the vot!:..__ Motion ca~u~im~~!YJ 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-MAYOR 

The Mayor opened the floor for nominations for Vice~Mayor. 

Commissioner Fellows motioned to reappoint Brynn Summerlin as Vice-Mayor. The 
seconded was provided by Commissioner Lynch. 
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2. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 891 ADDRESSING 
TRAFIC CONTROL ON ESCAMBIA AVENUE AND MIAMI AVENUE 

At this time the Attorney was Instructed to read Ordinance No. 891 by title. 

Chief Holden advised that there were no changes since the last meeting and proceeded to briefly 
Identify the. locations involved. 

The Mayor opened the Public Hearing with no public input. 

Motion by Commissioner Kneeld and seconded by Commissioner Lynch to approve Ordinance 
No. 891. 

Discussion ensued with Vice-Summerlin asking when they were going to do an evaluation to add 
more and further added the needed to set a specific timeframe to reevaluate the need. 

Mayor Robinson opposed this idea and voiced that he personally did not like it. They had enough 
heartburn without adding stop signs at every intersection. 

Commissioner Kneeld asked if Staff was still pursuing the school board about changing the bus 
stop from Lemon Street to Palmetto Street. Staff responded that they had not but would be talking 
to them at the May 28th meeting at the Community Center. 

He also questioned why the stop signs were put up before second reading of the Ordinance. The 
City Manager responded that staff felt that it was an emergency situation because of the 
complaints the City had received. In addition, they wanted to know what kind of feedback It would 
get before second reading. There had been negative comments but the majority were positive. 

There being no further discussion, the Mayor called for the vote. Motion carried unanimously. 

NEW BUSINESS 

t.::1 • ...,PUBLIC HEARING AND FIRST READING OF 0RDINAN..C.E.,NO, 889 AMENDJNcin!E°;:: 
1C::)_2UND~RIES OF· THE HIGHL~ND MEADOWS If CDD .} 

"- --
At this time the Attorney was Instructed ta read ©'taiiianceNo. 889 bvtitle~ 

The Attorney advised that there was statutory criteria that should be considered when granting or 
denying a petition. In addition, whenever there was an expansion or contraction, the State 
required them to consider these criteria as well. 

City Planner Raymond Perez explained that this was a request to amend the District and had 
been recommended for approval by the Planning Commission earlier in the evening. Raymond 
further advised that he would be including the Petition at second reading of the Ordinance. 

Roy VanWyk with Hopping Green & Sams located at 119 South Monroe Street, Tallahassee took 
the floor and explained that they were there tonight to expand the District by approximately 44 
acres. He noted that the Petition had been filed with both Haines City and Polk County prior to 
tonight. In addition, he was providing the fallowing far Inclusion into the record. 
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• Affidavits of Pre-filed Testimony 
• Affidavit of Publication of Public Hearing 

Mr. VanWyk asked for approval of the Ordinance on its first reading and stood for questions. 

Vice-Mayor Summerlin noted that to his knowledge they had not had any issues with the COD 
since its establishment. Staff confirmed that there weren't any. 

The Mayor opened and closed the Publlc Hearing with no public input. 

CNfotion by Vice-Mayor Summerl~ and seconded by~ Commi;;~ner Kneetcfanot:ym::h~to~ 
~~~ QL9it1sl~~~ ~o. 889 on its fir.st-reading.....M.o..ti..on carrie.d..uoaoimousl~ith no discussion,__./ 

2~1:JBt1C-HEARING~AND·15T~Rl:ADING-oF"dRDINANCE..N0.89lLREZ1ffilNG-:O.~PARGEL 
t:::.. foF·l:"ANO·FROM:R~=-,RESIDENT-IAl.~3)~"£0-P(ANNEO:uN1:r-=~EVE];;QP-MENT-(PUD) FOff? 

THE HIGl:ILAND COVE. SUBDIVISION LOCATl:D c.AsroF HOLLY-Hll:1:-ROAD-AND­
CNOR+H"OF-NOR.T.l:l BOULEVARD '.(PRO_~ERTY.OWNERS: .4:troOKS';;lXCp 

At this time the Attorney was instructed to read Ordinance No. 890 by title. 

City Planner Raymond Perez advised that this had not been recommended for approval by the 
Planning Commission. This request was for a zoning change from R-3 to PUD and a reduction of 
the minimum living area from 1,500 sq. ft. to 1,300 sq. ft. 

The Mayor opened and closed the Public Hearing with no public input. 

'MQtJon=:oy-Gommrssooer.::Kneeld::and seconded~umrner:lfrilo oeny_l.i)g_zQ!J!_ng '""' 
irequest.._MotiQ..a.,c~!{L~~~Wlanimou,my with no discussion.. ,..--------- _____. 

3. PUBLIC HEARING AND APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION NO. 412~19 APPROVING THE 
FINAL PLAT FOR THE CHAMPION TOWNHOME SUBDIVISION LOCATED NORTH OF 
CR 547 (DAVENPORT BOULEVARD) AND EAST OF HIGHWAY 27 

At this time the Attorney was instructed to read Resolution No. 412-19 by title. 

City Planner Raymond Perez explained that this was for approval of a final plat for Champion 
Townhome Subdivision. This encompassed an area of 13.759 acres and no changes had been 
made since the preliminary plan. Raymond further added that this request had been reviewed by 
Staff and found to be consistent with the policies and goals of the City's Land Development 
Regulations and the Comprehensive Plan and recommended approval. 

The Mayor opened the Public Hearing. 

Sharon Garrett of Carl Boozer Road and owner of the adjacent property to the east accepted the 
invitation and proceeded to voice the challenge of keeping debris off her property. In addition, 
there was no fence between this subdivision and her property and the kids were constantly using 
her property as a playground. The City had Incorporated fences all around yet there wasn't one 
at this development and asked why. 
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A MESSAGE TO THE 

RESIDENTS OF DAVENPORT 
' 

It's election time again and the feannongers and . 
naysayers are hard at work. Don't be misled by the 

half-truths, innuendos, and flat-out lies that are being 
spread all over town. 

You were misled a few years ago regarding the sewer. 
Now it's becoming increasingly clear that we will have 
to address this issue again. Before, we had a ·grant to 
.pay for it; now it will be at the residents' expense. 

You .are being told that the current commission is 
trying to take your right to vote for ma.yor llway. Thi8: 
is simply not true. Ame11:dment 1 gives you; the voter, 

the choice. 

The constant crit~cism of the c1,1rrent administration by 
a disgruntled few is unwarranted and untrue. The 

details abov~ are just a few examples, but you get the 
picture. In short, beware of messengers that walk all 
over town spreading lies and half-truths who then·· 

use the handicap parking space at Oty Hall. 

If you have questi(p.@ippnce~g 0~
1
p,1;eat ~o/,? please 

reach out to Mayoi~inson, our Cii't'tifnmlssion or 
City Manager Kelly Callihan to ~ave your questions 

accurately and appropriately answered, 

GOD BLESS ·nAVENPORT 
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Davenport Is one of the fastest growing ·cities in Florida. 
It needs strong and proven leadenhlp. 

Here are a few examples of what the . 
current administration has accomplished: · 

I) Fully-accredited Police Department, one of only a handful 
statewide, uµtking for ~ safer community 

2) First-class Fire Department with' an lSO rating of 2, 
· resulting in lower insurance rates for the residents 

3) An aggressive plan for repair and replace~t of sidewalks 
and repauing of streets for all of Davenport 

4) Department of Public Works that has been awarded the 
fundh1g ($10,000,000) to replace our water lines 

5) Parks and Recreati()n Department that puts on some of the 
best events in Polle County 

6) A fJScally-responsible staff that has provided a balanced 
budget and a healthy res~e balance without raising taxes 
7) Full.:-time Prgf~sionJ) PJlllllling Department to help 

. Davenport manage our tremendous growth and potential 

Davenport has come a long way and the future Is bright. 
Working together and in the spirit of coop~oit-has proven 

to be· a better way. Let's not go back ta' the divjsive and 
confrontational politics of our past: 

Your choice is clear. 

- lc5-4"' - iri1 - 01!1 -- ;a ol : 

- i ti ---
~ ' -
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a 
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By now you have heard all 'the pros 
& cons about the upcoming election. 

The question is -

are you going to be ,misl~d aeain? 

X 
·I­

' 
The challengers offer you 

lies; half-truths,. innuendos, 

conflict and controversy. 

1B The incumbents give you 
honesty, integrity,. proven 

leadership and results. 

~ 
More Progress 

Less Embarrassment 
,. 

Keep Dav.:eilport Mqvttlg· ,F.orward · 

· 1~~ Protect Our Integrity t._ ~. . ... 
Your Choices .are Clear 
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Ya na escuchado todos los pros y los 
contras de las pr6ximas elecciones .. 

La pregunta es D 
;,vas a ser engaiiado de nue-vo? 

X Los retadores te ofrecen 
mentiras, verdades a medias, 

insinuaciones, conflicto y controversia. 
•r .• 

. IB
. . Los titulares te dan 

honesti~ad, integridad, probado 
Liderazgo y resultados. 

J!'S!o 
Menos ~ergllenza 

/;, ~ ... 

Mantenga a Davenport avanzando ~_; 
Al!l!IJI!.. P~oteger nuestra integridad t~ . . 

· • Sus opciones son claras A 
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Both campaigns (Robinson and Lynch) assembling, stuffing, mailing their flyer "A legacy a part 
of you that remains", a malicious flyer with false statements that was paid for by both parties: 
but not mentioned on either campaign's financial reports. 

In attendance: From Left Linda Robinson, Treasurer for Robinson Campaign, Robert "Bob" 
Lynch, Candidate Seat 3 Commissioner, on far right is Denise Lynch, Treasurer for Lynch 
Campaign. 

Posted on Robinson's Facebook: 
www.facebook.com/HB-Rob-Robinson-Davenport-Mavor-105141444933457 
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: • -Vol1:mtary En.iistment-:US Af.in:yi ' : ' 
. · · ltonbrablte .Drsd;,arge· . · ·. •· . · ·. 

-·•~ . 53 Years miinl.~~ I go¥emmerif · . 
, ~rience ... 19 Qr'ttjeSEfyears·was . .. · .. · 

service to the residents ofof · . . . 
Davenport as your~i~f,,c;ey : . 
manager, citycoaim~oiler/v.ice ' 
mayor, and ·now your MAvbR .. · 

• Current Vice President; Ridge ' 
L~ague of d ties . ·:, . : . .. · · 

• Memoer, · Ro;ida.'League. of 
.May.ors · · • ·. · · · : .. • • 

.• l.Jfe :Mefriber.'~ Polk Cdunt)' P.olfce ' 
Chiefs Association, Florida' Police 
Chiefs As'sociation, FBI National· 
A(;ademy-Assotiates ... · 

Periona1 
. • R~ip_ent-of 0a.;eri~it'since 
. .-May, ·1~2 . . . '.. . ,· . .. 
. ~-~aeon, ·F.irst Baptist·Ch;Urch . 
· Qf.Davenport · ·· .'.. . 
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'The SU~ Q~ for ieadership.is unqueslioniH:,#y~,:wn:houJ it, .no . : 
real success Is possible., no matter:whetl!(Nitis-qn·a~'{lfl09, a football · 

field, In an army; .or in office.· PresideritDwt,;ihtJ). ~ -

Vote for integritv 
Re-Elect H.B. "Rob" Robinson- as·vour·■avor · 

A-.:'.Above all else,/ believe in 
honest and integrity. I do not 
make misleading or ambiguous 
statements and promises. I 
have never been arrested for a 
misdemeanor or a felony. 

I am very proud to be your Mayor. 
My term in office has been very 
productive. 

As your Mayor, the teamwork 
between the City Commission and 
City staff has produced outstanding 
results with moving the City 
forward to meet current and future 
needs of our residents. 

As your Mayor and former Vice 
Mayor, my voting record has always 
been for all citizens of Davenport. 
~ voting record speaks for itself ••. 
it IS the truth! 

As your Mayor, the integrity and 
gqod standing of the Mayor's 
Office within this community has 

: been restored. 

· As your. Mayqr, lwill continue to 
·· repres,eritall resii:Jen_ts.of Da,venport 
. · ar.id'con.tir\ue.to make sure that · 

: . ,~ .ces;are :enhan-ced and .in line 
:. -wi~ o~r. $~\ · , · 

As your Mayor, I am proud to see 
that we have a Oty Commission that is 
cohesive and works together to foster 
relationships for the betterment of 
the City. 

As your •Mayor, I worked to make 
Davenport a city to be proud of. I 
have represented the City at meetings 
througliout Polk county, the State of 
Florida and in Tallahassee. 

As your Mayor, I participate in a 
Mayors/City Managers Coalition with 
other cities .along the US 27 corridor to 
achieve common goals and to provide 
better services for our residents. 

As your Mayor, I will continue to 
monitor the manner in which your tax 
dollars are spent. 

Achievements as your Mayor working 
with City Commission and Staff (as a 
TEAM) indude: -

Recognizing a need, I championed 
for a new fire station on the west side 
of the City; which is currently moving 
forward. 

I ¥Vas proud to coordinate the Toys 
fo.r To1s Program in Davenport with 
the-assistan~e of Davenport Historical 
Society, First Baptist Church, and City 
Staff •. This program netted 20,000 
overall contributions for families 
th~-cighpui: Polk County, 

___ ,. _________________ _ 
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Transformation of the overall ~ 
appearance of the City. 

Support and Encourage development 
of a commercial district. 

Increase Police Department to provide 
better services to our residents. 

As a former Police Chief, I recognized 
the need for ,md was a strong 
proponent of State accreditation of 
our Police Department. 

Develop and approve plans for the~ 
new C~mmunity Center. 

Cooperation with the Polk County 
School Board for the renovation and 
re-opening of the historical school 
building. 

Completion of new construction and ~ 
renovations to City Hall buildings. 

Continue to review policies and 
benefit programs for City employees. 

Expansion and repair of City utilities,~ 
such as our water plant, sewer plant, 
streets, and sidewalks. . 

Expansion of city boundaries. 

,,........., 
'----./ 
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STATEMENT OF 
CANDIDATE 

(Section 106.023, F.S.) 

(Please print or type) 

candidate for the office of 

() 

OFFICE USE ONLY 

Lhav~·b~~rJ.J~ro.vldect a_c~~~~o· r~ad~od:'under.s.t~o.d tl:ie..r.e.quirements Qf.· - . 

[ Ch.apter. 106, Ff ori~a· Statutes:_. 
~- . 

X 
Signature of Candidate Date 

Each candidate must file a statement with the qualifying officer within 10 days after the 
Appointment of Campaign Treasurer and Designation of Campaign Depository is filed. Willful 
failure to file this form is a first degree .misdemeanor and a civil violation of the Campaign 
Financing Act which may result in a fine of up to $1 ,000, (ss. 106.19(1)(c), 106.265(1), Florida 
Statutes). · 
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Public 
Information 

Office 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

() 

POLK COUNTY 
Boaid of County Commissioners 

April 23, 1997 

Barbara Osthoff, Supervisor of Elections Office 

Sara Cliene~lic Information Office 

SUBJECT:~ampaigwng m Government Facilities S 

() 

330 W. Church St. 
P.O. Box goos 

Banow, FL 33831 
(941) 534--6090 

Fax (941) 534;6055 

As we discussed, ~ounty..polf cy-prob.ibits-couiiirumuoircJtation-i,g_gQYgUJnent.facili1ies.- 7 

Attached is a memo recently sent to all Board of County Commissioners' department and 
division directors reminding them of the policy. 

Please include this information in the packets you provide to candidates. Since candidates 
coming to your office may be unaware of this policy; we want to ensure that everyone is aware of 
the rules in order to prevent violations from occurring. I ~ also requesting that you make sure 
that any candidates who have already qualified receive this information as well. 

Thcµtlcs for your help. 

Attachment 

xc: Jim Keene, County M~ager 

Equal Oppo,runl(y Dnploy,r 
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dlMW.KEENE 
() Coun!)I Manag~ 

JIM RODEN, JR. 
Deputy Coung, Manager ..,.; • 

Buartl 11/ Cu11n91 Oimmtsstonm 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

MEMORANDUM 

April 15, 1997 

Department/Division Directors 

Jim ~~unty Manager 

() 

SUBJECT: CAMPAIGNING IN GOVERNMENT FAGILlTIES 

330 W. Church Street 
Drawer CAO! 

Post Office Box 9005 
Bartow, FL 33831-9005 

(941) 534-6444 
Fax (941) 53~-7069 

Pursuant to the Facility Physical Security Standard Operatirig Procedures (SOP), 
approved by the Boatd on March 11, l 997, I would like to remind all Department and 
Division Directors that this SOP governs the appropriate use of all County facilities. 
One of the building rules and regulations outline~ in the SOP is: 

Soliciting, panhandling or petitioning is prohibited. 

'This regulation applies to candidates campaigning for elected office. Staff is instructed 
to intercede whenever a violation of the rules co_ntained in the Standard Operating 
Procedure is noted. 

Should you have any questions, please contact Mark Donald, Facilities Management 
Director at 534-0340. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. 

JPF/mcd 
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Davenport Mayor Relieved By Attacker's 
Sentencing 
By k'.!!ili~Dt!ll!!KX 
LEDGER MEDIA GROUP 

Published: Sutunlay, May 17, 2014111 2:00 a.111. 

WINTER PARK I Davenport Mayor Darlene Bradley said Friday 
she no longer feels the need to keep looking over her shoulder, 
and that's a big relief. 

"I might be able to sleep at night,'! Bradley said. "We can all 
breathe easier now. " 

That's because the 30-year-old man who kidnapped and robbed 
her may spend the rest of his life in prison. An Orange County 
jury Thursday convicted her assailant, Farley Curry, and a judge 
sentenced him to 60 years in prison. 

While Bradley said the sentence is a relief, she had to spend the past few days reliving the most 
traumatic experience of her life. 

"It was scary, but I had to tell my story," Bradley said Friday of the testimony she gave . . 

"I must have been rocking the courthouse with hqw bad I was shaking in my chair." 

It was a dark and rainy morning Oct. 25, 2012, Bradley said, when she pulled into the parking lot 
at Terracon in Winter Park, the engineering company where she works. 

Before she knew what was happening, she said, a man shoved a gun in her face and forced his 
way into her car. 

While Curry was fighting to get inside, Bradley was on the phone with her husband, John Lepley. 

What started as a normal conversation, Lepley said, ended with Bradley screaming and shouting 
for his help. 

Then the line went dead. 

"At that point, panicking won't get you anywhere," Lepley said. HI just called 911 and told them to 
get down there." 

Meanwhile, Curry was demanding money from Bradley, but she was only able to give him $64 in 
cash and a $2 winning lottery ticket. 

HANDS AROUND HER NECK 

Curry then drove Bradley to a house in Eatonville and got out to speak to a man on a bike. He left 
the door open, Bradley said, and she thought she had a chance to escape. 
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She managed to get one hand on the door and one foot out, but then Curry's hands wrapped 
around her neck, Bradley said. 

He choked her and threw her down to the floor board, she said. 

Curry then made Bradley get in the backseat while he drove down the street to another house. 

There, Curry stopped at a two-story home where the upper-level windows were blacked out. 

E our meij approached the car from behind the house, Bradley said, and Curry shut off the engine 
and took the keys as he got out to speak with them. 

"At that point, I thought I was going to be )raped and killed." she said. 

With shaking hands and a pounding heart, Bradley said she found a second set of keys. Then she 
jumped into the driver's seat, started the car and wildly sped off down the street. 

She was afraid they were chasing her, Bradley said, but she managed to wave down a 
Cassleberry police officer for help. 

It took six weeks for police to match Curry's DNA to the car and make an arrest. 

Police said Curry had committed a similar abduction just weeks before his attack on Bradley. In 
that case, Curry is charged with carjacking Erin Hindla of Winter Park and forcing her to withdraw 
money from an ATM. No date has been set for that trial. 

With a criminal history dating to 1999, Curry is no stranger to police. His record includes cases of 
battery, battery on a law enforcement officer and possession of drugs. 

For the ast 11/2 ears, Bradley said, she kept this part of her past a secret for a couple reasons -
ear of retaliatio and a fear of public perception. 

Even thou h Cur was in 'ail awaitin trial, Bradle said, lshe had a constant fear of the fouij 
en who were wafkin toward her car that mornin . The thought of those men coming to 

find her kept her up many nights. 

During that time, Bradley was also preparing to run for office in the city of Davenport, and she 
didn't want to bring up the case. 

"I wanted to be elected based on my ideas and what I wanted to do for the city," she said. QI wasn't 
looking for a sympathy vote." 

WORK AS THERAPY 

Getting out of your car. 

· Walking into a building with your hands full. 

Going places by yourself. 
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. . 
Those are things most people take for granted every day. After Bradley's experience, however, 
they are everyday reminders of what happened. 

"He took away my freedom, iny sense of security," she said. "Everything I do now is very different." 

To help cope with the events of that October morning, Bradley said, she talks to groups about self­
defense and being prepared for anything. 

She also encourages people to hide a second set of keys somewhere in their car. 

"Lucky for me I had a second set of keys," Bradley said. "Otherwise, I'd just be another statistic." 

Most important, however, is not making yourself an easy target, she said. 

"Anything I can do to make sure no one else has to go through what I did is therapy enough for 
me." 

Since the attack, Lepley said his wife has Immersed herself in the city of Davenport. 

"It kept her mind off the hollib/e events of that day," he said of her work as mayor. "Working for the 
city has served as therapy." 

But not a day goes by in which she isn't reminded of what happened, though, Bradley said. 

"There are good and bad people, and then there,'s evil people," she said. "I met the evil that day." 

[ Cody Dulaney can be reached at cody;dulaney@newschief,r;;grn or 863-401-6969. 
http://www.theledger.com/article/20140517/NEWS/140519364/1338/newsOO?Title=Davenport-Mayor-Relieved-By-Attacker-s­
Sentencing 
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Community Involvement 
Mayor 

City of Davenport 

Host/Organizer Davenport 
2nd Saturday Cruise-In 

2008 Davenport Chamber 
Presidents Award Honoree 

Host/Organizer 2008/9 Davenport 
WinterFest & Christmas Parade 

Polk Leadership Institute 
Valedictorian 

RCHS Sigma Honorary Member 

Mayor Darlene - Promises kept: 
As I promised you in 2013, I do not take a 
salary as Mayor. 

I was able to persuade Duke Energy to 
replace the street lights from 100 to 250 
watts at all intersections in Davenport .. .. [at no 
cost ] I persuaded them to add street lights on 
CR547 too. You asked me - it's done 
I contacted Polk County Sheriff's office & 
saved us $80,000 a year with free jail workers. 
Free is much better don't you think? 

I instituted a new city tradition for July 4111 with 
the reading of the Constitution and 
Declaration of Independence. What did you 
think of the new fireworks we did for you this 
year - sponsors paid for it all. 

I requested FOOT to add a left tum signal on 
the street light at Bay Street & 17-92 & they 
qid ... Then I asked for a . fix for the 17-92 & 
South St Interchange - wow are they great or 
what? [at no cost to you.] 

Adair Park - redone with Lowes Heroes 
Lewis Mathews completely redone with 
partnership with Haines City. Jamestown 
Park - refurbished with new bathrooms. 

All our sidewalks are fixed to top-notch shape. 

Saved us $38 million on our new Sewer Plant 
that was paid tor by developer impact tees. 
Our new Event/Community Center is in 
progress - with a special agreement I made 
with a very special developer that covers $4 
million of the cost. It wiH have a gym, exercise 
area, convention center, entertainment center 
& even a crafting area. The best in NE Polk! 
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Elect 

·oarlene 

CB1ta.dQey 
For 

MAYOR 

VOTE 
April 2nd 

Paid Pol. Adv. for Darlene Bradley for Mayor 
Campaign - PO Box 2791 , Davenport, Fl 33836 
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Proudly, I want you to know that it 
has been an honor to represent you, 
my neighbors & the citizens of . 
Davenport as your Mayor for the last 
few years. I would like the privilege 
to serve another term & ask for your 
vote on April 2nd. I want to thank 
you for taking a chance on me. 

I ran for Mayor in 2013 without .any 
political experience - after our last 
mayor told you to your face - that he 
didnt care what the citizens wanted. 
You deserved someone that had 
your best interests at heart. I had 
the passion and ambition to work 
hard to make our city better. With 
leadership, hard work, research & 
creating partnerships, we were able 
to accomplish a lot in the last few 
years. I want you to be proud to 
call Davenport your home! I think 
our transformation is something you 
may just want to brag about - & 
wete just getting started. 

I kept my promise when elected to 
be accessible, to listen, and 
represent you. I established a 
"Chat with the Mayo(' monthly 
event by meeting with citizens on 
the 4th Saturday of every month at 
the gazebo on Bay Street and 
created a "Mayor's Comer" 
newsletter on the e::lty!; website to 
keep you abreast of ongoing and 
completed projects. 

Most .importantly, when I was first 
elected I made it a priority to change 
the commission forum to allow 
citizens to speak on any Item not on 
the agenda before the meeting 
starts and again on any agenda 
item. It was a tremendous fight, but 
it Is now your light. It •is YOUR city 
- Your voice needs to be heard. 

On the next page is a recap of 
promises I made to you & other 
projects, initiatives and accomp­
lishments Ive done on your behalf 
over these last few years. Youll find 

· I am "hands on" &. a "get 'er done" 
kind of Mayor. 

You see, it's my city too! 

Every year I proudly tell you in my 
State of the City address, which 
lists of projects, achievements & our 
goals we accomplished or have on 
tap for the future. 

So I think from this list of promises 
kept,. you can see Ive been working 
very hard for you &. I try to be as 
responsive to you as I can -
considering I Work 12 hour days in 
Winter Park. So if you need to get in 
touch with me - you can always 
email me at davenportmayor@gmail.com 
& I will answer you as soon as I can. 

I need your help & strength to 
continue the transformation of our 
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city back into first class shape and 
into the 21st century. We are 
starting to look pretty good. Much, 
much more though needs to be 
done. Are you ready? 

What do you say? Lets keep going. 
Together we can make Davenport 
great. 

Lets work together to insure the 
Davenport of tomorrow Is the same 
wholesome, friendly town as is the 
Davenport we love today. 

Every month, our visitors tell us how 
much they enjoy our events because 
we are such a warm and friendly 
place with that sense of hometown 
Ive mentioned before. 

We are like a diamond in the rough 
that just needs a little polishing. 

Let's sparkle together 

I am asking for 
you-r vote on 

April 2nd 

Thank you so much 



Member Profile - Frederick John Reilly - The Florida Bar .r) . 
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MEMBER PROFILE 

Frederick John Reilly 

Bar Number: 

607800 

Mail Address: 

Member in Good Standing 

Eligible to Practice Law in Florida 

33 North Sixth Street, No. 4 

PO Box2039 

Haines City, FL 33845-2039 

United States 

Office: 310-927-3954 

Cell: 310-927-3954 - No Text Messages 

Fax: 310-927-3954 

Email: 

fred rei I ly@attorney-solicitor.com 

Personal Bar URL: 

https://www.floridabar.org/mybarprofile/607800 

vcard: 

m 
County: 

Polk 

Circuit: 

10 

CJ 

https://www.floridabar.org/directories/find-mbr/profile/?num=607800 
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I Member Profile - Frederick John Reilly - The Florida Bar r, 
Admitted: 

10/31/1986 

. 1 

10-Year Discipline History: 

None 

Law School: 

Samford University, Cumberland School of Law, 1986 
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The Find a Lawyer directory Is provided as a public service. The Florida Bar maintains limited basic information about lawyers licensed to 
practice in the state (e.g., name, address, year of birth, gender, law schools attended, admission year). However, The Florida Bar allows 
individual attorneys the opportunity to add personal and professional Information to the d irectory. The lawyer Is solely responsible for 
reviewing and updating any additional Info rmation In the d irectory. The lawye(s added Information is not reviewed by The Bar for 
accuracy and The Bar makes no w arranty of any kind, express or Implied. The Florida Bar, its Board of Governors, employees, and agents 

are not responsible for the accuracy of that additional Information. Publication of lawyers' contact Information in this listing does not 
mean the lawyers have agreed to receive unsolicited communications In any form. Unauthorized use of this data may result In civil or 
criminal penalties. The Find a Lawyer directory ls not a lawyer referral service. 
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FLORIDA ELECTIONS COMMISSION 

. . ~ .. · 

Date Received:· 09/12/19 Reviewer:. Cole 

Complainant: Darlene Bradley Respondent: Rob Robinson 

C~mphtinant: 

Respondent: 

~ackgl:"omid: 

Complainant was one of Respondent's opponents in the race for Davenport Mayor. She was 
defeated in the election held on 04/02/19 

Respondent was a candidate for election to the office of Mayor of Davenport. He ~as elected 
in the election held on 04/02/19. · 

This case was split from 19-516, an expedited case. Respondent is represented by Fred 
Reilly, Esq. 

Viuiations in complai~t: §104.0615, 104.071, 112.3143, I06.08(5)(a), 106.1 5, 106.143, 106 

Violations for CMS: . . 
§104.0615, 104.07l(l)(d), 106.08(5)(a), 106.15(4), 106.143(1)(a), 
106.19(l)(c) 

1. Respondent's wife/campaign treasurer removed campaign literature from an elector's door jamb. 

2. Respondent accepted excessive contributions made through or in the name of another. 

3. Respondent failed to abstain from voting on developers' projects after receiving contributions from them. 

4. Respondent campaigned in a government building. 

5. Respondent failed·to include disclaimers on two mailers and failed to report expenditures for them. 

6. Respondent failed to report expenditures related to his 50% share of a joint political advertisement. 

1. Complainant aJleged Respondent's wife/campaign treasurer removed some of her campaign literature from 
the door jamb of an elector and characterized this as voter suppression/intimidation in violation of Section 
104.061 5, F.S. She provided an email from the City Clerk allegedly confirming that this happened. 
However, the email merely states that Ms. Robinson told the Clerk she read the literature but placed it back 
where it had been, which is not the same thing as taking it. Regardless, this allegation is directed against 
Respondent's wife, not Respondent. Despite that she was Respondent's treasurer, this action appears to have 
been allegedly committed on Ms. Robinson's own volition and without alleged instruction from R~spondent. 
In response to the complaint, Respondent stated that he is not vicariously liable for the conduct of his wife. 

Legally Insufficient 
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2. Complainant alleged Respondent violated Section 106.08(5)(a), F.S., which prohibits making a contribution 
through or in the name of another. She pointed to 5 contributions listed on Respondent's 2019 M2 report, 
each for $1,000. Each contribution was reported as having been received from a different corporate entity. 
Complainant alleged that all $5,000 was really contributed by Rennie Heath, a developer. Complainant 
further alleged that this exceeded contribution limits. 

In response to the complaint, Respondent pointed out that each of the 5 entities was a distinct "person" within 
the meaning of the Election Code's definition of that word. Therefore, the 5 contributions represented 5 
contributions from separate, distinct "persons." 

Rennie Heath is the CEO of Heath Construction and Management, LLC, which is one of the corporations 
that contributed to Respondent. He also reportedly is in charge of land development for Cassidy Homes, a 
local holding company also known as the Cassidy Organization, Inc. Principal persons of that organization 
include Steven L. Cassidy and Albert B. Cassidy, who are both directors of one of the other corporations that 
contributed to Respondent (Cassidy Holdings Group, Inc.). Albert Cassidy is a director of two of the other 
corporations (CAS Holdings, LLC and Lakeville Partners, LLC). The principal and mailing addresses of 
four of the corporations (all of them except Heath Construction and Management, LLC) are identical. 

Although these corporate entities appear to be operationally and/or organizationally related, each corporation 
is a separate "person" within the meaning of the Election Code, so each was entitled to contribute up to 
$1,000 to Respondent's campaign. No evidence was provided to suggest that Mr. Heath was behind all five 
contributions. No evidence was provided to suggest that the funds coming from any one of the specific 
entities derived from Mr. Heath's personal funds, rather than its own corporate holdings, such that 
Respondent accepted a contribution made in the name of another. 

Legally Insufficient 

3. Complainant alleged Respondent failed to "disclose" or "abstain" from votes on Mr. Heath's and Mr. 
McKnight's projects after receiving $5,400 in donations from those developers. As noted in section 1 above, 
no evidence was provided suggesting Respondent received more than $1,000 from a corporation of which 
Mr. Heath is director, and no evidence was provided to suggest that Respondent received money directly 
from Mr. Heath. Warren McKnight contributed $200 to Respondent on 02/08/19, and Holly Hill Fruit 
Products, a corporation of which Mr. McKnight is CEO, contributed $200 to Respondent on the same day. 
These were disclosed on Respondent's 2019 M2 report. Complainant specified 10 votes: three on 03/04/19, 
one on 03/18/19, one on 04/01/19, two on 04/15/19, one on 05/06/19, and two on 05/20/19. She provided 
minutes from the meetings in which the votes were taken. 

In response to the complaint, Respondent noted that the referenced statute, Section 104.071, F.S., relates to 
remuneration by a candidate for services or support. Respondent stated that he did affirmatively disclose his 
campaign contributions, including the ones referenced by Complainant, on the 2019 M2 report, which was 
filed on 03/22/19. Subsequent to this disclosure, he performed his "affirmative duty as an elected official to 
vote on all matters before the City Commission," including the matters cited by Complainant. Respondent 
stated he did not abstain from those votes because there was "no special private gain or loss which would be 
the basis" for disqualification." Respondent stated Complainant has not provided clear and convincing 
evidence establishing probable cause of an illegal quid pro quo with real estate developers. 
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None of the subsections of Section 104.071, F.S., would apply to this situation. The closest one is Section 
104.071( l )( d), F.S., but it specifically relates to candidates giving things of value to people for purposes 
prohibited by election laws. The law at issue is not an election law. Section l 12.3143(3)(a), F .S., sets forth 
prohibitions on municipal officers from voting on matters that might inure them with a special gain. The 
FEC lacks jurisdiction to investigate matters under that chapter. This matter is one for which the Florida 
Commission on Ethics might have jurisdiction. 

Legally insufficient 

4. Complainant alleged Respondent "commandeered the Davenport Commission Chambers" during business 
hours to conduct two interviews for television to promote his campaign. Complainant provided a link to a 
news article with associated news video in which a local reporter interviewed Respondent and Complainant's 
husband, John Lepley. The news report focused a lot on Complainant, with screen time given to both 
Complainant's husband and Respondent. The portion of the interview with Respondent took place in what 
appears to be the City Commission meeting area, but Respondent was Mayor at the time. 

Section 106.15( 4), F. S ., prohibits a person from soliciting or accepting contributions in a government-owned 
building, which is not what was alleged. Conducting a television interview in a government-owned building 
is not prohibited by any subsection of Section I 06.15, F .S. Furthermore, Respondent did not specifically 
request that contributions be made to ·his campaign duri.ng the interview. In response to the complaint, 
Respondent stated conducting interviews in municipal buildings is not a violation of Section I 06. 15, F.S. 

Legally Insufficient 

5. Complainant alleged that Respondent failed to include disclaimers on two mailers and failed to report 
expenditures associated with them. Respondent stated they were anonymous communications and denied 
that he paid for, authorized, approved, or had any connection to the literature. 

The first mailer looks like an electioneering communication. Though it speaks favorably about the current 
administration and invites the reader to ask questions concerning the City to the Mayor (Respondent), the 
City Commission, or the City Manager, it does not have any content that would attribute it to Respondent. 

The second mailer (front/back, English/Spanish) again supports the "incumbents" and asks the reader to 
"vote more progress less embarrassment," but it does not name a specific candidate nor contain content that 
would attribute it to Respondent. 

Legally Insufficient 

6. Complainant alleged Respondent failed to report expenditures associated with a joint political advertisement. 
In response to the complaint, Respondent noted that his 2019 M3 report disclosed two expenditures to Staples 
on 03/ 16/19 and 03/23/19 for the cost of paper, ink, and envelopes. The total expenditures reported were 
$402.11. While the expenditures do not specifically state that they were related to the cost of that mailer, 
they do state that they were for the cost of items needed for printing and distributing such a mailer. 
Respondent also attached an invoice for these items noting that Respondent was supposed to pay at least 
$359.33 for his share. The invoice included the cost of paper, envelopes, and ink. 

Complainant attached a "campaign flyer" as attachment U, but she did not allege any issues with it. 

Legally Insufficient 

I recommend the complaint is Legally Insufficient for the reasons set forth above. 

3 
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October 20, 2019 

Mr. Tim Vaccaro 

Executive Director 
Florida Elections Commission 
107 West Gaines Street 
Suite 224 

Tallahassee, FL 32399-1050 

Re: Case No.: FEC 19-516; Respondent: Rob Robinson 

Dear Mr. Vaccaro: 

I received your judgement on · Saturday 10/12/19 and I am very disappointed that you obviously 
did not read my submittal. 

The court case that you cited states: "The Court held that "actual malice" requires a showing 

that the person making the defamatory statement made it with k.nowledge that the statement was 
false or wi"th reckless disregard of ~hether the statement was true or false." 

My submittal dated 9/9/19 includes 70 pages of evidence of malicious, false, willful statements 
made by Mr. Robinson. He sent numerous mailings to each resident repeating the same lies about 
me and my accomplishments, lmowing they were false and l!lalicious statements. 

Your judgement also states erroneous facts stating I pled guilty to criminal use of the personal 
identification of a deceased person and knowingly possessing an altered/counterfeit decal. 

Obviously, you did not read the documents I sent showing these charges were dropped 
immediately ... .it clearly states "!11.W" for these charges on the Polk County Clerk of Courts 
document I provided. I pied to the unlawful use of a handicap placard and paid a $250 
parking ticket with adjudication withheld, signed by State Attorney Brian Haas on 12/15/17. 
Mr. Robinson's facebook also states all 3 were my "violations"; which is false. (Attachment F) 

Mr. Robinson knows those charges were dropped, yet he has "reckless disregard of whether the 
statements he made was true or false" when he included this in his campaign literature, flyers, 
letters, post cards and postings on his facebook. 

~m~1<'WP>" 

I O.:ffl initiate the Fourth of July Celebration in Davenport in 2015. When Mr. Bob A very came 

to me and told me it was his dream to have a public reading of The Constitution and Declaration 
of Independence, I made it happen, I i(iffi.'t1f£i\l:" it. First, I got permission to host this event at 
the city's gazebo, then I created the program and obtained volunteers/speakers/sponsors for this 

event. Before this event, there had never been any type of celebration for Independence Day ever 
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Complainant: Bradley \ ) Respondent: Robinson 

C\) 

in Davenport. This was the FIRST time ever a July 4th celebration occurred in Davenport and I 

initiated it and Mr. Robinson knows that I initiated it. This can be verified with Mr. Bob A very 
(863) 852-7545. (Attachment G) 

Mr. Robinson's took the accomplishments listed in my campaign brochure and created a flier 

denying everything that I listed that I accomplished as Mayor. I have provided 70 pages of 

evidence to you in my submittal that Mr. Robinson knowingly willfully lied about my 
accomplishments. 

On 6/3/17, Kelly Callihan, City Manager, arranged a meeting with Rennie Heath, Fmr. Senator JD 

Alexander, John Lepley and myself at Southern Dunes Restaurant in Haines City. The purpose 
of this meeting was for Rennie Heath to apologize to Mr. Lepley for threatening him at a 

commission meeting in May, 2017. It was at this meeting where Rennie Heath offered to myself 
and Mr. Lepley to give the City of Davenport $1,000/house he sells for the proposed Davenport 

community center. Rennie Heath signed his name agreeing to his promise and Fmr. Senator JD 

Alexander provided his cell number and made a promise to backup whatever commitments Rennie 

Heath had made to the city regarding a recreation area for a new subdivision in Highland Homes. 
Mr. Heath signed his name to this promise on a spiral notebook that I had with me. I have the 

original document Mr. Heath signed promising to give $1,000/house that he sells, which I have 

provided a copy to you. ~~ij'.f:;~~ijjf~hfsli)tti\$)Jfi\fil~ii~'isfitisiffihtt,n.:~itfu~i,Jlfok;;rmi~¢?{~fia 
i~;iniffl~it~J)!ifii:~fijr~ili;wiilihi¢~iltiiiit$.tf:~m<iia}i6f ltiia\i\,.y/$ttbmtttal. On 2/5/2018 at a city 
commission meeting, two months after I resigned as Mayor of Davenport, Rennie Heath reiterated 
once again and confirmed his promise he had made earlier to me and Mr. Lepley that he would 
donate $1,000/home to the city that he sells in Davenport to go towards building the Davenport 
Community Center. (Attachments H and I) 

Mr. Robinson's flyer implied that I lied about the cost of a $5,000 lien on citizens homes ... that 

the amount was never established. The POINT is, not the amount, as I provided proof to you that 
the amount was verified with city documents; but that he implied I lied about a lien. Mr. Robinson 

knew his statement was false and malicious. Commission minutes from 10/29/2007 confirms Mr. 
Robinson's discussed a lien on citizen's home/property for a sewer. (Attachments E and J) 

Retired Police Chief Robinson is fully aware and very knowledgeable about: (1) how the court 
system works (2) is next door neighbors to Mr. Avery and fully aware of the birth of the 4th of 

July startup (3) Mr. Robinson was a major sponsor of the efforts to stop the sewer efforts and a 
commissioner at the time the lien was brought to the fore. Mr. Robinson is not an innocent nor 
na:ive candidate. 

21Page . 
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Complainant: Bradley · .. \.. ) Respondent: Robinson 

The complaint form instructions state this form is for violations of FS I 04 and I 06; yet you did 
not address any of Mr. Robinson's campaign/finance violations related to PS 106 that I submitted: 

L You did not address voting conflicts when Mr. Robinson accepted $5,000 donations from 
Rennie Heath and then voted in favor of his projects the next day. Mr. Robinson never 
abstain/recused himself from voting on his projects after accepting his campaign donations. In 
my submittal are commission minutes verifying Mr. Robinson voted in favor of Mr. Heath's 
and Mr. McKnight's projects upon receiving campaign donations from them. (Attachments 

L, M, N, 0, P and Q). 

2. The campaign Flyer "Legacy: Something that is a part of you that remains" created and 
distributed jointly by Mr. Robinson and Mr. Lynch; yet not listed on his finance campaign 
reports as paying 50% for printing/mailing expenses. (Attachment E) 

3. The most someone can donate in a municipality election is $1,000. Yet Mr. Robinson accepted 
$5,000 from Rennie Heath. His finance reports Ml and M2 are Attachment K. Our City 
Clerk/Election Supervisor said that was the most money ever donated in a Davenport 
campaign. 

4. You did not address two campaign post cards which did not include a disclaimer "paid for by" 

and was not listed on his finance campaign reports as "in kind" or not. (Attachments R and 

S) 

5. You did not address Linda Robinson, his campaign treasurer, who took my literature out of the 
door jamb of a citizen's home because she said she knows what's best for who they vote for. 
Isn't this voter suppression/intimidation? (Attachment C) 

6. You did not address Mr. Robinson campaigning in Davenport City Commission Chambers; 
i.e. tv interview during normal business hours in city hall. (Link for the tv interview in city 

hall-Item 6.) 

I listed a few of my accomplishments as Mayor in my campaign brochure and Mr. Robinson's 
campaign literature intentionally lied and said these were not true. So what part of "false" 
"intentional" "malicious" statements he made does not meet FEC violations? 

I read the violations for FS Chapter 104 and 106 and I provided the hard facts evidence of Mr. 

Robinson's violations. FS Chapters 104 and I 06 doesn't state "half truths" or "white lies" are 
acceptable, it says "false, intentional, malicious statements" are violations. 

31Page 
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1

. \. ).- Respondent: Robinson 

I am asking that you reread my submittals and pass it on to the Florida Elections Commission for 

their review. I find it hard to believe that you don't see the false, intentional, malicious statements 
he made in his campaign literature,·mailings, social media, and post cards. Especially since you 

ignored so many areas submitted to you without comment. Not even dismissals. 

I find it hard to believe that Fred Reilly, city attorney of Haines City & Belleair Beach caused you 
to summarily reject out of hand, hard evidence presented to the commission. Candidate Bobby 

Lynch whom co-paid for the joint advertisements with Mr. Robinson is an employee for City of 
Haines City. Fred Reilly is the Haines City attorney whose legal efforts for the city may have a 
direct effect on Mr. Lynch and/or his employment. Is this not either a recognizable conflict of 

interest nor conflict of ethical standards and requirements? 

The speed at which your conclusions were reached is astounding in the history of the FEC. We 
know of NO FEC case, especially one so voluminous, dealt with by the FEC in less than a week. 
You received mine and Mr. Lepley's cases on 9/11 and you sent your rejection on 10/8. 

Considering there was a 5 business day response peliod, followed by a 14 business day response 

period - that left you less than a week to reach a determination. That is, unless you prejudged 
these complaints beforehand and without reading the 70 pages of evidence I submitted. 

In FEC Case 17-094 which you received 3/9/17 and was of limited scope and volume-yet it took 
your office until 5/22/18 to finalize resolution. That's 14 months. 

Yet my complaints which were so voluminous that a hard binder was necessary to present it - is 
resolved in less than a week. Really? Hard to believe isn't it? Especially since your response 

showed that much of my su~mittal was not read. Plus many individual complaints were not even 
addressed in your dismissal. I've included the attachments for the sections not addressed. 

I respectfully ask you to reconsider your judgement and reopen your investigation and give it the 
full effort of your offices attention that we as citizens deserve. 

I look forward to your assistance. 

Thank you, 

Darlene Bradley 

'Attachments 
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Former Davenport Mayor· Who Illegally Used Handicap Tag to Run Again 

By Stephanie Claytor I Polk County 

UPDATED 9:05 AM ET Mar. 09, 2019 

SHARE 

DAVENPORT, Fla. - The former mayor of Davenport who made national headlines fo r 

il legally pa rking in a disabled parking spot is running again against incumbent and 

former police ch ief H. B. "Rob" Robinson . 

• Former Davenport mayor to run again 

• Teresa Bradley resigned in 2017 after il legally using handicap placard 

• Bradley to run against police chief Rob Robinson 

Robinson, an Army veteran who also served Davenport as a city manager and 

com missioner, said the people asked him to run for re-elect ion. 

https://www.baynews9.com/fl/tampa/news/2019/03/08/fonner-davenport-mayor-who-ille... I 0/24/2019 
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"People who ran against me in other elections. People who actually said they didn't 

like me .. .. have come and asked me if I'd run please," said H.B. Robinson. 

Teresa Bradley's husband John Lepley said the people have been begging his wife to 

run too. Lepley spoke on behalf of his wife, who was ,at work. 

"We've had tons, tons of citizens follow her home. From the post office. From the 

grocery store asking her to run again," said Lepley. 

Bradley was mayor for five years before she resigned in December of 2017, after 

pleading no contest to unlawful use of a handicap placard. The ordeal made national 

news because she was initial ly accused of using a dead person's placard. She finished 

her probation on June 14, 2018. 

"She apologized at the time. I mean it's a long past, it's a parking ticket. It's a 

misdemeanor. If you get a traffic ticket, it's a misdemeanor. She did a lot of good for 

this city. Ask the commissioners, they're all taking credit fo r it," Lepley said. 

Lepley gave Spectrum Bay News 9 a statement from his wife that he said explained 

the incident and her reason ing for parking in the disabled parking spot. 

"She's got a lot of moxie to come back so soon after what she did to the city. She hurt 

the city, we all know that," said H.B. Robinson . 

https://www.baynews9.com/fl/tampa/news/2019/03/08/fonner-davenport-mayor-who-ille... I 0/24/2019 
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H.B. Robinson is the Davenport incumbent mayor and former police chief. 

(Spe~trum News Image) 

Page 3 of 7. 

Robinson has been mayor since 2018 and said he's pushed for new sewer lines and a 

fire station. 

"I'm running on integrity. I have a reputation as being fair, being honest. As having 

high integrity," Robinson said. 

His campaign brochure says he will work to make "Davenport a city to be proud of," 

"support and encourage a commercial district," and "increase the police department." 

Lepley said his wife wants a second chance. 

"You' re killing yourself, you're cutting off your own throat if you don't elect her. She's 

done too much. There's too much to do and it ain't going to get done with these 

clowns," Lepley said. 

https://www.baynews9.com/fl/tampa/news/2019/03/08/former-davenport-mayor-who-ille... 10/24/2019 
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Bradley's campaign brochure says she established a "Chat with the Mayor," repai red 

sidewalks, saved $38 million on a new sewer plant, and secu red a special agreement 

w ith a develope~ to cover $4 mil lion of the new community center cost. 

Lepley, a fo rmer Davenport commiss ioner, is also running in th is election. He is 

seeking the Commission 3 seat against incumbent Bob.by Lynch and Headley Oliver. 

Lepley also has a criminal record. He was convicted of battery for grabbing a 19-year­

old by the neck during a road rage incident in 2007, according to a Davenport po lice 

· report. He was sentenced to probation. 

Also on the ballot is an amendment, which would amend the city's charter to reclassify 

t he mayor's seat to a commission seat in 2020. The commiss ion would then appoint a 

mayor amongst the comm ission on an annual basis. 

The Davenport municipal election is on Apri l 2. The polls wil l be open at the Davenport 

Community Center from 7 a.m. to 7 p.m. 

Lockheed Martin Expands Apprenticeship 
Program to Polk County 
Polk County ! 15 hours ago 

Lakeland Seeking to Implement New 
· Traffic Light Tech to Prevent Crashes 

https://www.baynews9.com/fl/tampa/news/2019/03/08/former-davenport-mayor-who-ille... I 0/24/2019 
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Detail by Entity Name 
Florida Profit Corporation 
HOLLY HILL FRUIT PRODUCTS CO., INC. 

Filing Information 

Document Number 

FEI/EIN Number 

Date Filed 

State 

Status 

Last Event 

Event Date Filed 

Event Effective Date 

Principal Address 

315 HWY. 17-92 NORTH 
DAVENPORT, FL 33837 

Changed: 04/21/2009 

Malling Address 

PO. BOX 708 
DAVENPORT, FL 33836 

Changed 04/21/2009 

240936 

59-0293810 

10/07/1960 

FL 

ACTIVE 

AMENDMENT 

03/24/1987 

NONE 

Registered Agent Name & Address 

MCKNIGHT, L WARREN JR 
315 HWY 17-92 NORTH 

PO BOX 708 
DAVENPORT, FL 33837 

Name Changed: 04/f6/2007 

Address Changed: 03/21/2016 

Officer/Director Detail 

Name & Address 

Title Treasurer, Director 

HOOSIER, WILLIAM Ill 

200 DESOTO RD. S.E. 

WINTER HAVEN, FL 33884 

Page 1 of 3 

D IVISION OF CORPORATIONS 

http:/ /search.sunbiz.org/Inquiry /CorporationSearch/SearchResultDetail?inquirytype= Entit... 10/24/2019 
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Detail by Entity Name 

Title President, Director, CEO 

MCKNIGHT, L WARREN JR 

59 B MOORE RD 

HAINES CITY, FL 33844 

Title Director 

AL TERMAN, RICHARD 

Palace Gardens #221 

3100 Campbell Dr. 

Homestead, FL 33033 

Title Director 

PINNER, ERNEST S 

1848 Woodpointe Dr. 

Winter Haven, FL 33884 

Title Secretary 

Kerr, Carolyn F 

2010 E. Palm St. 

Davenport, FL 33837 

Title Director 

Putnam, Thomas B, Jr. 

125 Lake Otis Road 
Winter Haven, FL 33884 

Annual Reports 

Report Year 

2017 

2018 

2019 

Filed Date 

03/17/2017 

03/19/2018 

03/15/2019 

Document Images 

View image in PDF format 03/15/201fl -• ANNUAL REPORT I 
:===========: 

03/19/2018 ···· ANNUAL REPORT! View image in PDF format -·································-·······················-··-·-·····-:===========: 
03/1712017 .. ANNUAL R[:PORTI View image in PDF format 

:===========: 
03/21/2016 ·· ANNUAL REPORT! View image in PDF format 
-·-··-··--·----·-·--·------.. ----··-·------·-~==========: 

Q.~/;JJ./?..9.1 .. ?. .. :.: .. /:INN.\JAL HEPOHI!=I ==V=ie=w=irn=a=g=e=in=P=D=F=lo=r=m=at==! 

04/0712014 .. ANNUAL HEPOffrl View image in PDF format 
::=========! 

04/0112013 .• ANNUAL REPORT !=I ==V=ie=w=ir=na=g=e=in=P=D=F=fo=r=m=at==! 

03/30/2012 •· ANNUAL HEPORTI View image in PDF format ~======~ 
02/15/2011.,.·· ANNUAl.J~EPOt-ff '~==V=ie=w=im=a:::::g=e=in=P=D=F=lo=r=m=at=~ 

0.1 /26/201,0 .. • .. ANNUAL .HEPOFH'~==V=ie=w=im=a=g=e=ln=P=D=F=fo=r=rn=at==! 

04/21/2009 •· ANNUAL HEPORTI View image in PDF format 

04/07/2008 .• ANNUAL REPOHT l.__v_ie_w_i,_na....;g;...e_in_P_D_F_fo_r_m_at _ _, 

Page 2 of3 
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Detail by Entity Name 

04/16I2007 --ANNUAL REPORT! 

:===========: 
0411012006 -- ANNUAL REPORT I 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

04/11/2005 --.ANNUAL.REPORT I 
:===========: 

04/21/2004 ···· ANNUAL REPORT! 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

03/04/2003 --.ANNUAL.REPORT! ;:::::=========: 
04/08/2002 .. --.. ANNUAL .. REPORT;::I ==V=ie=w=1=·m=a=ge=i=n=P=D=F=fo=rr=na=I=::::::: 

04/25/2001 .... ANNUAL REPORT! ;:::::=========: 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

04113/2000 - ANNUAL REPOHT! ;:::::=========: 
04/2011999 - ANNUAL REPORT I ;:::::=========: 
04/1411.998_ --_ANNUAL .. REPORl I ~=======~ 
04/08I1.997 .. -.ANNUAL .. HEPORTI ~=======~ 
04/24/1996 --ANNUAL REPORT' 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

View image in PDF format 

04/19/1995. --.ANNUAL REPORT ~I __ v_i_ew_irn_a_ge_in_P_D_F_fo_n_n_at_~ 

f'1or,d<! Depa1trnent d State, Division ot Ccrpor;mons 

Page 3 of 3 
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Rennie Heath - CEO - Heath ~ustruction & Management, LLC I Linkr3'\n 
. \ , ) . \) 

Rennie Heath 

Rennie Heath 
CEO 

Winter Haven, Florida · 300 connections 

Join to Connect 

Experience. 

CEO 
Heath Construction & Management, LLC 

1983 - Present · 36 years 

Winter Haven, Florida 

Heath Construction & 

Management, LLC 

University of South Florida 

Land Development, Permitting, Land Us~ and Zoning 

Education 

University of South Florida 
Bachelor of Science (B.S.) · Business Administration 

httos://www .linkedin.com/in/rennie-heath-b23 22256 

Page I of 5 
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Winter H_aven Developer Rep\·)Heath Files to Run for County Co~)n - News - Th... Page I of 2 

TheLedger 
Winter Haven Developer Rennie Heath Files to Run for 
County Commission 
By TOM PALMER/ NEWS CHIEF 
Posted Aug 6, 2015 at 11 :34 PM 

Winter Haven developer Rennie Heath has joined the race for the 
District 3 County Commission seat. 

BARTOW I Winter Haven developer Rennie Heath has joined the race for the District 3 

County Commission seat. 

Heath, 58, is a Republican. He is in charge ofland development for Cassidy Homes. 

He is seeking the seat being vacated next year by County Commis•sioner Ed Smith, who is 

stepping down because of term limits. 

Heath said he is running as a pro-business, pro-law enforcement and anti~tax conservative. 

"My big thing is that government is not about regulating, it's about facilitating," he said. "I 

don't believe in a lot of regulations." 

Heath, who's a Winter Haven native, said he had been approached in the past about running 

for the commission, but until now his business commitments didn't provide him enough time· 

to serve. 

Heath, who has been in the development business since 1983, has served in various other 
' . . 

government positions. 

He served two terms as a commissioner on the board of the Lake Region Lakes Management 

D istrict, was a member of the Polk County Charter Review Committee and currently serves on 

the Polk County Planning Commission. 

"Polk County is a very special place for me and my family," he said. "I've spent decades actively 

involved in the community and would like to take that civic and community experience to the 

County Commission." 

He and his wife Pam have four children and five grandchildren. 

County commissioners must live in the district they represent but are elected countywide. 

They serve four-year terms. The current salary is $42,030 a year. 

https://www.theledger.com/news/20150806/winter-haven-developer-rennie-heath-files-to... I 0/22/2019 
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[ Tom Palmer can be reached at tom.palmer@theledger.com or 863-802-7535. Read his blog 

on the environment atenvironment.blogs.theledger.com and his blog on county government at 

county.blogs.theledger.com. Follow on Twitter @LedgerTom.] 

h~ps://www.theledger.com/news/20150806/winter-haven-developer-rennie-heath-files-to... 10/22/2019 



Cassidy Homes I Better Busi\)Bureau® Profile Page 1 of2 

Better Business Bureau® 

Home > Florida > Winter Haven > Holding Company > Cassidy Homes 

Cassidy Hornes 
Holding Company 

Accreditation BBB Rating 

THIS BUSINESS IS NOT BBB 
A CCREDITED 

Years in Business: 36 

Customer Complaints 

THIS BUSINESS HAS 0 
COMPLAII\ITS 

A+ 

CL1stomer Reviews are not used in 

the calculation of BBB Rating 

Custorner Cornplaints 

0 Customer Complaints 

CustornEH F~eviE?ws 
0 Customer Reviews 

Customer Reviews 

THIS RUSINESS HAS 0 
F~EVl l::WS 

httvs://www.bbb.org/us/fl/winter-haven/profile/holding-company/cassidy-homes-0733-28... 10/22/2019 



Cassidy Homes I Better Bus~p(-)Bureau® Profile 

Mr. Steven L. Cassidy, Vice President 
Other Contacts 
Mr. Albert B. Cassidy, President 

Ms. Donna L. Matura, Administrative Assistant to Director of Sales 
Mr. John Murphy, Director of Sales 

Additional Contact Information 
Phone Numbers 
(941) 325-8850 

Email Addresses 

II Email this Business 

Page 2 of 2 

'(:) 2019, lnt.t➔ ITmtional Assodation of Better Busim~ss Dure,Jus, Int;,, s(,2parat(:lly inc:mporat<:1d 
Bett1;H Busil'10.ss Bun:'!au organizaticms in the US, Canada and Mexico and BBU Institute for 

Marketplaf;f., Trust, Inc. All rights rnserve1;J. 

https://www.bbb.org/us/fl/winter-haven/profile/holding-company/cassidy-homes-0733-28... 10/22/2019 
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Detail by Entity Name 
Florida Limited Liability Company 

HEATH CONSTRUCTION AND MANAGEMENT, LLC 

Filing I a!o[!I!ation 

Document Number L06000106691 

FEI/EIN Number 20-8787505 

Date Flied 11/02/2006 

State FL 

Status ACTIVE 

Last Event REINSTATEMENT 

Event Date Filed 10/20/2016 

Principal Address 

2415 CYPRESS GARDENS BLVD. 

WINTER HAVEN, FL 33884 

Malling Address 

2415 CYPRESS GARDENS BLVD. 

WINTER HAVEN, FL 33884 

Registered Agent Name & Address 

HEATH 11, WARREN K 

2415 CYPRESS GARDENS BLVD. 

WINTER HAVEN, FL 33884 

Name Changed: 10/01/2015 

Authorized Person{sl Detail 

Name & Address 

Tit le MGR 

HEATH II, WARREN K 

2415 CYPRESS GARDENS BLVD. 

WINTER HAVEN, FL 33884 

Annual Reports 

Report Year 

2017 

2018 

2019 

Flied Date 

03/22/2017 

06/26/2018 

01/20/2019 

Page I of 2 
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Electronic Articles of Organization 
For 

Florida Limited Liability Company 

Article I 
The name of the Limited Liability Company is: 

HEATH CONSTRUCTION AND MANAGEMENT, LLC 

Article II 

L06000106691 
FILED 8:00 AM 
November 02, 2006 
Sec. Of State 
gmcleod 

The street address of the principal office of the Limited Liability Company is: 

2415 CYPRESS GARDENS BLVD. 
WINTER HA VEN, FL. US 33884 

The mailing address of the Limited Liability Company is: 
2415 CYPRESS GARDENS BLVD. 
WINTER HA VEN, FL. US 33884 

Article III 
The purpose for which this Limited Liability Company is organized is: 

ANY AND ALL LAWFUL BUSINESS. 

Article IV 
The name and Florida street address of the registered agent is: 

WARREN K HEATH II 
2415 CYPRESS GARDENS BLVD. 
WINTER HAVEN, FL. 33884 

Having been named as registered agent and to accept service of process 
for the above stated limited liability company at the place designated 
in this certificate, I hereby accept the appointment as registered agent 
and agree to act in this capacity. I further agree to comply with the 
provisions of all statutes relating to the proper and complete perfom1ance 
of my duties, and I am familiar with and accept the obligations of my 
position as registered agent. 

Registered Agent Signature: WAR.REN K. HEATH II 



Article V 
The name and address of managing members/managers are: 

Title: MGR 
WARREN K HEATH II 
2415 CYPRESS GARDENS BLVD. 
WINTER HA VEN, FL. 33884 US 

Title: MGR 
PAMELA S HEATH 
2415 CYPRESS GARDENS BLVD. 
WINTER HA VEN, FL. 33884 US 

Signature of member or an authorized representative of a member 
Signature: WARREN K.. HEATH II 

L06000106691 
FILED 8:00 AM 
November 02, 2006 
Sec. Of State 
gmcleod 
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Detail by Entity Name 
Florida Profit Corporation 

CASSIDY HOLDINGS GROUP, INC. 

FIiing Information 

Document Number 

FEIIEIN Number 

Date Flied 

State 

Status 

Principal Address 

346 E. CENTRAL AVENUE 

WINTER HAVEN, FL 33880 

Changed: 01/18/2013 

Mailing Address 

346 E. CENTRAL AVENUE 

WINTER HAVEN, FL 33880 

Changed: 01/18/2013 

P09000099911 

27-1515275 

12/11/2009 

FL 

ACTIVE 

Registered Agent Name & Address 

CASSIDY, ALBERT B 

346 E. CENTRAL AVENUE 

WINTER HAVEN, FL 33880 

Address Changed: 01/18/2013 

Officer/Director Detail 

Name & Address 

Tilfe D . 

CASSIDY, ALBERT B 

346 E. CENTRAL AVENUE 

WINTER HAVEN, FL 33880 

TitleD 

CASSIDY, STEVEN L 

346 E. CENTRAL AVENUE 

WINTER HAVEN, FL 33880 
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f 

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION 
OF 

CASSIDY HOLDINGS GROUP, INC. 

Pl'LED 
1069 DEC I I PH 4: 30 
crr-l··p-r:T. l\'i;i'i' r;·F ·-sy·.,·.r-E-, -.JU. " lL '"' i , . , 14 . , 

i-,\lU.HAS-Sf:\:, J:tombA 

The undersigned subscriber to these Articles of Incorporation, competent to contract, hereby 

forms a corporation for profit under the laws of the State of Florida. 

ARTICLE I - NAME 

The name of the corporation is CASSIDY HOLDINGS GROUP, INC., whose mailing 

address is: 250 Avenue K, SW, Suite 100, Winter Haven, Florida 33880 and whose physical 

address is: 250 Avenue K, SW, Suite 100, Winter Haven, Florida 33880. 

ARTICLE II - PURPOSE 

The Corporation may engage in any activity or business pennitted under the laws of the 

United States and of the State of Florida. 

ARTICLE III - CAPITAL STOCK 

The total authorized capital stock of this Corporation shall be 7,500 shares of common stock 

at $1.00 par value, all of said common stock folly paid and non-assessable. 

ARTICLE IV - PREEMPTIVE RIGHTS 

The shareholders of this Corporation shall have preemptive rights to the Corporation's 

common stock. 

ARTICLE V. - TERM OF EXISTENCE 

The ~orporation shall have perpetual existence, unless sooner dissolved according to law. 

ARTICLE VI .. ADDRESS 

The principal office of this Corporation shall be 250 Avenue K, SW, S1.;1ite 100, Winter 

Haven, Florida 33880, but the Corporation shall have the power to establish branch of~ces and 
1 

i 
I 
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1 
I 

' ·l 

i 

·' 



other places of business at such other place within or without the State of Florida, as may be 

determined. and deemed expedient by the Board of Directors. 

ARTICLE VII - DIRECTORS 

This Corporation shall have two (2) Directors initially, the number of Directors may be 

increased or diminished from time to time according (o By-Laws adopted by the Stocl<ho!~ers, but 

shall never be less than one. 

ARTICLE VIII - ORIGINAL DIRECTORS 

The names and addresses of the members of the first Board of Directors, are: 

ALBERT B. CASSIDY 

STEVEN CASSIDY 

250 Avenue K, SW, Suite 100 
Winter Haven, Florida 33880 

250 Avenue K, SW, Suite ·100 
Winter Have·n, Florida 33880 

ARTICLE IX - SUBSCRIBER 
.. 

The names and addresses of the Subscribers to the Articles of Incorporation· of this 

Corporation, are: 

STEVEN CASSIDY 

. . 

250 Avenue K, SW, Suite 100 
Winter Haven, Florida 33880 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Subscribers have hereunto set their hand and seal and acknowledged 

.;md filed the foregoing Articles oflncorporation in the office of the Secretary of State, this IO +h. 

day orJ2ec.erbQ€ r , 2009. 
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CERTIFICATE DESIGNATING PLACE OF BUSINESS OR DOMICILE P,-~~ 

.a,; 
c:::, -C) 
!"Tl 
r"> 

FOR THE SERVICE 011' PROCESS WJTHIN THIS STATE, ~-~ ~ 
NAMING AGENT UPON WHOM PROCESS MAY BE SERVED ~~ -P." 

esj-:"i 
?>,<r;r:! (,.J 

0 

In P·ursuant of €hapter 48.091, Florida Statutes, the following is submitted, in compliance 

with said Act: 

FIRST--- CASSIDY HOLDINGS GROUP, INC., de~iring to organize under the Laws of 

the State of Florida, with its principal office, as indicated in the Articles oflncorporation, in the City 

of WINTER HA VEN, State of FLORIDA, has named, ALBERT B. CASSIDY, loca•ed at 250 

Avenue K, SW, Suite JOO, Winter Haven, Florida 33880, as its Agent to accept Service of Process 

within this State. 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT: (Must be signed by Registered Agent). 

Having been named to accept service of process for the above stated Corporation, at the 

place designated in this Certificate, I hereby accept to act in this capacity, and agree to comply with 

the provisions of said act relative to keeping open said office. 

•· . 

Cnssidy\cassidy holding, corp, inc.larticlcs.inc 
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Detail by Entity Name 
Florida Limited Liability Company 

CAS HOLDINGS, LLC 

FIiing Information 

Document Number 

FEI/EIN Number 

Date Filed 

State 

Status 

Last Event 

Event Date Flied 

Event Effective Date 

Principal Address 

346 E. CENTRAL AVENUE 

WINTER HAVEN, FL 33880 

Changed: 02/06/2013 

Mailing Address 

346 E. CENTRAL AVENUE 

WINTER HAVEN, FL 33880 

Changed: 02/06/2013 

L06000107434 

20-5852887 

11/06/2006 

FL 

ACTIVE 

LC AMENDMENT 

02/23/2007 

NONE 

Registered Agent Name & Address 

STRAUGHN & TURNER, P.A. 

255 MAGNOLIA AVE., S.W. 

WINTER HAVEN, FL 33880 

Name Changed: 04/1 4/2008 

Authorized Personlsl Detail 

Name & Address 

Title MGR 

Cassidy, Albert B 

346 E. CENTRAL AVENUE 

WINTER HAVEN, FL 33880 

Annual Reports 
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ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION 
OF 

CAS HOLDINGS, LLC 

_,A<J, ~ . ...,...._ 
"9': (';. ,;t;;. ... , " 
y~~ ~ /. 

'l".'(''· < ,, . \ ~~ · 6' 'A'\ 

Zr-:..- - ""'" ~- ~ ~ 
'(<'•::~. '-' .,(\ ,. t-:?. 

The undersigned, for the purpose of forming a limited Liability company _under the~_!}d~ 
-;P. '/ 

Limited Liability Company Act, F .S. Chapter 608, hereby make, acknowledge, and file the foll~lng 
7 

Articles of Organization. 

ARTICLE I - NAME 

The name of the limited liability company shall be CAS HOLDINGS, LLC, (°company"). 

ARTICLE TI - ADDRESS 

The mailing address and street address of the principal office of the company is 250 Avenue 

K, SW, Suite 103, Winter Haven, Florida 33880. 

ARTICLE ITI w REGISTERED OFFJCE AND AGENT 

The name and street address of the registered agent of the company in the state of Florida are: 

J. KEMP BRINSON 

255 Magnolia Avenue, SW, Winter Haven, Florida 33880 

ARTICLE IV - MANAGE°RS 

The company is manager-managed. The name and address of each manager are as 

follows: 

Albert B. Cassidy, 250 Avenue K~ SW, Suite 103, Winter Haven, Florida 33880 

Steven L. Cassidy, 250 AvenueK, SW, Suite 103, Winter Haven, Florida 33880 



ACCEPTANCE OF REGISTERED AGENT 

Having been named as registered ~gent and to accept service of process for CAS 

HOLDINGS, LLC at the 255 Magnolia Avenue, SW, Winter Haven, Fl~rida 33880, I hereby accept 

appointment as registered agent and agree to act in this capacity. I further agree to comply with the 

provisions of all statutes relating to the proper and complete perfonnance of my duties, and l am 

familiar with and accept the obligations of my position as registered agent as provided for in F .S. 

Chapter 608. -



Detail by Entity Name 

F!oill!~ Qgpar!r11~n1o1 Stale 

Umwo.d<1l 
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Detail by Entity Name 
Florida Limited Liability Company 

LAKEVILLE PARTNERS, LLC 

Filing Information 

Document Number 

FEI/EIN Number 

Date Filed 

State 

L06000107435 

20-5852941 

11/06/2006 

FL 

Status ACTIVE 

Last Event 

Event Date Filed 

Event Effective Date 

Principal Address ' 

346 E, CENTRAL AVENUE 

WINTER HAVEN, FL 33880 

Changed: 02/06/2013 

Malling Address 

346 E. CENTRAL AVENUE 

WINTER HAVEN, FL 33880 

Changed: 02/06/2013 

LC AMENDMENT 

02/23/2007 

NONE 

Registered Agent Name & Address 

STRAUGHN & TURNER, P.A. 

255 MAGNOLIA AVE:, S.W. 

WINTER HAVEN, FL 33880 

Name Changed: 04/14/2008 

Authorized Personlsl Detail 

Name & Address 

Title MGR 

Cassidy, Albert B 

346 E. CENTRAL AVENUE 

WINTER HAVEN, FL 33880 

Annual Reports 

Page 1 of2 
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ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION 
OF 

LAKEVILLE PARTNERS, LLC 

The undersigned, for the purpose of forming a limited liability company under the Florida 

Limited Liability Company Act, F.S. Chapter 608, hereby make, acknowledge, and file the f~owing 
/'- 1.f' (1" ~ 

Articles of Organization. · 1< 1· ~ ~ 
<'1'_ ~ :,," 

ARTICLEI-NAME ~r~ . 6' '\~ 
The name of the limited liability company shall be LAKEVILLE P ARTN~ J.L~ (') 

«''--;,· ~ 
(''company"). ·.-c-• .,, 0 <o......- :;..l 

,p '?,,, 
v< 

"'? ARTICLE lI - ADDRESS 

The mailing address and street address of the principal office of the company is 250 A venue 

K, SW, Suite 103, Winter Haven, Florida 33880. 

ARTICLE III- REGISTERED OFFICE AND AGENT 

The name and street address of the registered agent of the company in the state of Florida are: 

J. KEMP BRINSON .... 

255 Magnolia Avenue, SW, Winter Haven, Florida 33880 

ARTICLE IV - MANAGERS 

The company is manager-managed. The name and address of each manager are as 

follows: 

ALBERT B. CASSIDY, 250 Avenue K, SW, Suite 103, Winter Haven, Florida 33880 

STEVEN L. CASSIDY, 250 Avenue K, SW, Suite 103, Winter Haven, Florida 33880 



ACCEPTANCE OF REGISTERED AGENT 

Having been named as registered agent and to accept service of process for LAKEVILLE 

PARTNERS, LLC at the 255 Magnolia Avenue·, SW, Winter Haven, Florida 33880, J hereby accept 

appointment as registered agent and agree to act in this capacity. I further agree to comply with the 

provisions of all statutes relating to the proper and complete performance of my duties, and I am 

familiar with and accept the obligations of my position as registered agent as provided for in F.S. 

Chapter 608. 



Detail by Entity Name 

Detail by Entity Name 
Florida Limited Liability Company 

WINTER HAVEN MANAGEMENT SERVICES, LLC 

Filing Information 

Document Number 

FEI/EIN Number 

Date Filed 

State 

Status 

Principal Address 

346 E CENTRAL AVE. 

WINTER HAVEN, Fl 33880 

Mailing Address 

346 E CENTRAL AVE. 

l17000244246 

82-3611499 

11/29/2017 

Fl 

ACTIVE 

WINTER HAVEN, Fl 33880 

Registered Agent Name & Address 

STRAUGHN, RICHARD E 

255 MAGNOLIA AVE. SW 

WINTER HAVEN, FL 33880 

Aythorb;ed Person(sl Detail 

Name & Address 

Title MGR 

PRICE, GARY 

346 E CENTRAL AVE. 

WINTER HAVEN, Fl 33880 

Title MGR 

ROUNDS, SHEILA D 

346 E CENTRAL AVE 

WINTER HAVEN, Fl 33880 

Annual Reports 

Report Year 

2018 

2019 

Document Images 

Filed Date 

06/26/2018 

01/20/2019 
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Electronic Articles of Organization 
For 

Florida Limited Liability Company 

Article I 
The name of the Limited Liability Company is: 

WINTER HA VEN MANAGEMENT SERVICES, LLC 

Article II 

L17000244246 
FILED 8:00 AM 
November 29, 2017 
Sec. Of State 
jafason 

The street address of the principal office of the Limited Liability Company is: 
346 E CENTRAL A VE. 
WINTER HAVEN, FL. US 33880 

The mailing address of the Limited Liability Company is: 
346 E CENTRAL A VE. 
WINTER HA VEN, FL. US 33880 

Article III 
The name and Florida street address of the registered agent is: 

RICHARD E STRAUGHN 
255 MAGNOLIA A VE. SW 
WINTER HA VEN, FL. 33880 

Having been named as registered agent and to accept service of process for the above stated limited 
liability company at the place designated in this cetiificate, I hereby accept the appointment as registered 
agent and agree to act in this capacity. I finiher agree to comply with the provisions of all statutes 
relating to the proper and complete perfonnance of my duties, and I am familiar with and accept the 
obligat10ns of my position as registered agent. 

Registered Agent Signature: RICHARD E STRAUGHN 



Article IV 
The name and address ofperson(s) authorized to manage LLC: 

Title: MGR 
GARY PRICE 
346 E CENTRAL A VE. 
WINTER HA VEN, FL. 33880 US 

Signature of member or an authorized representative 
Electronic Signature: MARIE STRAUGHN 

L17000244246 
FILED 8:00 AM 
November 29, 2017 
Sec. Of State 
jafason 

I am the member or authorized representative submitting these Articles of Organization and affinn that the 
facts stated herein are true. I am aware that false infonnation submitted in a document to the Department 
of State constitutes a third degree felony as provided for in s.817.155, F.S. I understand the reqmrement to 
file an annual report between January 1st and May 1st in the calendar year following formation of the LLC 
and every year thereafter to maintain "active" status. · 



Statutes & Constitution :Vi~yv(1:.)tutes: Online Sunshine 

Select Year: 12019 vi~ 

The 2019 Florida Statutes 

Title X Chapter 112 
PUBLIC OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, PUBLIC OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES: 

AND RECORDS GENERAL PROVISIONS 

112.3143 Voting conflicts.-

(1) As used in this section: 

Page 1 of 3 

View Entire 
Chapter 

(a) "Principal by whom retained" means an individual or entity, other than an agency as defined in 
s. 112.312(2), that for compensation, salary, pay, consideration, or similar thing of value, has permitted 
or directed another to act for the individual or entity, and includes, but is not limited to, one's client, 
employer, or the parent, subsidiary, or sibling organization of one's client or employer. 

(b) "Public officer" includes any person elected or appointed to hold office in any agency, including 
any person serving on an advisory body. 

(c) "Relative" means any father, mother, son, daughter, husband, wife, brother, sister, father-in­
law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, or daughter-in-law. 

(d) "Special private gain or loss" means an economic benefit or harm that would inure to the 
officer, his or her relative, business associate, or principal, unless the measure affects a class that 
includes the officer, his or her relative, business associate, or principal, in which case, at least the 
following factors must be considered when determining whether a special private gain or loss exists: 

1. The size of the class affected by the vote. 
2. The nature of the interests involved. 
3. The degree to which the interests of all members of the class are affected by the vote. 
4. The degree to which the officer, his or her relative, business associate, or principal receives a 

greater benefit or harm when compared to other members of the class. 

The degree to which there is uncertainty at the time of the vote as to whether there would be any 
economic benefit or harm to the public officer, his or her relative, business associate, or principal and, 
if so, the nature or degree of the economic benefit or harm must also be considered. 

(2)(a) A state public officer may not vote on any matter that the officer knows would inure to his or 

her special private gain or loss. Any state public officer who abstains from voting in an official capacity 
upon any measure that the officer knows would inure to the officer's special private gain or loss, or who 
votes in an official capacity on a measure that he or she knows would inure to the special private gain or 
loss of any principal by whom the office_r is retained or to the parent organization or subsidiary of a 
corporate principal by which the officer is retained other than an agency as defined in s. 112. 312(2); or 
which the officer knows would inure to the special private gain or loss of a relative or business associate 
of the public officer, shall make every reasonable effort to disclose the nature of his or her interest as a 
public record in a memorandum filed with the person responsible for recording the minutes of the 
meeting, who shall incorporate the memorandum in the minutes. If it is not possible for the state public 
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officer to file a memorandum before the vote, the memorandum must be filed with the person 

responsible for recording the minutes of the meeting no later than 15 days after the vote. 

Page 2 of3 

(b) A member of the Legislature may satisfy the disclosure requirements of this section by filing a 

disclosure form created pursuant to the rules of the member's respective house if the member discloses 

the information required by this subsection. 

(3)(a) No county, municipal, or other local public officer shall vote in an official capacity upon any 

measure which would inure to his or her special private gain or loss; which he or she knows would inure 

to the special· private gain or loss of any principal by whom he or she is retained or to the parent 

organization or subsidiary bf a corporate principal by which he or she is retained, other than an agency 

as defined ins. 112.312(2); or which he or she knows would inure to the special private gain or loss of a 

relative or business associate of the public officer. Such public officer shall, prior to the vote being 

taken, publicly state to the assembly the nature of the officer's interest in the matter from which he or 

she is abstaining from voting and, within 15 days after the vote occurs, disclose the nature of his or her 

interest as a public record in a memorandum filed with the person responsible for recording the minutes 

of the meeting, who shall incorporate the memorandum in the minutes. 

(b) However, a commissioner of a community redevelopment agency created or designated pursuant 

to s. 163.356 ors. 163.357, or an officer of an independent special tax district elected on a one-acre, 

one-vote basis, is not prohibited from voting, when voting in said capacity. 

(4) No appointed public officer shall participate in any matter which would inure to the officer's 

special private gain or .loss; which the officer knows would inure to the special private gain or loss of any 

principal by whom he or she is retained or to the parent organization or subsidiary of a corporate 

principal by which he or she is retained; or which he or she knows would inure to the special private 

gain or loss of a relative or business associate of the public officer, without first disclosing the nature of 

his or her interest in the matter. 

(a) Such disclosure, indicating the nature of the conflict, shall be made in a written memorandum 

filed with the person responsible for recording the minutes of the meeting, prior to the meeting in 

which consideration of the matter will take place, and shall be incorporated into the minutes. Any such 

memorandum shall become a public record upon filing, shall immediately be provided to the other 

members of the agency, and shall be read publicly at the next meeting held subsequent to the filing of 

this written memorandum. 

(b) In the event that disclosure has not been made prior to the meeting or that any conflict is 

unknown prior to the meeting, the disclosure shall be made orally at the meeting when it becomes 

known that a conflict exists. A written memorandum disclosing the nature of the conflict shall then be 

filed within 15 days after the oral disclosure with the person responsible for recording the minutes of 

the meeting and shall be incorporated into the minutes of the meeting at which the oral disclosure was 

made. Any such memorandum shall become a public record upon filing, shall immediately be provided to 

the other members of the agency, and shall be read publicly at the next meeting held subsequent to the 

filing of this written memorandum. 

(c) For purposes of this subsection, the term "participate" means any attempt to influence the 

decision by oral or written communication, whether made by the officer or at the officer's direction. 

(5) If disclosure of specific information would violate confidentiality or privilege pursuant to law or 

rules governing attorneys, a public officer, who is also an attorney, may comply with the disclosure 

requirements of this section by disclosing the nature of the interest in such a way as to provide the 

public with notice of the conflict. 
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(6) Whenever a public officer or former public officer is being considered for appointment or 

reappointment to public office, the appointing body shall consider the number and nature of the 

memoranda of conflict previously filed under this section by said officer. 
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History.-s. 6, ch. 75-208; s. 2, ch. 84-318; s. 1, ch. 84-357; s. 2, ch. 86-148; s. 5, ch. 91-85; s. 3, ch. 94-277; s. 1408, ch. 
95-147; s. 43, ch. 99-2; s. 6, ch. 2013-36. 
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78 F.3d494 
United States Court of Appeals, 

Eleventh Circuit. 

Mary GEORGE; Charles L. Stovall; 
Ma1tha Ray Bethel; W.O. Wells, Reverend; 

J oann Stovall; Barbara Jenkins; 

Sylvester W caver, Plaintiffs- Appellants, 
Y. 

CITY OF COCOA. FLORIDA: Cocoa City Council; 

Lester Campbell, Mayor-Councilmember 
of the City of Cocoa; Ray Debord, John Lee 

Blubach. Dave Salisbury, members of the Cocoa 
Cit)' Council, et al.. Defendants- Appellees, 

Ray Griffin, Member of the Coeoa City 

Council; Fred Gak-y, Brevard County 

Supervisor of Elections, Defendants. 

No. 94-3453. 

I 
Feb. 29, 1996. 

Synopsis 
An action was brought alleging that at large. method 
for electing ci ty council members diluted minority voting 
strength in violation of the Voting Rights Act. After one of 
the Afr ican-American plaintiffs was appointed to fi ll vacant 
city council seat, he withdrew as plaintiff and was named 
defendant. Following settlement negotiations, city council 
voted to replace system of at- large elections for all fi ve 
members of system with a system under which four members 
would be elected from single-member districts and fi fth 

counci I member would be elected at large. On motion to enter 
consent decree, the United States District Court for the Middle 
District of Florida, No. 93- 257- CIV-ORL- l 8, G. Kendall 

. Sharp, J., denied motion, and plaintiffs appealed. The Court 
· of Appeals held that district court misapplied Florida law in 

disqualifying council member's vote on redistricting plan. 

Reversed and remanded. 

West I lcadnotcs (8) 

Il l Mun icipnl Corporalio11s 

,~)= l)i~qu;il ificatio11 by interest 

WESTLAW 

121 

151 

Puhlk Employment 
~ D111ie~ 

Public Employmi'11t 
~ Ethics and conflict:; of interest in general 

Under Florida law, elected officials have an 
affirmative duty to vote on all matters before 
them, and abstaining from a vote is prohibited 
unless there is or appears to be a possible conflict 
of interest. West's F.S.A. * '.!86.012. 

Mu11icipal Corponitio11s 
(;,,, l.>isqualifo:ation lly interest 

Under Florida provision governing mandatory 
abstention from city council voting, the 
identification of a "special private gain or loss" 
to the city council member as result of his or her 
vote is a necessary condition for disqualification. 
Wl:'sl'$ F.S.i\. * 11 '.! 31 430 ){a). 

Municipal Corpo rations 

v--,,, Disqual ification by interest 

Under Florida provision governing mandatory 
abstention from city council voting, "special 
private gain" described by voting conflict statute 
almost always, if not always, refers to financial 
interest of public official that is directly enhanced 
by the vote in question. West's F.S.i\. * 112.3 143. 

I Cases thlll cite this headnote 

Municipal Corporations 
v,-, Disqualification by interest 

Under Florida law, public official.'s ideological 
interest in changing way the city council 
members were elected did not involve kind of 
"special private gain" that disqualified an elected 
official's vote; person who holds preconceived 
and publicly expressed opinion on particular 
matter is not barred from voting on that matter as 
a public offici al. West's F.S.A. § 112.3143. 

I Cases that cite this headnote 

M11nici1>al Corponitions 
~ Disquali tication by interest 



Under Florida law dealing with mandatory 
abstention from city counci l voting, possibility 
of gain to council member must be direct 
and immediate, not remote and speculative, 
to constitute prohibited voting conflict. West's 
F.S.A. ~ 11 2.3 143. 

Munidpal Corporations 
'iP Disqualiliciuion by interest 

Under Florida voting confl icts provision, at­
large city council member's interests as potential 
candidate under newly proposed representations 
system were too speculative and remote to 
warrant disqualification of his vote; proposed 
plan replaced system of at-large elections for all 
five members of systems with system in which 
four members would be elected from single­
member districts and fifth council member 
would be elected at large, transformation to 
single-member districts actually could have 
impaired member's interest as candidate by 
increasing competitiveness of elections, and 
eve1y one of the incumbent city council members 
had interest in shaping districts favorably to his 
or her reelection. West's F.S.!\. § 112.3143. 

171 Municipal CorpQnttions 

181 

'&-..., Disqualili<.:ation by inlcn:$1 

Race could not be valid basis for disqualifying 
an elected official's vote under Florida voting 
conflicts provision. West's F.S.A. § 112.3143. 

Municipal Corporntious 
f.,,, Disqunlification hy interest 

Any benefit e·njoyed by hundreds of African­
American citizens of city by having African­
American city council member vote on 
proposed redistricting was not a "special private 
gain" within meaning of Florida's voting 
conflict statute and thus did not disqualify 
council member from voting. West's F.S.i\ . * 
I 12.3 1:l.l( .1J(a). 

2 Cases that cite this headnote 
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Attorneys and Lnw Firms 

*495 Cristina Correia, Florida Rural Legal Services, Inc., 
Tallahassee, FL and Jacqueline A. Berril'n, NAACP Legal 
Defense and Educational Fund, Inc., New York City, for 

appellants. 

Bradly Roger Bellin, Amari , Theriac & Eisenmenger, P.A .. 
Cocoa, PL, for appellees. 

George N. l'vleros, Jr. and Mary W. Chaisson, Rumberger, Kirk 
& Caldwell, P.A., Tallahassee, FL, for all am icus. 

Appeal from the United States District Court for the Middle 
District of Florida. 

Before 1\NDERSON and BLACK, Circuit Judges, and 
HENDERSON, Senior Circuit Judge. 

Opinion 

PERCURIAM: 

This case comes to us on appeal from the district court's order 
denying the parties' joint motion to approve a consent decree 
and enter judgment. We have jurisdiction and for the reasons 
set forth in this opinion, we reverse and remand for further 
proceedings not inconsistent with this opinion. 

Factual and Procedural Background 

On April 12, 1993, appellants filed a complaint m the 
United States District Coutt for the Middle District of 
Florida; they alleged that the at- large method of electing city 
council members in Cocoa dilutes minority voting strength in 

violation of section 2 of the Voting Rights Act of 1965. 1 In 
July 1993, the Cocoa City Council appointed Rudolph Stone, 
one of the African- American plaintiffs in the voting rights 
litigation, to fill a vacant council seat. Immediately upon his 
appointme~t, Stone withdrew as a plaintiff and was named a 
defendant. In November 1993, Stone was elected under the 
at-large system to keep his council seat for another three-year 
term. 

Settlement negotiations in the voting rights litigation 
ultimately led to an agreement. *496 The Cocoa City 
Council voted to replace the system of at- large elections 
for all five of its members with a system under which four 



members would be elected from single member districts and 
the fifth council member, who also serves as the mayor, 
would continue to be elected at-large. African- American 
voters would constitute a majority of the voters in one of 
the proposed single member districts. Three members of the 
city council, including Stone, voted in favor of the proposed 
consent decree; the remaining two members voted against it. 

On July 28, 1994, the parties to the voting rights litigation 
filed a joint motion in the district cou11 to enter the consent 
decree. Four Cocoa voters, appearing as amici curiae in 
opposition to the proposed consent decree, suggested to the 
district cou11 that Stone should have abstained from the city 
council's decision whether to adopt the redistricting plan. 
The district court ordered a hearing on the consent decree, 
and instructed the parties and mnici to limit their arguments 
to the issue of Stone's pait icipation in the city council's 
cons_ideration of the redistricting plan. Following this hearing, 
the district court concluded that Stone's pa,t icipation in the 
vote constituted a conflict of interest under Florida's ethics 
statutes, and that Stone's vote cot1ld not be counted. In its 
October 25, 1994, order, the court explained: 

In this case, Mr. Stone was in a 
unique position to gain from the 
redistricting decision made by the 
Cocoa City Council. Mr. Stone had 
originally filed this suit as a plaintiff 
seeking to .increase the voting power 
of Cocoa's black community. Though 
Mr. Stone had been dropped as 
a plaintiff and had been elected 
along with the other council members 
through the at-large process, as an 
African-American candidate he stood 
to gain inordinately from the vote. 
The consent decree's solution to the 
problem of increasing black voting 
power would create a district where the 
black majority was expected to elect 
a black representative, and Mr. Stone 
would be a resident of that district. In 
short, by voting on this decree, Mr. 
Stone facilitated his own chances for 
reelection and involved himself in a 

situation fraught with the potential for 
conflicting interests. 

R2-40-6- 7. With the disqualification of Stone's tie-breaki ng 
vote, the remaining ci ty council members were deadlocked 
(two-two) on the redistricting plan. The district court thus 
held that the consent decree was void and refused to enter 
judgment. 

Discussion 

The issue is whether the district court misapplied Florida 

law in disqualifying Stone's vote on the redistricting plan. 1 

Neither party argues in support of the district court's decision; 
both partie~ agree that Stone's vote should not have been 
disqualified. We also conclude that the district court erred. 

111 121 Florida law imposes on elected officials an 
affinnative duty to vote on all matters before th~m; abstaining 
from a vote is prohibited unless "there is, or appears to be. 
a possible conflict of interest· under * 112.311, * 112.3 I J , or 
~ 112.3143." Fla.s,;,Li\nn. § 28<,.01 2 !West 19<).'i). Secti<m 
286.!) 12 speaks only of when a public official may abstain 
from voting; it does not describe the circumstances under 
which a public official must abstain from voting. The 
statutory provision dealing with mandatory abstention from 
city council voting is Fla.Stat.Ann. * 112.3 143(3 )( a) (West 
1995); it provides that "[n]o county_, municipal, or other 
local publ ic officer shall vote in his official capacity upon 
any measure which would inure to his special private gain 
or loss .... " Under * 112.3 143(3)(<1), the identification of a 
"special private gain or loss" to the city council member 
as a result of his or her vote is a necessary condition for 
disqualification. 

131 A "special private gain" described by the voting 
conflicts statute almost always (if not always) refers to 
a financial interest of the public official that is directly 

. enhanced by the vote in question. See btak ll·,i/to11 l .e·ugue 

or : lmeric:o i,: ;\,fol'll'IJt' Coull~)'. 448 So.'.2d 1170, I 173 

n. 8 (Fla.App. 3 Dist.1984) (explaining that * 112.314.1 
does not apply "to bias or prejudice on the part of a 
public *497 officer based on other than private economic 
interests or relationships" (quoting Op.Fla.Comm. Ethics 79-
14 (1979))); see also Op.Fla.Comm. Ethics 90-20 (1990) 
(holding that a city council member, whose property would be 
affected by proposed special assessment, must abstain from 

voting, "[g]iven the direct, personal.financial ~/feet striking 
the assessment would have on [his] interests) (emphasis 
added); Op.Fla.Comm. Ethics 79-1 4 (1979) (holding that 



a city council member may not abstain from voting on 
matters involving his personal foe and stating that " it is 
clear that, when adopting the Code of Ethics, the Legislature 
was concerned primarily with the effect of a public official's 
economic interests and relat ionships upon the performance 
of his public duties, rather than the effect of his personal 
preferences or animosities."). 

Stone's vote on the redistricting plan did not result in any 
direct financial benefit to him. If a "special private gain" 
under ~ 112.3143(3 )(a) is limited .to a fi nancial gain, then 
Stone's vote should not have been disqualified. The district 
court, however, stated that it would be "inappropriate" to 
limit the application of § 11 2.314:l to conflicts surrounding 

finances, 3 and held that Stone's status as a potential African­
American candidate in a district in which the majority of 
voters were also African- American was a "special case" that 
presented a "heightened potential for conflict." R2- 40- 8. 

Assuming arguendo that * 112.314.•t., )(a) is not limited 
to financial matters, we address potential non-economic 
" interests" of Stone. We can imagine only two such putative 
"interests" that may have been affected by his vote: his 
ideological interests as an African- American voter and 
fo rmer plaintiffin the voting riihts litigation~ and his political 
interests as an incumbent city counci I member planning to run 
for reelection. Neither of these interests would have required 
Stone to abstain from voting. 

the subject of their vote"); see also Op.Fla.Comm. Ethics 88-
18 ( 1988) (same). If ideology presented a confl ict of interest 
situation, no public official could vote on any of his or her 
campaign promises. More specifically relevant to this case, 
there is precisely the same inference of an ideological interest 
on the part of the other council members arising fro m their 
status as defendants in the litigation and the positions they 
apparently took in the case. 

151 161 The district couri recognized that Stone's 
ideological interests as a former plaintiff in the voting 
rights litigation could *498 not serve as a valid ?asis for 

disqualification, 4 and focused instead upon Stone's poli tical 
interests as an incumbent city council member planning 

· to run for reelection in one of the new single member 
districts. The district court reasoned that Stone's vote on 
the redistricting plan inured to his "special private gain" 
because it "facili tated his chances for reelection." R2-40-
7. To constitute a prohibited vot ing conflict, however, the 
possibility of gain must be direct and immediate, not remote 
and speculative. In Op.Comm. Ethics 93-4 ( 1993), for 
example, a city council member asked the ethics commission 
whether he could vote on rent increases at the city's mobile 
home park, where he proposed to build a similar park across 
tbe street. The ethic·s commission found that the assumption 
that the city commissioner could charge higher rents at his 
"still to be built" park was too remote and speculative to 
create a voting conflict. See also Op.Fla.Comm. Ethics 94-
018 (1 994) ("[W]here the official's ... gain (or loss) would 

141 Because Stone is a former plaintiff in the voting rights require many steps and be subject to many contingencies, with 
litigation, it may be reasonable to infer that Stone has an 
ideological interest in changing the way that city council 
members in Cocoa are elected. The plaintiffs in the voting 
rights litigation contended that the at- large electoral system 
unlawfully diluted minority voting strength, and sought to 
have it replaced with a system of single-member districts. 
Because the city's redistricting plan adopts some of the relief 
requested in the voting rights litigl;ltion, Stone's putative 
ideological interest was no doubt fmihered by his vote as 
a city council member. Nevertheless, an ideological victory 
is not the kind of "special private gain" that disqualifies 
an elected official's vote. The lzaak Walton case clearly 
establishes that a person who holds a preconceived and 
publicly expressed opinion on a particular matter is not barred 
from voting on that matter as a public official. See id .. 448 
So.~d al 11 71 (holding that "political officeholders may not 
be prevented from performing the duties they have been 
elected to discharge [i.e., voting] merely because ... they have 
previously expressed, publicly or otherwise, an opinion on 
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the outcome by no means certain, any gain or loss would 
be remote and speculative."). In this case, the district court 

speculated that Sto~e planned to nm for reelection in 1996 ) 
and that Stone's chances for reelection were improved by 
the redistricting plan. As an incumbent who won an election 
under the at-large system, however, the transformation to 
single-member districts actually may have impaired Stone's 
interests as a candidate by increasing the competitiveness 
of elections. See, e.g., Mdfil/an ,,'. J:.w.·,1ml>ia < ·ounty. 74& 
F.2d ion. 1045 (5th Cir.1984) (noting that at-large electoral 
systems may deter candidacies, particularly by African­
American candidates, for elected offi ce). In short, Stone's 
interests as a potential candidate were too ''speculative and 
remote" to warrant disqualification of his vote. 

Furthermore, every one of the incumbent city council 
members, not just Stone, had an interest in shaping districts 
favorable to his or her reelection. For example, district 
boundaries may have been drawn lo avoid future contests 



between incumbent city council members. Cf /\<1rcher F. 

/)aggc'lt. :l(i2 l!.S. 72':'>. 740. I0~ S.Ct. 26H ~6(i3, 77 

L.E1l.2d 13) ( 1983 J (describing the avoidance of contests 

between incwl)bents as a ;'legitimate objective" in legislative 

redistricting); Gq{lirc:v "· C11111111i11gs. 412 l l.S. 735, 752 54. 

93 S.Ct. 2.U I . 233 1- 32. 37 l..l:d.2cl 298 ( 197] J (recognizing 

that legislators involved in redistricting decisions inevitably · 

take into account various " political considerations" in 

drawing district lines). In this regard, there is no difference in 

principle between Stone and the other city council members: 

·each membe1's chances for reelection was directly affected 

by the drawing of district lines. It would be absurd to 

interpret Florida's voting conflicts statute in such a way 

that would disqualify all members of legislative bodies from 

participating in legislative redistrict ing decisions. Cf Cnited 

S!,tft•s "· 1-1111, 449 U.S. 200. 10 1 S.CI. 471 . 66 L.Eu.2d 

392 ( 1980) ( construing the judicial disqualification statute as 
implicitly incorporating a conimon-law " rule of necessity" 

exception, which applies when all federal judges have an 

interest in the outcome of a case); Op.Fla.Comm. Ethics 86-
57 ( 1986) (advising that the threat of a lawsuit arising from a 

vote does not require disqualification; "otherwise, any person 

might be able to disqualify an entire board"). 

171 In its order disqualifying Stone's vote, the district court 

appears to understand that its interpretation ofFlorida's voting 

conflicts statute could undermine the abil ity of all legislators 

to pa11icipate in the redistricting process. '' To distinguish 

Stone from the other city council members, the district 

court reasoned that Stone was somehow in a *499 "unique 

position to gain from the redistricting decision." R2-40- 6. 
However, the district court was vague in its identification of 

Stone's supposed unique position. As demonstrated above, 

there is no legitimate basis to distinguish Stone from the other 

counci l members. 

Footnotes 

181 I f the district court re lied on Stone's race to 

distinguish Stone and disqualify his vote, 
7 

that re l iance was 

inappropriate. Any benefit enjoyed by hundreds of African­

American residents of Cocoa is not a "special private gain" 

within the meaning of Florida's voting conflicts statute, * 
I I 2J I 430)(a). See Op.Fla.Comm. Ethics 93-0 I 2 (pension 

board trustee, who is also a participant in a class action 

against the city regarding the pension plan, is not disquali fied 

from voting on measures concerning the lawsuit , because the 

number of persons who stand to benefit from such measures 

(297) is sufficiently large that any gain to the trustee would not 

be "special"). Moreover, any interpretation of* 112.3 14]( 3) 

(a) that disqualifies an elected official's vote on a matter of 

public concer~ because of race obviously could not withstand 

scrut iny. C'j' Bmwn 1'. \loure. 58.3 F.Supp .. 191 , 395 --96 
(tvl.D.Ala.I984) (African-American school commissioner 

is not disqualified from voting on a school desegregation 

conse,nt decree on the basis that the plaintiff class is composed 

of members of his race). We therefore hold that race could 

not be a valid basis for disqualifying an elected official's vote 

under * 112.3143(1 )( a). 

Conclusion 

For the foregoing reasons, the judgment of the distr ict couIi 

is REVERSED and REMANDED for further proceedings not 

inconsistent with this opinion. 

All Citations 
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'I Pub.L. No. 89-110, § 2(b), 79 Stat. 437, codified at 42 U.S.C. § 1973{b) (1988). 

2 
3 

4 

We do not address the merits of the proposed consent decree. 

The only authority cited by the district ~ourt for this proposition is Gamerv. State· Com'n on Ethics. 439 So.2d 894 {Fla.App 
2 Dist.1983}-a case that has nothing to do with voting. In Garner, the ethics commission considered a complaint alleging 

that a college president abused his official position by seeking sexual favors from female subordinate personnel. The 
ethics commission found that this behavior violated Fla.Stat Ann. § 112.313(6) (West 1994), which provides that "No 

public officer or employee of an agency ... shall corruptly use or attempt to use his official position ... to secure a special 

privilege, benefit, or exemption for himself or others." The Florida appeals court·held that sexual favors constitute a 
"special benefit'' within the meaning of the statute. Gamer. 439 So.2d at 895. 

See R2-40- 5 ("Respect for a citizen's right to express opinions on matters of public importance requires courts to permit 

officials to vote on issues even when they have previously filed suits to protest the burdening of their rights."). 

WESil./.1.W 



5 The record indicates that Stone was elected under the at-large system in November 1993, and that city council members 
in Cocoa serve three-year terms. Stone would therefore be up for reelection in November 1996-more than two years 
after the district court entered its order in this case. 

6 The court cautioned that "[t]his holding should not be construed to disqualify all legislators from participating in all issues 
related [to) voting and elections." R2-40-7. 

7 In the hearing on the proposed consent decree, counsel for amici (Mr. Meros) repeatedly emphasized Stone's race as a 
basis for distinguishing him from the other city council members. When asked by the court what "stake" Stone had that 
would create a "special private gain," Mr. Meros responded as follows: 

His stake was, number one, as a voter of the council, which is more general. Number two, as an African-American. 
He was asserting that he, that his rights as an African-American were not sufficiently protected and as a result of that 
he wanted the opportunity to have his vote enhanced by virtue of the creation of single member districts. That is a 
personal stake by Councilman Stone. 

What personal stake did he have in this? His personal stake as an African-American. 
R3-6-7. 
In closing his argument, Mr. Meros repeated: 

I would suggest that When you talk about a "special private gain,· special means as opposed to communal, individual as 
opposed to group, and Councilman Stone in this litigation asserted that he had a private direct interest in this litigation, 
clearly special and individual due to his race as an African-American. 

R3- 13. 
Although some of the district court's language could be construed to indicate that the district court accepted the foregoing 
invitation to consider race, we decline to believe that. Rather, we surmise that the district court simply failed to think the 
matter through thoroughly. 
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